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BE

“AGM”

“Articles of

Association”
“associate(s)”
“Audit Committee”
“Board”

“Cayman Islands
Companies Law”

“Chengdu Lease
Agreement”

“Chengdu
Yueyihai”

“China” or “PRC”

“Companies
Ordinance”

“Company”

EREKRERAERA S

the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held in Beijing on Friday, 22 May 2020 at 2:00 p.m.
or any adjournment thereof

the articles of association of the Company, as
amended from time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules

the audit committee of the Board

the board of Directors of the Company

the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time

the lease agreement dated 6 July 2018 entered into
between Chengdu Yueyihai and Sichuan Haidilao
in connection with the lease of a parcel of land
with the properties and fixtures thereon by Sichuan
Haidilao to Chengdu Yueyihai

Chengdu Yueyihai Co., Ltd.* (B &R RS E AR
‘AF]), a limited liability company incorporated in
the PRC on 28 April 2014 and an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

the People’s Republic of China and, except where
the context requires, references in this annual
report to the PRC or China exclude Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan

the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, as amended, supplemented
or otherwise modified from time to time

YIHAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD. (E& &=k
ERAERAQF), an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18
October 2013
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“Controlling
Shareholders’

“Corporate
Governance
Code”

“Director(s)”

“Financial
Statements”

“Framework Sales
and Purchase
Agreements”

“Group”

“Haidilao”

“Haidilao
Customized
Products”

“Haidilao Group”

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules, and unless the context otherwise requires,
refers to Mr. Zhang Yong, the non-executive
Director, Ms. Shu Ping, (the executive Director and
spouse of Mr. Zhang Yong) and ZYSP YIHAI Ltd

Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

director(s) of the Company

the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 as audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers

collectively, the hotpot soup flavouring products
sales agreement dated 6 July 2018 entered into
between Yihai Shanghai and the Joint Venture
in relation to the sales of hotpot soup flavouring
products from Yihai Shanghai and its subsidiaries
to the Joint Venture, and the self-serving small
hotpot products sales agreement dated 6 July 2018
entered into between the Joint Venture and Yihai
Shanghai in relation to the sales of Small Hotpot
Products by the Joint Venture to Yihai Shanghai
and its subsidiaries

the Company and its subsidiaries

Haidilao International Holding Ltd., whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
6862)

the hot pot soup flavoring and Chinese-style
compound condiment products manufactured by
the Group using formulas owned by Haidilao Group
for use in its hot pot restaurants

Haidilao and its subsidiaries
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BE

“Haidilao Retalil
Products”

“Haidilao
Warehouse
Storage Service
Agreement”

“HK$”’ HHKD” or
“HK dollars”
and “cents”

“Hong Kong”

“Investment

Cooperation
Agreement”

“Jingyuan
Investment”

“Joint Venture”

EREKRERAERA S

the retail hot pot soup flavoring, hot pot dipping
sauce and Chinese-style compound condiment
products manufactured by the Group using
formulas the Group owns for display and sale to
consumers in Haidilao Group hot pot restaurants,
which are the same products as those sold by the
Group through independent third party distributors

warehouse storage service agreement dated 24
June 2016, entered into between Sichuan Haidilao
and Yihai Shanghai, each for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries, Sichuan Haidilao Group agreed to
provide warehousing facilities and related services,
including sorting process management, stocktaking
and other logistics services, to the Group for
products we sell to Haidilao Group

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the
lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
the PRC

the investment cooperation agreement dated 11
July 2017 entered into between Yihai Shanghai and
Xinpai Shanghai in relation to the formation of the
Joint Venture

Jianyang City Jingyuan Investment Co., Ltd.* (f§
BhEFRREARLDTE), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on 13 March 2009, which
is held as to 68% by Mr. Zhang and Ms. Shu
(the Controlling Shareholders), 32% by Mr. Shi
Yonghong (the executive Director) and his wife

Fuhai (Shanghai) Food Technology Co., Ltd.* (B&&
(£38) &a@RHE AR F), a company incorporated
in the PRC and a 60% owned subsidiary of the
Company
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“Latest
Practicable
Date”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules’

“Macau”

“Master Sales
Agreement”

“Model Code”

“Nomination
Committee”

“Non-competition
Undertaking”

“Prospectus”

“Remuneration
Committee”

“Renminbi” or
“RMB”

9 April 2020, being the latest practicable date prior
to the printing of this annual report for the purpose
of ascertaining the information contained herein

13 July 2016, the date on which the Shares were
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the
PRC

the master sales agreement dated 24 June 20186,
entered into among Yihai Shanghai, Sichuan
Haidilao and Singapore Haidilao, each for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries, in relation to
the supply of Haidilao Customized Products and
Haidilao Retail Products by the Group to the
Haidilao Group

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules

the nomination committee of the Board

the non-competition undertaking entered into
between the Company and the Controlling

Shareholders on 25 June 2016

the prospectus being issued by the Company on
30 June 2016

the remuneration committee of the Board

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC
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BE

“RSU”

“RSU Scheme”

“Second
Supplemental
Master Sales
Agreement”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”

“Shuhai Sales
Agreement”

“Shuhai Supply
Chain”

EREKRERAERA S

the restricted share units granted to RSU
participants pursuant to the RSU Scheme

the RSU scheme approved and adopted by the
Company on 24 February 2016 for the grant of
RSUs to RSU participants, a summary of the
principal terms of which is set forth in the section
headed “Appendix IV - Statutory and General
Information — D. RSU Scheme” of the Prospectus

the second supplemental master sales agreement
dated 22 March 2018 entered into between
Singapore Haidilao and Yihai Shanghai to revise
certain terms of the Master Sales Agreement

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the
Company with nominal value of US$0.00001 each

shareholder(s) of the Company

the sales agreement dated 6 July 2018 entered into
between Yihai Shanghai and Shuhai Supply Chain
in relation to the sale of hot pot soup flavoring
products, hot pot dipping sauce products and
other compound condiment products by the Group
to Shuhai Supply Chain Group

Shuhai (Beijing) Supply Chain Management
Co., Ltd.* (88 (k) HHESBEEFREMETL
Fl), a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 3 June 2014 and is indirectly held
as to approximately 52.17% by the controlling
shareholders, Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu
Ping, and their associate and 24.65% by Mr. Shi
Yonghong and his wife
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“Shuhai
Warehouse

Storage Service

Agreement”

“Sichuan Haidilao”

“Sichuan Haidilao
Group”

“Singapore
Haidilao”

“Small Hotpot
Products”

“Stock Exchange’

“subsidiary” or
“subsidiaries”

“Supplemental

Master Sales
Agreement”

the warehouse storage service agreement dated 6
July 2018 entered into between Yihai Shanghai and
Shuhai Supply Chain in relation to the provision
of warehousing facilities and related services by
Shuhai Supply Chain Group to the Group

Sichuan Haidilao Catering Corporation Ltd.* (P4
JIEEHERBRHBERAF), a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC on 25
June 2009, or its predecessor, Sichuan Jianyang
Haidilao Catering Co., Ltd.* (IU)I| & &5 HEES
ZE&EREE2DF]), which was incorporated in the
PRC on 16 April 2001. Sichuan Haidilao is directly
held as to approximately 33.5% by Mr. Zhang
Yong and Ms. Shu Ping (Controlling Shareholders),
50% by Jingyuan Investment and 16% by Mr. Shi
Yonghong (the executive Director) and his wife

Sichuan Haidilao and its subsidiaries

HAI DI LAO HOLDING PTE. LTD., a private
company limited by shares incorporated in
Singapore and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Haidilao International Holding Ltd. (stock code:
6862)

the self-serving small hotpot products
manufactured and sold by the Joint Venture

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules

the supplemental master sales agreement dated
18 September 2017 entered into between Sichuan
Haidilao, Singapore Haidilao and Yihai Shanghai, to
regulate the sale of Small Hotpot Products by the
Group to the Haidilao Group
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BE

“Xinpai Shanghai”

“Yihai (China)”

“Yihai Shanghai”

“Youdingyou”

“ZYSP YIHAI Ltd”

“US dollars”,
“USD” or “US$”

“%!!

EREKRERAERA S

Xinpai (Shanghai) Catering Management Co.,
Ltd.* (31K (L8) ERREE AR A ), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability and
is controlled as to approximately 62.70% by Mr.
Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping, and 29.7% by Mr.
Shi Yonghong (the executive Director) and his wife

Yihai (China) Food Co., Limited (F&& ()
EmAEMR2ATE), a company with limited liability
incorporated in Hong Kong on 6 December 2013
and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

Yihai (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd. (&% ( £i8) B
PR 2 F]), a foreign investment enterprise established
in the PRC on 1 December 2014 and an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Beijing Youdingyou Catering Co., Ltd.* (1t {ES&
BEEGIRMER DT, (formerly known as Beijing
Youdingyou Catering Management Co., Ltd.*). a
company with limited liability incorporated in the
PRC on 30 July 2012, which is indirectly held as to
approximately 31.76% by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms.
Shu Ping, 15.71% by Mr. Shi Yonghong and his
wife and 0.86% by Mr. Gou Yiqun

a business company with limited liability
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 10
October 2013, one of the Controlling Shareholders

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the
United States

percentage
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Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman)
Ms. Dang Chunxiang

Mr. Sun Shengfeng

Ms. Shu Ping

Mr. Guo Qiang ®ete

Non-executive Director
Mr. Zhang Yong
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Ka Chi
Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

Mr. Yau Ka Chi (Chairman)
Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

Ms. Ye Shujun (Chairman)
Ms. Shu Ping
Mr. Qian Mingxing

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman)
Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

Note 1: Mr. Guo Qiang has been appointed as an executive Director with effect

from 26 March 2019.
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Corporate Information

REEH

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BtE N B HE

Mr. Sun Shengfeng FEslE St

Ms. Chan Yin Wah BREEL L

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES ERERE

Mr. Sun Shengfeng Bl xE

Ms. Chan Yin Wah BPREELL

AUDITOR %M
PricewaterhouseCoopers EOFKEET RIS
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor S HEET AR L B Fia B FE % ZET
LEGAL ADVISER EEER

Davis Polk & Wardwell EERBEMSBA
REGISTERED OFFICE MR R

P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way Hibiscus Way

802 West Bay Road 802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman Grand Cayman

KY1 - 1205 Cayman Islands KY1—1205 Cayman Islands
CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS A R ARED

1st and 2nd Floors, Building 6 E

Songlei Office Building, Heng Song Yuan kRm

Middle Road of South 3rd Ring Road EEEMZRTE

Fengtai District ENENREEFE

Beijing, PRC 6IRIE1E R 21E
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG FEETEER S

40th Floor, Sunlight Tower BBET

No. 248 Queen’s Road East ERKER2485%

WanChai, Hong Kong &m0 4048

10 EBEBZERAERAT Yiha International Holding Ltd.



HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

T: +86-10-57423508
E: tzzgx@yihchina.com

WEBSITE
www.yihchina.com

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1579
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(RMB’000) (AR®FT)
Twelve months ended 31 December
HZ12831AL12HA
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20164 20154
Revenue N 4282488 2,681,373 1,646,221 1,088,014 847,339
Gross Profit e 1,641,400 1,038,897 611,806 416,942 294,233
Profit before income tax BRETIERA0ER 1,093,620 730,501 369,080 255,089 166,920
Profit for the period HRaA 795,005 547,904 261,090 186,720 124,547
Profit attributable to: BT AL EEAEER
- Owners of the Company o YNGiEZ=PN 718,634 517,793 260,670 186,720 124,547
(RMB’ 000) (AR®FT)
Twelve months ended 31 December
HZ12831AL12HA
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20165 20154
Non-current assets FRBEEAE 957,764 580,875 288,071 165,874 136,089
Current assets FBERELE 2,353,987 1,881,164 1,518,620 1,257,792 453,275
Total Asset BEARE 3,311,751 2,462,039 1,806,691 1,423,666 589,364
Equity attributable to RDRIRA AELES
owners of the company 2,613,849 2,005,190 1,501,389 1,266,205 141,924
Total Equity e r] 2,728,147 2,039,721 1,505,809 1,266,205 141,924
Non-current liabilities FRBEERE 26,742 = = — 186,667
Current liabilities REBEELE 556,862 422,318 300,882 157,461 260,773
Total liabilities SEAE 583,604 422,318 300,882 157,461 447,440
Total equity and liabilities REREELR 3,311,751 2,462,039 1,806,691 1,423,666 589,364

EREKRERAERA S



In 2019, the development of the global economy remained
sophisticated with increasing sources of instability and risks.
However, the overall economy of China managed to be stable, while
facing significant increases in both domestic and overseas risks and
challenges, and grew steadily while achieving reasonable growth
in quantity and steady improvement in quality. Among other things,
the consumption remained the main driver of the economic growth.
Leveraging on the rising consumption power, optimizing consumption
structure, expanding consumption sectors, improving consumption
environment and growing willingness for consumption, China’s
economy was driven to develop in a high-quality manner.

Although the global economic situation was complicated and
uncertain, the Group has continued to record a growth in its business
performance during the year. The Group recorded a sales revenue of
RMB4,282.5 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 59.7% and
a net profit of RMB795 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 45.1%, while the profit attributable to owners of the Company
increased by 38.8% to RMB718.6 million.

In 2019, the Group had been intensifying organizational reforms.
The vitality of the Company was stimulated through further exploring
potentials of our personnel, thereby enabling the organization to operate
more in line with the current development strategy of the Company and
resulting in a boost in operational efficiency. In respect of technology
innovation and product research and development, we continued to
reinforce the building of our research and development team with
an effort to strengthen our research and development capability
to launch new products continuously. Meanwhile, we commenced
the establishment of supply chain overseas to gradually expand to
overseas markets. We emphasized on solidifying our foundation on one
hand and exploring with innovation on the other hand, which allowed
the Company to strengthen its core competitiveness while achieving
rapid growth.
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EERBEE

We continued to optimize the organizational structure of the Company
and actively innovated and regularly improved the incentive mechanism
for our personnel which aligns with the Company’s characteristics.
For the sales system, we introduced “Partner Fission” system based
on the existing “Partner” incentive mechanism in 2019. Relying on
the “apprenticeship system”, through binding interests of groups of
partners to motivate sales partners to train up outstanding apprentice
partners and thus sharing benefits and creating greater values
together. We have also been improving and optimizing the competitive
mechanism of the sale system to better motivate those excellent
partners. The “Partner” incentive mechanism grants partners with
abundant resources to exercise their powers, thereby increasing the
sustainable supply of talents in the sales team and stimulating the
vitality as well as the creativity of the team.

In 2019, in relation to our research and development system, we
reorganized our original product research and development department
into certain product development studios, whereby each team leader
was able to conduct new product development with their respective
teammates. We also optimized the functions of strategic research and
development department as well as established an institute to construct
and improve our research and development capability comprehensively
not only at product level but also in terms of raw material, process
technology and production facilities.

We continued to focus on upgrading products of core categories as
well as developing new products. Hot pot soup flavoring products
and Chinese-style compound condiment products remain as our title
merchandise, while convenient ready-to-eat food products gain strong
favor from customers through constant optimization of the products.
We also pay close attention to the pursuit of health and nutrition by
consumers. In this regard, the Company conducted a case study on
“clean labels” in 2019 and we started to identify more natural ways
of seasoning and committed to simplifying the ingredient list. We
will continue to develop new products satisfying both the young and
international consumers’ preference nowadays, as well as fulfilling
the upgrading consumption trend. During the year, the Company
developed 42 new products in total.
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Notwithstanding the overall slowdown in the world economy, we have
been adhering to the goal of internationalization with an aim to provide
our consumers with more satisfactory products and achieve the
mission of “Easy & Tasty” which we have been pursuing. In 2019, we
commenced the establishment of our supply chain to overseas markets
such as Malaysia, where we have newly set up a joint venture plant,
and actively promoted commercial negotiation with other overseas
outsourced processing factories. We believe that during the course of
international expansion, we will be able to enrich our product mix and
enhance the communication capability of our brand. Going through
such expansion will also allow us to process product research and
development by regions and adjust the taste of our products according
to the local eating habits.

We would like to express our sincere gratitude to all of our staff,
shareholders, customers and business partners for their years-long
support to our Group that enables its business continuous growth
and success. Looking forward to 2020, there may be more challenges
ahead of us; however, we will make quick changes to adapt to the
new environment and grasp emerging opportunities to constantly
break the record high. We will continue to uphold our core value of
“change our future with our own hands” and all staff will also work hard
with innovative ideas to offer a wider range of quality products to our
consumers, as well as create greater value for our Shareholders.
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In 2019, despite the challenges of rising domestic and external risks,
the national economy of China remained stable in overall operation,
while the quality of development improved steadily and major
anticipated targets were achieved above expectation. Consumption
as a major driving force of economic growth was further reinforced,
and the total expenditure of consumption contributed 57.8% to GDP
growth, 26.6 percentage points higher than the total amount of capital
formation. The consumption of residents continued to upgrade with
enhanced quality. Meanwhile, the percentage of online consumption in
the total retail amount of private consumption increased further. Under
the policies of continuous implementation of reforms and innovation,
deepening of supply-side structural reforms, improvement in business
environment, and large-scale reduction in taxes and fees, the vitality
of market players was stimulated continuously. In 2019, the revenue
size of the catering market continued growing steadily, and the general
trend of the condiment industry also continued to improve.

In 2019, the Group’s major businesses focused on continuous
development of domestic and international sales channels, enhancing
sales capabilities of channels, improving and enhancing the internal
incentive mechanism continuously, as well as supplementing and
optimizing the supply capabilities persistently. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the revenue of the Group was RMB4,282.5
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 59.7%; net profit was
RMB795.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 45.1%.

In respect of the establishment of third-party sales channels,
benefiting from the continuous development and penetration in both
domestic and international markets, effective incentives for internal
sales personnel, and increased importance on the satisfaction level
of external distributors and point-of-sales services, the revenue from
distributors continued to record rapid growth. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group’s distributors had covered 31 provincial regions in China,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan, as well as 49 overseas countries and
regions.
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For sales through e-commerce, the Group’s self-operated flagship
store was a major base for interactions of brands. Through featured
promotional activities at various marketing events, the Group’s brand
image was enhanced among consumers. Further, through continuous
improvement in the efficiency of delivery services and consumer
experience, loyalty of users was enhanced. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the amount of online sales of the Group increased
by 26.4% year-on-year from RMB217.4 million in 2018 to RMB274.9
million.

In terms of products, motivated by the “product-based system”, the
Group continued to increase the number of new products launched
during the period, and developed 42 new products in 2019. Based
on the existing three major categories of products, namely hot pot
condiments, Chinese-style compound condiments and convenient
ready-to-eat food products, new product categories were actively
developed.

Regarding staff incentives, the Group continued to actively innovate
the incentive system in line with its own features, and introduced
“Partner Fission” in sales in 2019 for the purpose of resolving the
problems of talent bottlenecks and extended motivation in deepening
the development of sales channels. The details on competition and
elimination mechanism among partners were amended during the
second half of the year. The incentive mechanism continued optimizing
and further enhanced the execution and sales motivation of sales staff.

In terms of product sales to related parties, the Group continued to
support the products of “Thousand People Thousand Flavors” for
promotions in hot pot restaurants of Haidilao during 2019. In line with
the overseas development of Haidilao restaurants, hot pot flavorings
suitable for local requirements were developed. Moreover, the Group
also continued developing and innovating hot pot flavorings with
various local features and flavors according to the trend of consumer
tastes.
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For the purpose of replenishing and optimizing the supply capacity, the
Group continued expanding production capacity in line with the market
demand and requirements of its own development in 2019. The south
workshop in Phase | of the new production base in Bazhou, Hebei
Province, formally commenced operation in September 2019. The
north workshop in Phase | of the Bazhou base was expected to be fully
completed and commence operation before August 2020. The Phase Il
of the new production base located in Maanshan, Anhui Province, was
under preliminary planning and prepared to enter the civil construction
stage. During the period, the Group signed a land transfer agreement
in Luohe, Henan Province, and construction works of the construction
project of the Luohe production base commenced during the second
half of 2019. The successive construction and operation of the new
plants were expected to alleviate the pressure on production capacity
utilization rate brought by the rapid development of the Group’s
business.

In 2019, although trade negotiations between China and United States
had brought plenty of uncertainties to the global market, with slower
global economic growth and new downside pressure on the economy,
in general, the national economy of China was operating steadily, and
the development of major anticipated targets were achieved with better
performance. As the supply-side structural reforms were implemented
further, the economic structure continued optimization, income growth
of residents was higher than economic growth, and the total amount
of consumption of residents was steady with a rising trend. Under the
macro environment of continuously rising growth rate and percentage
of online retail sales, the catering and retail industries achieved stable
growth, and the growth trend of the condiments industry continued
rising. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue of the Group
was RMB4,282.5 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 59.7%;
net profit was RMB795.0 million, representing a year-on-year growth of
45.1%.

The Group continued to be the supplier of hot pot condiment products
to Haidilao Group, one of our related parties, while at the same time, it
also provided cooking condiment solutions to Chinese family cooking
customers, catering service providers and companies in the food
industry. As of 2019, the major products of the Group included hot
pot condiments, Chinese-style compound condiments and convenient
ready-to-eat food products, and major channels for third-party sales
included distributors, e-commerce and catering customers.
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Expansion and penetration of third-party channels have always
been the most important sales strategy of the Group. For actual
implementation, the Group enhanced sales through several methods
set out below, including wider coverage of more cities in China and
overseas nations, increase in the number of domestic and international
distributors, enhancement in positive brand awareness and sales
enthusiasm at the point-of-sales through “family love” measures, high
attention to the feedback from distributors on the services of internal
sales partners, and continuous optimization in the incentive mechanism
for internal sales staff.

In 2019, in order to resolve the issues of talent bottleneck and
management structure that might be encountered in the process of
channel development, we began to implement the “Partner Fission”
system based on our existing “Partner” incentive mechanism by
relying on the management relationship of the “apprenticeship
system”, but through authorizing partners to nurture assistants, such
assistants would turn into “apprentice partners”, and share the profit
of the business unit with the “master partner”. This would ensure
the continuous supply of human resources required by sustainable
development of channels, in other words, the “master partner” would
have the time and motivation to “develop business beyond the existing
areas, and develop more down-to-earth new channels”. In 2019, the
Group also developed the elimination of competition mechanism for the
sales system, that is, the “PK system”, aiming to eliminate incompetent
partners and to incentivize partners with outstanding business
development. And the “family style” was to be adopted to bundle the
internal interests of the Partner team, enhance autonomy of partners
and efficiency of achieving performance targets, and facilitate more
effective implementation of the incentive mechanism.

The “Partner” incentive mechanism was the internal sales staff incentive
mechanism adopted by the Group in early 2018. This mechanism
replaced the previous appraisal method of achieving certain percentage
of the sales target. The performance of each sales staff would be
directly linked to the profit of the business unit they are responsible for,
and sufficient authority on the right and method to use channel fees
would be conferred. Under this strategy, sales staff in the capacity of
“partners” would have more business autonomy, their passion for work
was greatly encouraged and thus growth rate of sales and utilization
efficiency of fees were also enhanced notably.
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In addition to the “Partner” incentive mechanism for internal sales,
during the first half of 2019, we established an incentive for external
distributors through enhancing the efficiency and satisfaction of
delivery service to such distributors. So far, the Group has been very
strict on the control and management of channel inventories. In order
to further refine management, and motivate distributors directly, the
Group had established six regional logistics branch storages to shorten
the goods release cycle and reduce the minimum order quantity for
distributors, so that distributors would have more flexibility in orders
and thus the purpose of reducing inventories of distributors would be
achieved, the healthy development and control of channels would be
further ensured, the production date and freshness of end products
would be effectively assured, and the display of products would have
greater competitiveness. Moreover, to further ensure the display and
sales of key accounts (KA), the Group implemented “zero inventory”
in hypermarkets that satisfied our requirements since the beginning
of the year. “Zero inventory” replaced the previous method of delivery
from distributors to key customers’ hypermarket, the goods would
be delivered directly from our branch storage to the warehouse of the
hypermarket, aiming to reduce the number of logistic nodes and save
delivery charges. While the specific distributors would be incentivized,
the freshness of the products delivered to the supermarket would be
improved.

In the development of e-commerce channel, the Group continued to
adopt the strategy of enhancing interactive experience of consumers,
using the flagship store as the major interactive base for brands,
enhancing communication among consumers, and providing more
heart touching shopping experience for consumers. During the
year, the Group formulated targeted marketing plans on different
festivals and promotional campaigns as usual, good performance was
achieved in the key sales periods, such as “New Year Goods Festival”,
“Foodaholic Festival”, “618”, “Double 11” and “Hot Pot Festival”. On
the online platforms operated by others, such as channels like JD.com
and Tmall.com, apart from participating in promotional activities of
the platforms continuously, the Group also focused on bulk purchase
sales, supplemented with free gifts and other benefits, to enhance the
experience and sales at the e-commerce platforms of major customers.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had 5 flagship stores
on e-commerce platforms such as Tmall.com and JD.com. The sales
revenue of the Group from e-commerce channels was RMB274.9
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 26.4%.
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For sales to related parties (referring to Haidilao Group and its
associated companies), with the background of stable growth in the
catering industry and the hot pot catering consumption market in
China, the catering business with Haidilao Group recorded continuous
and stable growth during the year. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the revenue from sales to related parties of the Group was
RMB1,663.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 41.4% as
compared to 2018.

In 2019, the Group continued to adopt the multi-brand strategy
implemented since last year and optimized the mix of brands
continuously, and motivated staff to develop more new products to
satisfy market demand under the “project-based system for products”.
Meanwhile, we improved the formulae and upgraded the packaging of
existing core products in order to reinforce the market leading position
of core products. For the year ended 31 December 2019, new products
of the Company included 8 Chinese-style compound condiment
products, 7 hot pot condiment products, 2 self-serving small hot pot
products, 3 self-serving rice products, 4 ready-to-eat sauce products,
4 snack products and 14 standardized catering pack products.

The “project-based system for products” was a research and
development strategy for new products implemented by the Group
since 2018. Under this incentive-based mechanism, relying on the
Group’s strong research and development platform and supporting
channels, the staff might form a team to propose innovative new
products, and the development project of such new product would be
completed by the team throughout the whole process from proposal
to market launch. After the project was launched into the market and
received earnings, the project team would immediately receive the
corresponding rewards. This policy provided opportunities for all staff
to develop new products, enhanced the development efficiency of
new products and the motivation of staff in exploring the markets.
At present, the mechanism is operating well, and the number of new
products launched in the market also increased during the period.
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On the portfolio of retail products, during the year, the Group had
different numbers of new product innovations in three existing
categories, and enhanced the sales of new products through various
marketing means along with various seasonal themes and promotional
campaigns. Apart from the crawfish condiment and the “Haohao
Chifan (37" #R)” sauce for rice which were promoted as key products
during the first half of the year, the Group launched the butter hot pot
soup flavoring and self-serving small hot pot product series as key
promotions with the theme of “happy gathering moments in eating hot
pot (EREZEFZIMZ K $8)” from September to December, and received
encouraging response in the market during the peak season of demand
for hot pot related products.

For hot pot soup flavoring products of related parties, in addition to
continuous promotion of hot pot soup flavorings under the “Thousand
People Thousand Flavors” series during the first half of 2019, the Group
also upgraded a number of hot pot soup flavorings in line with feedback
from consumers, and cooperated in the research and development of a
number of new hot pot soup flavorings.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had a total of 61 hot pot
condiment products, 37 Chinese-style compound condiment products
and 12 convenient ready-to-eat food products.

The table below sets forth the data on the Group’s revenue, sales

volume and average selling price by product categories and distribution
channels for the periods as indicated:
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For the year ended 31 December

BZ12R31ALEE
2019 2018
20195 20185
Average Average
selling selling
Sales price per kg Sales  price perkg
Revenue volume EAF  Revenue volume UV
LON #E  THER KA HE  THUER
(RMB’000) (tonnes) (RMB)  (RMB’000) (tonnes) (RMB)
(AR&TR) (B) (ARMR) (ARETR) ) (ABER)
Hot pot condiments® P& Eal3
Third parties E=yl 1,221,033 42,311 289 812,217 28,153 28.9
Related parties [y 1,592,331 65,666 242 1143243 43,772 26.1
Subtotal NG 2,813,364 107,977 26.1 1,955,520 71,925 27.2
Chinese-style compound condiments? P SRR
Third parties $£=F 345,477 13,775 25.1 228,731 8,851 258
Related parties B 49,468 2,075 238 26,784 963 278
Subtotal NG 394,945 15,850 249 255,515 9,814 26.0
Convenient ready-to-eat food products® HERRC
Third parties $£=F 978,475 22817 429 444,569 10,749 414
Related parties B 20,492 519 39.5 4,704 89 52.9
Subtotal NG 998,967 23,336 428 449,273 10,838 415
Others* Hipw 75,212 13,081 5.7 21,065 2,985 7.1
Total @t 4,282,488 160,244 26.7 2,681,373 95,562 28.1

FERSE
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1) Mainly including the Group’s sales of hot pot soup flavorings and hot

pot dipping sauce products

2 Mainly including the Group’s sales of Chinese-style compound
condiments and ready-to-eat sauce products

(©)] Mainly including the Group’s sales of self-serving small hot pot and self-

serving rice products

(4) Mainly including the Group’s sales of snack food, raw materials such as

soya bean oil, golden popcorn and snail rice noodle.

The table below sets forth the revenue of the Company in absolute
terms and the percentage in the total revenue of the Company by
product categories for the periods as indicated:
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For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184

% of % of

RMB’ 000 revenue RMB’ 000 revenue

ARETT HBRANESL AR®BTR HBAB2L

Revenue from hot pot condiments K BFARRIA 2,813,364 65.7% 1,955,520 72.9%
Revenue from Chinese-style FREE TR

compound condiments 394,945 9.2% 255,515 9.5%

Revenue from convenient FERERBA

ready-to-eat food products 998,967 23.3% 449,273 16.8%

Other revenue Hy A 75,212 1.8% 21,065 0.8%

Total revenue FAI PN 4,282 488 100.0% 2,681,373 100.0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the three major product
categories of the Group were hot pot condiments, Chinese-style
compound condiments and convenient ready-to-eat food products,
realized faster growth as compared to the full year of 2018. As at 31
December 2019, new products of the Company included 8 Chinese-
style compound condiment products, 7 hot pot condiment products,
2 self-serving small hot pot products, 3 self-serving rice products, 4
ready-to-eat sauce products, 4 snack products and 14 standardized
catering pack products. As at 31 December 2019, the Company had
a total of 61 hot pot condiment products, 37 Chinese-style compound
condiment products and 12 convenient ready-to-eat food products.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by 59.7% from RMB2,681.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB4,282.5 million for the
year of 2019.

Revenue by product

2019
20194

3
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For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE

2018
20184

% of revenue % of revenue

Revenue from hot pot Revenue  from hot pot
(RMB'000) condiments  (RMB'000)  condiments
L ONIREPE 3 YN YS :El v
(AR#®Fx) WBANESR (ARETR) WABEAH

Revenue from hot pot condiments KB BLE BB
Revenue from third parties KEAFE=FBA 1,221,033 43.4% 812,277 41.5%
Revenue from related parties REBEHTWA 1,592,331 56.6% 1,143,243 58.5%
Total revenue from hot pot condiments X #5358 ik 1 2 5 42T\ 2,813,364 100.0% 1,955,520 100.0%
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Revenue from hot pot condiment products increased by 43.9%
from RMB1,955.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMB2,813.4 million for the year of 2019, representing 65.7% of the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019. Of it, the revenue from
sales of hot pot condiment products to related parties increased by
39.3%, revenue from sales of hot pot condiment products to third
parties increased by 50.3%. The growth of revenue from sales of hot
pot soup condiment products to related parties was mainly influenced
by, among other factors, the stable growth of the performance results
of Haidilao and the growth in the number of its restaurants. As the
Group further refined the management of third-party distributor
channels in 2019, innovation of the incentive-based mechanism for
internal sales staff, development of lower-tier sales regions, effective
innovation of channel marketing, and enhancement in efficiency of
terminal points of sales, together with the launching of new products,
the growth of sales to third parties continued to record a rapid increase.

AIBFARBERFIBRABHBZ2018F
12B831HIELEEMNARYE1,955.558 T
#IN43.9% Z2019FEWAR2,813.4
BET  E8ZE2019F12A31BLEEE
WAKIG5.7% - Heh » BB S HENX
BERERWAERI.3% > BE=FH
HEXBAKBERWALRS50.3% °

I‘JI%% BAEEXIBAKNERBAER

EXIBREXEREEE BB
}_‘_giiiiﬁzéjj_ﬁsva [‘L%ﬁ’glﬁ
2019 HE=SKHBREEENE

— R REPEEASRBE SRR
o ﬁ‘é%EiEJZE’JTiﬂ  REEHENAN
Al URARIREHFEENRNER
Eﬂut%ﬁéunﬂ’ﬁ&tﬂ BE=HHEEE

FEFSRREER

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
% of % of
revenue revenue
from from
Chinese-style Chinese-style
compound compound
Revenue  condiments Revenue condiments
(RMB’000)  {EHFXES (RMB’000)  {5H#EA
'O NI 173 T ON KA FARERA
(NREF) Batt (AR%Tr) BAL
Revenue from Chinese-style PR EESTRBIEA
compound condiments
Revenue from third parties REE=FWA 345,477 87.5% 228,731 89.5%
Revenue from related parties REBBHBRA 49,468 12.5% 26,784 10.5%
Total revenue from Chinese-style =1 & Fmk BHEAIKN
compound condiments 394,945 100.0% 255,515 100.0%
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Revenue from Chinese-style compound condiments increased by
54.6% from RMB255.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB394.9 million for the year of 2019, representing 9.2% of the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019. Of it, the revenue
from sales of Chinese-style compound condiments to related parties
increased by 84.7%, and revenue from sales of Chinese-style
compound condiments to third parties increased by 51.0%. In respect
of sales to related parties, the Group continued to supply products
and services to some of the catering customers in the Shuhai Supply
Chain. The Group continued to improve existing individual products
with strong performance, researched and developed new products
satisfying the trend of market tastes, and conducted marketing
activities by combining with product features and market positioning,
so that sales of Chinese-style compound condiments to third parties
continued to record a delightful growth.
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For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BILEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
% of % of
revenue revenue
from from
convenient convenient
ready-to-eat ready-to-eat
food food
Revenue products Revenue products
(RMB’000) LHAE (RMB’000) HAE
[ON BREM LN RREM
(AR®EFxE) WBANEAR (AR®ETR) WABSH
Revenue from convenient FEEREEREA
ready-to-eat food products
Revenue from third parties REE=HKA 978,475 97.9% 444 569 99.0%
Revenue from related parties R BB A 20,492 2.1% 4,704 1.0%
Total revenue from convenient FEERERBIAN
ready-to-eat food products 998,967 100.0% 449,273 100.0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, convenient ready-to-eat
products continued to record a faster growth. The Group kept on
improving and upgrading the self-serving products, not only the
materials of external packing box and the cutlery bag were upgraded,
three different flavors of self-serving rice products and two self-
serving small hot pot products were also launched. Benefiting from
the persistent development of lower-tier distributor channels, the
continuous expansion of new channels such as convenience stores,
train stations and scenic sightseeing locations, cooperation with some
cinemas and advertising media during the first half of the year to place
pre-movie advertising and print advertisements on buildings, and
promotional plans on various festivals, the revenue from this category
of products recorded a persistent delightful growth rate. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, revenue from convenient ready-to-eat
food products increased by 122.3% from RMB449.3 million in 2018
to RMB999.0 million, representing 23.3% of the revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Revenue by distribution network

HZE2019F12A31BHLEFEE  HFEHE
RERBFESBERER  AEBIFE
HEMRBRERETELLAR  TEAK
TEENEMEUREBEE  EHEHT
ZSRAEORNBMBKEER R
MEMEBNKBHF G - SEREHEEBER
BEREFETR  URHIMERE - AE
U IRESMEFRENFEER U
REL¥FHRETHERBESEES
B ETTEEMANEFTEESE
g MBFEEGAEHETS  HENER
WABFEBESEALR - HE2019F
12A31ALLFE FERREMBAR
2018 F FEMARBE449.3FE TIE M
122.3% ZEARMI99.0HETT - HEZE
201912 A31 HILFE WA #23.3%

BEHARE T HBA

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31BILEE
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
(RMB’000) revenue (RMB’000) revenue
LON el ON ON GECTON
(AR#F ) Bolk (AR®ETR) BALk
Related party customers Gl
Haidilao Group and its affiliates BEEEEREBEE AT 1,663,171 38.8% 1,176,095 43.9%
Third party customers E=AER
Distributors =[] 2,304,284 53.8% 1,263,248 471%
E-commerce EB 274,917 6.4% 217,398 8.1%
Others Hit
Third party catering enterprises F=REREHE 12,638 0.3% 21,597 0.8%
One-off sales activities —RMHEETE 27,478 0.6% 3,035 0.1%
Total revenue FAI PN 4,282 488 100.0% 2,681,373 100.0%
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With continuous stable growth and upgrading of consumption in the
Chinese hot pot catering industry, the sales amount of the Company
from Haidilao catering business recorded a stable growth persistently
in 2019. Benefiting from continuous rapid growth in the number of
Haidilao restaurants, the sales revenue of the Group from sales to
related parties (mainly referring to the Haidilao Group) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was RMB1,663.2 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 41.4%.

For sales revenue of third-party distributors, through the Group’s
continuous development of lower-tier distribution network and
increased density of points of sales, improvement to the incentive
mechanism of internal sales, and enhancement of service quality to
gain distributors’ satisfaction, the overall product sales capabilities was
boosted constantly. Also, new channels were created by combining
with product features to strengthen the channel development potential.
In e-commerce, while the advantages of flagship stores continued
to take effect, by leveraging on the strong online platforms, such as
Tmall.com and JD.com, the amount of sales maintained a fast growth.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, sales revenue from sales to
distributors was RMB2,304.3 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 82.4%; sales revenue from e-commerce channel was
RMB274.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 26.4%;

Revenue by geographic region

The table below sets forth the revenue by geographic regions of the
Company for the periods as indicated:
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For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BILEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
% of total % of total
(RMB’000) revenue  (RMB’000) revenue
(AEBFx) HBAESRE (ARETR) HUBABDE
Northern China® 48] 1,924,586 44.9% 1,339,493 50.0%
Southern China® RO 2,199,216 51.4% 1,255,998 46.8%
Overseas markets BT 158,686 3.7% 85,882 3.2%
Total Bt 4,282,488 100.0% 2,681,373 100.0%
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(5) Including Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning, Inner Mongolia, Beijing, Tianjin,
Hebei, Shandong, Shanxi, Henan, Ningxia, Shaanxi, Gansu, Qinghai,
Xinjiang and Tibet.

6) Including Jiangsu, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi, Fujian, Hubei,
Hunan, Guangdong, Chongqging, Guizhou, Guangxi, Sichuan, Yunnan
and Hainan.

Cost of sales
The Group’s cost of sales, including raw materials, employee benefit
expenses, depreciation and amortization and utilities, increased by

60.8% from RMB1,642.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB2,641.1 million for the same period of 2019.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

B EE -

(5) BEERET &M EE - ARL -
Bl A== S AN TTE - IT:i: |
MEE - -RE--HE 58 HE
K

6) BEI&H L& I 28 T
BBt BERCE
B8N &AW EFkEE -

SHERA

TEBNHEERKT (BEEME - EE
A WERBHERAASEH)H
HZE2018FE12A31HLEEEMARK
1,642 5B TIEN60.8% Z2019FEH
AR¥26411HETT ©

EFREBFE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BILLEE
2019 2018
2019 20185

Gross profit Gross profit

Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin

E7 EFES EF ER=

RMB’ 000 % RMB’000 %

ARETR % ARBTR %

Hot pot condiments P&EL S 1,116,862 39.7% 768,809 39.3%

Third parties E= 678,812 55.6% 455,567 56.1%

Related parties o)y 438,050 27.5% 313,242 27.4%
Chinese-style compound 18 &R

condiments 185,178 46.9% 125,423 49.1%

Third parties E= 172,569 50.0% 117,592 51.4%

Related parties )y 12,609 25.5% 7,831 29.2%

Convenient ready-to-eat food FEER 326,855 32.7% 138,715 30.9%

Third parties E= 319,616 32.7% 136,927 30.8%

Related parties o)y 7,239 35.3% 1,788 38.0%

Others HE 12,505 16.6% 5,950 28.2%

Total st 1,641,400 38.3% 1,038,897 38.7%
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The Group’s gross profit increased by 58.0% from RMB1,038.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB1,641.4 million for the
same period of 2019, and the gross profit margin decreased from
38.7% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 38.3% for the same
period of 2019. The slight decrease in gross profit margin was mainly
due to the significant increase in percentage of revenue contributed by
sales of convenient ready-to-eat food products with lower gross profit
margin as compared to the same period last year.

Distribution Expenses

The Group’s distribution expenses increased by 58.7% from RMB241.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB383.3 million
for the same period of 2019. The Group’s distribution expenses as a
percentage of the Group’s revenue was 9.0% in 2019, the same as in
whole year 2018. The increase in distribution expenses was mainly due
to the establishment of some branch storages that led to an increase in
warehousing and transportation costs in order to enhance cooperation
with distributors.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 62.7% from
RMB163.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB265.6
million for the same period of 2019. The Group’s administrative
expenses as a percentage of the Group’s revenue slightly increased
from 6.1% in 2018 to 6.2% in 2019. The increase in administrative
expenses was mainly due to the overly burdensome preliminary
expenses incurred in preparation for the construction of Bazhou
factory, Maanshan Phase Il factory, Luohe factory and Malaysia factory,
and the increase in administrative expenses as a result of business
development.

Other Income and gains

The Group’s net amount of other income and gains decreased by
8.4% from RMB86.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMB79.0 million for the same period of 2019, mainly due to the amount
of exchange gain from the appreciation of Hong Kong dollar decreased
as compared to the same period of 2018.
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Finance Income - net

The Group’s net amount of finance income increased by 118.8% from
RMB10.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB22.1
million of net finance income for the same period of 2019, mainly due
to the increase of interest income on bank savings.

Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit before income tax
increased by 49.7% from RMB730.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB1,093.6 million for the same period of 2019.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense increased by 63.5% from RMB182.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB298.6 million for
the same period of 2019. The effective tax rate increased from 25.0%
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 27.3% for the corresponding
period in 2019, mainly due to withholding tax on the dividend
distribution by one of our subsidiaries in Mainland China to its sole
shareholder in Hong Kong, also a subsidiary of the Company, in 2019.

Net Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, net profit of the Group increased by
45.1% from RMB547.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB795.0 for the same period of 2019. Basic earnings per share
increased from RMB0.534 for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMBO0.741 for the same period of 2019. Net profit margin decreased
from 20.4% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 18.6% for the
same period of 2019.

Capital Liquidity and Financial Resources

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s operations were
mainly funded by cash generated from operating activities. The Group
intended to utilize internal resources to provide funds for its business
operations and expansion through organic growth and sustainable
development.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
mainly composed of Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.
Cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB1,036.4
million (31 December 2018: RMB1,179.9 million).

Asset-Liability Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s asset-liability ratio” was 17.6%
(31 December 2018: 17.2%), and the increase was mainly due to the
increase of lease liabilities, as well as other payables and accruals. The
Group did not have any bank borrowings.

Note:

(7)  The asset-liability ratio is calculated by dividing total liabilities as at the
end of each financial period by total assets.

Inventories

Inventories mainly include raw materials and finished goods. As at 31
December 2019, the inventories amounted to approximately RMB297.3
million (31 December 2018: RMB275.8 million), the turnover days of
inventories decreased from 46.4 days for the year ended 31 December
2018 to 39.1 days for the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease
in turnover days of inventories was mainly due to the Group’s enhanced
efficiency of inventory control.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables represent the amounts due from customers in
respect of sales of goods in the ordinary course of business. As at 31
December 2019, the trade receivables amounted to approximately
RMB269.2 million (31 December 2018: RMB206.9 million). The change
was mainly due to an increase in sales by the Group to related parties
and certain third parties (such as e-commerce distributor clients) in
2019. The turnover days of trade receivables decreased from 22.7 days
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 20.0 days for 2019.
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Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Due
to the cyclical effects of low and peak seasons for production and
sales and the seasonal procurement cycle, trade payables amounted
to approximately RMB217.4 million as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: RMB188.7 million). The turnover days of trade
payables decreased from 35.6 days for the year ended 31 December
2018 to 27.7 days for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not have any contingent
liabilities.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not charge any fixed assets
as securities for borrowings.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not have any bank
borrowings.

Debt-to-Equity Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the debt-to-equity ratio® of the Company
was 1.4%.

Note:

(8) Debt-to-equity ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total equity.
Total debt is defined as including interest-bearing liabilities which are not
incurred during the ordinary course of business.

Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB. However, the Group has certain cash
in hand denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars,
and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risks. The Group has
not hedged against its foreign exchange risks. However, the Group
will closely monitor the exposure and will take specific measures when
necessary to make sure the foreign exchange risks are manageable
and within control.
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 1,907 employees
(including temporary workers), comprising 1,413 employees in
production, 358 employees in marketing and 136 employees in
administration and management functions.

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s total
staff costs amounted to RMB453.6 million, including salaries, wages,
allowances, benefits and costs of equity incentive plans. The Group
continued to optimize the incentive-based system in line with business
development needs and implemented remuneration policies with
competitiveness.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

Industry and Business Outlook

The growth of global economies and world trade has slowed down
at the moment, with increased sources of volatility and points of
risks. In the domestic economy, the issues of structural, systematic
and cyclical intertwined with each other, and downside pressure on
the economy remained intense. Meanwhile, due to the impact of the
novel coronavirus outbreak, the year of 2020 is expected to face a
challenging downside trend in the consumer market, and the economy
will be subject to short-term pains and challenges, but the long-term,
the optimistic development trend for the PRC economy as a whole will
remain unchanged. Faced with this new situation, it is believed that
the PRC government will adopt measures to stabilize growth, facilitate
development, turn risks into opportunities and continue to go forward.
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In 2020, the Group will continue to place strategic focus on product
development, channel building, terminal marketing, overseas expansion
and replenishing supplies.

In respect of product development, the Group will continue to adopt
multi-brand segments in application scenarios and product categories,
and the slogan “enjoy good taste at leisure” (ZEMKZEER) will be
used as the theme for creating products, brands and corporate image.
Through innovation in product mix, the scope of business will be
widened further. The categories of hot pot condiments, Chinese-style
compound condiments, convenient ready-to-eat food and snack food
products will continue to evolve with new generations. While reinforcing
the existing market positions for popular individual products, the Group
will exercise its research and development and market exploration
capabilities to enrich the product matrix. In the development of new
products, we will continue to utilize the incentive strategy of “project-
based system for products”, and introduce different new products with
unique local flavors and foreign styles. The market exit system will be
strictly enforced to adjust the product mix in a timely manner, large-
scale individual products will be developed, and non-performing goods
will be removed to enhance the comprehensive competitiveness of the
products.

In respect of channel building, the Group will continue optimizing and
developing lower-tier sales channels actively through organic growth
and outward expansion development strategies, strengthen terminal
sales capabilities and develop brand new model for channels to
enhance the Group’s market share and industry position constantly.
Meanwhile, the staff incentive policies will be enhanced and improved
continuously to encourage internal sales staff and external distributors
in a practical manner, increase the density of points of sales and
enhance the sales efficiency. In respect of e-commerce platform, the
focus will continue to be enhancing consumer experience, improving
sales efficiency and brand image of the e-commerce platform
constantly.

In respect of terminal marketing, the Group will continue to carry
out online and offline promotions actively, using “family love” as the
management theme for providing services to distributors and points of
sales, enhance the fees utilization efficiency, and optimize the terminal
sales efficiency. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to refine the
cooperation relationship with distributors, by utilizing branch storages
in multiple areas to improve delivery efficiency and implement “zero
inventory” measures, channel space and distributor potential will be
extracted practically and effectively.
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In respect of overseas business, the Group has basically completed the
establishment of a number of overseas branch companies. In 2020, the
Group anticipates that more foreign trade products will be produced
by overseas contracting plants, and investment in the construction of
overseas factories will be pursued actively, with a view to gradually
establishing a stable production capacity to supply overseas products.
This will not only reduce transportation costs and enhance the flexibility
of product mix, but will also facilitate the regional adjustment of product
flavors and the research and development of localized products.

In respect of supply chain, several domestic plants of the Group in
China will be completed and will commence production in the next few
years. It is expected that we will continue to invest in lean production
as well as research and development of equipment automation.

Material Investments and Prospects

In order to ease the pressure from a continuously increasing production
capacity utilization rate, the Group mainly adopted the following
measures in 2019:

Firstly, the construction project of the south workshop in Bazhou
Phase | located in Hebei Province, China was basically completed,
and had formally commenced production in September 2019.
The north workshop of Bazhou Phase | is expected to commence
formal production in August 2020. The project of Bazhou Phase | is
expected to bring in more than 70,000 tonnes of production capacity
, including the special production line for developing soup flavorings
for the “Thousand People Thousand Flavors” series of Haidilao Group
restaurants and the production line for retail products of hot pot soup
flavorings. The Bazhou Phase Il project is still under the planning stage,
and is expected to be completed by the end of 2022. The project of
Bazhou factories is located at the northern China central region, which
will help the Group to control and manage logistics costs and peak
season pressure more effectively.
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Secondly, the Group entered into a land acquisition agreement with the
local government at Maanshan, Anhui Province, in August 2018. The
total planned production capacity was 150,000 tonnes, of which 60,000
tonnes of production capacity are expected to commence production
before the end of 2021, and the whole project will be completed and
commence production in 2023. As of the current date, the overall
planning of the factory has been completed, and is preparing to
enter the civil construction planning stage. The Maanshan Phase
Il project will be equipped with condiment production equipment,
quality inspection instruments and technical process at domestic
and international advanced level to enhance the Company’s overall
production line efficiency.

Thirdly, the Group entered into a land acquisition agreement with the
Linying County Government in Luohe, Henan Province, during the first
half of 2019. The Luohe production base has commenced construction
in the second half of 2019 and will commence production before the
end of 2021. The expected production capacity of Phase | will be
150,000 tonnes and the designed production capacity of Phase Il will
be 150,000 tonnes, which is expected to commence production in
2024.
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Mr. Shi Yonghong (#fi7k %), aged 50, an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company. He has been a Director of the Company
since December 2015, primarily responsible for participating in making
major decisions for the Company. He was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 7 March 2016 and the Chairman
of the Company on 14 November 2017. He was re-designated as the
executive director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 9
December 2018 and as the executive Director and Chairman of the
Company on 25 March 2020. He is responsible for formulation and
management of strategic decisions of the Company. Mr. Shi is one
of the founders of the Haidilao Group and has over 20 years of food
industry and management experience within the Haidilao Group. Mr.
Shi has held various positions at Sichuan Haidilao since April 1994.
Mr. Shi was the vice general manager at Sichuan Haidilao between
April 1994 and March 2001, before assuming the role of supervisor at
Sichuan Haidilao between April 2001 and June 2009. Since July 2009,
Mr. Shi has been a director at Sichuan Haidilao. Mr. Shi also serves
as an executive director of associates of the Company’s Controlling
Shareholders. He is currently an executive director of Haidilao
International Holding Ltd. (stock code: 6862). Mr. Shi completed his
study in mechanics at Sichuan Kongfen Group Technical School ()|
Z A T2RK) in June 1988.

Mr. Guo Qiang (3B3#), aged 51, an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 26 March 2019 and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 25 March 2020. He is primarily responsible
for implementation of Board’s strategy and management of daily
operation of the Group. Mr. Guo joined the Company since January
2016 and served as the head of sales management division of the
Company and the Company’s head of sales division in the southern
region in August 2017. In December 2018, he was appointed as
the head of marketing and sales of the Company, responsible for
the branding, sales and marketing businesses so as to optimize the
marketing system of the Company. Before joining the Company, Mr.
Guo served as a mechanical engineer of a tractor factory in Shenyang
from September 1992 to April 1997; a national sales director of Lotte
(China) Investment Co., Ltd. from May 1997 to August 2010; a sales
director of Henan Kedi Frozen Food Co., Ltd.* CAIERBHERE mA R
A7) from August 2010 to July 2013; and a sales director of national
hypermarket division of Haixin Foods Co., Ltd. from April 2014 to
December 2015. Mr. Guo graduated from Shenyang Agricultural
University in 1992 with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical design.

EENEREEEHEN

MBAEXE 508 NATHTESHR
BESTFE o WH2015F 12 B#BIEER
NFENES  TEEESHEHEHEALQT
MEERE - IKA2016FE37HEET
BARDTFEHTES  WHR2017F11 8
1ABEZEEAQNRAEEEEFE  HE
MR2018F 12 B9 A EERATAA QA AH
TESEREREHTE > WHR2020F3 A8
GSHAREHTESRESSEFE &
EARARBEEAREBBRRNEEREE o
REEABREEENAIRAZ LR
BEEEEERB20FRRTERERE
EER o B B 1994F 4 AENMIE
EBETZEBN - BEER1994F4
BZE2001 3 EFNIEREHREILE
K1 2 %2001 54 5 £20094F6 A1E
EIJIBEBES - BLEBH2009F
7TRRENIBRENES - BEETR
AATERBREBAETHAITES -
HEAASREEBREZERERLE (B
5% - 6862) WHEIITEE - ELER
198846 A A )I| 2= 5+ T 2K 58 B
WERTZ ©

WML HE > 515 ARAHTEERE
FEHITE - HN2019F3 26 A EET
AARDNTHITES » WHR2020F3 725
HEZEALRLAAEREHITE  £E8
EHTESSNER LTEEAERHF
HEE o AL N2016F1 AMART
ERBATEEEEDMAE  WHR2017F
SAEELARMEBHENMAE &N
2018F 12 A EZEE R RTHMAE
BELTANME HEFMMBEK &
HREALDBITHBAMNER - AKX
DR Al BBEER1992F9 A E1997
FAREEGHEAMBERIETERT
260 - BA1997FE5 8 £2010F8 B 1E 4%
X (FE) REEBRLATNETZEHEER
B . A2010F8 B £2013F 7 A1 A}
HRREMBERABETHELE R
2014F 4B Z2015F 12 B E B EmR
HDERATEXTZESBIBHEHE -
BEER1992FEXNBEBEEKRE
EUSHEMER AT L &1y -

39



40

EEREREEEEN

Ms. Dang Chunxiang (EZ& %), aged 47, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 9 December 2018. She has been
a Director since December 2015 and is primarily responsible for
the overall management of the Company, implementation of the
decisions of the Board. Ms. Dang has been the general manager
of Yihai Shanghai since December 2015, and was appointed as an
executive Director, the chief executive officer and general manager of
the Company on 7 March 2016. Prior to this, Ms. Dang worked as a
sales manager of Kebao Boloni Home Furnishing Co. Ltd. (RIZ &
EXREHRLQF) from August 1998 to April 2002. From May 2002 to
September 2008, she joined Beijing Yuanzhou Decoration Co., Ltd. (3t
HITMERFAPR A F)) as a manager of the kitchen cabinet department
and was later promoted to director of the home furnishing management
department. Ms. Dang was the vice general manager of Huawei Leren
(Beijing) Trading Co., Ltd. (FEE = (1bR) EZER D F), a company
engaging in construction materials trading from January 2009 to
November 2010. Ms. Dang then joined Sichuan Haidilao and served as
the head of the operations department from January 2011 to December
2014. Ms. Dang served as the head of the operations department and
a standing deputy general manager of Yihai Shanghai from December
2014 to January 2015 and from January 2015 to December 2015,
respectively. Ms. Dang completed her graduate study in business
administration at Renmin University of China (FE AR KZ) in May
2010, and completed EMBA professional programme at Guanghua
School of Management in July 2017.

Mr. Sun Shengfeng (#/51£), aged 40, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief financial officer on 7 March 2016. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing matters relating to the financial, investment and
risk management of the Company, including budgeting, disclosure and
reporting. Mr. Sun has also served as the chief financial officer of Yihai
Shanghai since August 2015. Mr. Sun served as the head of finance in
Xi’an Yingiao Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (FAZRIBEMRHLBR A 7)) from
September 2003 to August 2007. He joined Sichuan Haidilao in September
2007 and has held various positions successively: he worked as assistant
to the chief financial officer from September 2007 to November 2011, the
chief accountant from November 2011 to December 2012, deputy head
of the finance management department from December 2012 to August
2013, and deputy head of the asset management department from August
2013 to August 2015. Mr. Sun passed the self-taught higher education
examination for undergraduate study in business administration with
Xi'an University of Technology (7% ¥ T X&) and obtained a graduation
certificate in June 2009. He completed his graduate study in business
administration at Tsinghua University in September 2010, and obtained a
master’s degree in business administration at China Europe International
Business School in November 2019. He was accredited as an accountant
by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (FE A R #1
B B BUER) in May 2005.
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Ms. Shu Ping (&F ), aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 21 March 2018. She has been the director of
Sichuan Haidilao Catering Corporation Ltd.* (9)|/8K#&E &I 126 R
‘A#)) since November 2014. She is currently a non-executive director
of Haidilao International Holding Ltd. (stock code: 6862). Ms. Shu has
completed the EMBA (China) programme and the FMBA programme
run by Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in November 2015
and completed the EMBA programme run jointly by Shanghai Jiao
Tong University and Nanyang Technological University in Singapore in
July 2016. Ms. Shu is the spouse of Mr. Zhang Yong, a non-executive
director of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Yong (3R E), aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 7 March 2016. Mr. Zhang is one of the
founders of the Haidilao Group and has over 20 years of food industry
and management experience within the Haidilao Group. He has been
a Director since December 2015 and is primarily responsible for
participating in making major decisions for the Company. Mr. Zhang
served as the general manager of Sichuan Haidilao from April 1994 to
March 2001. Between April 2001 and June 2009, Mr. Zhang served
as both the executive director and the general manager of Sichuan
Haidilao. Since July 2009, Mr. Zhang has served as the director and
chairman of Sichuan Haidilao. Mr. Zhang also serves as a director
and member of senior management of associates of the Company’s
Controlling Shareholders. He is currently an executive director of
Haidilao International Holding Ltd. (stock code: 6862). Mr. Zhang
completed the executive master of business administration program
and completed the finance master of business administration program
from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (R;IEZ) in
October 2011 and August 2012, respectively. Mr. Zhang is the spouse
of Ms. Shu Ping, an executive director of the Company.
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Mr. Yau Ka Chi (ERZB5), aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 20 June 2016. Mr. Yau has
over 30 years of professional accounting experience including 20 years
in serving China enterprises. He had worked for Ernst & Young in its
Hong Kong, Toronto and Beijing offices with primary focus in providing
professional services in accounting and audit, initial public offering,
and corporate restructuring before retiring in September 2015. During
his professional career with Ernst & Young, Mr. Yau was appointed as
the Professional Practice Director of Greater China from July 2007 to
June 2009, the Assurance Leader for China North Region from July
2010 to June 2014, the Oil & Gas Industry Leader of Greater China
from May 2012 to June 2015 and the Assurance Leader of the Energy
& Resources Markets Segment of Greater China from July 2013 to
June 2015. Mr. Yau is an independent non-executive director of China
Mengniu Dairy Company Limited (FEIZ4ZEE R A7) (Stock code:
2319) since October 2016 and China Power International Development
Limited (FEIZEHEIKZEEER D T) (Stock code: 2380) since
December 2016, both companies listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Yau holds a professional diploma
in company secretaryship and administration from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and
is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the lllinois Certified Public Accountants Society and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yau also holds a certified
public accountant license issued by the lllinois Department of Financial
and Professional Regulation, the United States.

Mr. Qian Mingxing (£ &), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 20 June
2016. He is primarily responsible for participating in making major
decisions for the Company and advising on issues relating to corporate
governance, nomination of Directors and remuneration of Directors
and senior management. Mr. Qian has been a professor at Peking
University Law School (1tZR K22 j£22 %) since August 1999. He worked
as a teaching assistant and a lecturer of the law department at Peking
University from August 1986 to August 1988 and August 1988 to
August 1993, respectively. From August 1993 to August 1999, Mr.
Qian was an associate professor at Peking University Law School. Mr.
Qian obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a master’s degree in
law from Peking University in July 1983 and July 1986, respectively. In
June 2001, Mr. Qian obtained a doctoral degree of laws from Peking
University.
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Ms. Ye Shujun (5 &), aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 20 June 2016. She is
primarily responsible for participating in making major decisions for
the Company and advising on issues relating to corporate governance,
remuneration of Directors and senior management, nomination of
Directors and audit. Ms. Ye has been an independent director of Beijing
New Universal Science and Technology Co., Ltd (it B @ T RHI IR
1B R 7)) (stock code: 300472) since June 2011, and an independent
director of Anhui Guozhen Environment Protection Technology Joint
Stock Co., Limited (ZHBEERRETERHEZ R D BFRA A) (stock code:
300388) since August 2016, both being companies listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (#3172 32 5 Fi). Ms. Ye has been serving
as independent director of Anhui Telit Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 831918), a company listed on National Equities Exchange
and Quotation System, since July 2017, and as independent director
of Wuhu Fuchun Dye And Weave Co., Ltd. (stock code: 870898), a
company listed on the New Third Board, since November 2017. Ms. Ye
also served as lecturer, associate professor and professor successively
at the economic management college of Beijing Jiaotong University
(AEFERBEAE) since December 1994. Ms. Ye completed a program in
international accounting and international tax at Xiamen University in
January 1990. Ms. Ye then obtained a master’s degree in economics
from Tsinghua University in July 1994. She obtained a doctoral degree
in management from Beijing Jiaotong University in July 2007.

Mr. Shi Yonghong (#k %), an executive Director of the Company.
See “—Board of Directors —Executive Directors” in this section for his
biographical details.

Mr. Guo Qiang (838), an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. See “—Board of Directors —Executive
Directors” in this section for his biographical details.

Ms. Dang Chunxiang (7% %), an executive Director and the Vice
President of the Company. See “—Board of Directors —Executive
Directors” in this section for her biographical details.

Mr. Sun Shengfeng (#51£), an executive Director, the chief financial
officer and joint company secretary of the Company. See “—Board
of Directors —Executive Directors” in this section for his biographical
details.

EEREREEEBEN

EHELX LT 585 H20165F6820H
EEZEEAAQNTABIFHNTES - HE
EEEZHEFHARTANEERTUR
MARER EBEEROATEBHH -
REZEERBTEHREERMHER -
BELZTH2011F6 A E—BEHEEFLLREE
B TREROERA R (RONKSE -
300472) BN ESE - H2016FE8 A
HEZHEERRAERNEROERA
Al (RS - 300388) (VB EE » W
XNAEARIEBSERGMETAT o
BT H2017F7BREREZEF /N
TERMEZRGHE EHTHCERS
RKIUBZREBRMOERLT (REAL !
831918) WV ESE » H2017F 11 A
EF =R ECEEREERLEBRNE
FRAT (IRENRHE - 870898) B L E
E o B LIRE 1994512 A SN
ERBAELEESEER » AR THE
B BIERRER - ELZ T HR1990F 1
BEEM K25 BB S 5t B Bl BB U
VERRRE - EL T HEW1994F7 AHE
EHEABKEEBEETEN o HA2007F
TRRELEERBAEEE IS HLE
i o

BRERE  ARRAHTES - FHEHE
BEE - B2RAEH -ESE -9
TE=E]-

BHEL  ARDVTEERERUST
T o EMHBENE  BOMAH - B
£ - NTES]

EETLXT  ARAHUTESFRIL
H-BBREBEFE  F2HAEH-F
g -HTES]-

BMEEE - ARRNTES - HHR
ERBEAARE  ARABERE
HSMAH - ESE - HTES] o

43



44

EEREREEEEN

Mr. Zhao Xiaokai (#BE#]l), aged 43, currently the director of the
supply system of the Company. He is responsible for the management
of the supply system of the Company. He is committed to optimizing
and managing the production of factories, inventory logistics
and technological research. He has extensive experience in risk
management and control, cost optimization, quality control and supply
chain management. Mr. Zhao joined the Company on 31 March 2017,
and served as the special assistance of the general manager, and the
director of the supply management department since 1 December
2017. Prior to this, Mr. Zhao has served as the general manager in
production of Douglas (Qingdao) Wines Co., Ltd (& BERNETEES
PR A &) from May 2016 to March 2017, the operational director of Heinz
(Qingdao) Food Co.,Ltd. (FK (F8) BRmAERAF) from April 2004
to April 2016, the quality auditor of Unilever Bestfood* (B4 FllZE & 1t)
from October 2000 to April 2004 and the production officer of Weifang
Yue Hwa Food Co., Ltd.* (#h#%ERDBMR A F) from July 1998 to
October 2000. Mr. Zhao Xiaokai graduated from Jimei University and
obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1998.

* For identification purpose only
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The Board of the Company presents this corporate governance report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and also the corporate governance report as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Corporate Governance Code sets out the principles of good
corporate governance and two levels of corporate governance
practices, as follows:

(@) code provisions, which listed issuers are expected to comply with
or to give considered reasons for deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed
issuers are encouraged to comply with.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code.

Except for the deviation from the Corporate Governance Code
provision A.2.1, the Company regularly reviews its compliance with
Corporate Governance Code and the Company was in compliance with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report
for details.
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Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and is responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board also reviews the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees’ various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference which are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

All of the Directors have carried out their duties in good faith
and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and have acted in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders at all times.

Delegation of Management Function

The Board is responsible for making all major decisions
of the Company including: the approval and monitoring of
all major policies of the Group and overall strategies, risk
management and internal control systems, notifiable and
connected transactions, nomination of the Directors and
joint company secretaries, and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All of the Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each Director is entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the senior management.
The delegated functions are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board before any significant
transaction is entered into.
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Board Composition

The Board of the Company comprised the following
Directors throughout 2019:

Executive Directors Mr. Shi Yonghong
(Chairman)

Ms. Dang Chunxiang

Mr. Sun Shengfeng

Ms. Shu Ping

Mr. Guo Qiang Mete ™

Non-executive Director Mr. Zhang Yong

Independent non-executive ~ Mr. Yau Ka Chi
Directors Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

Note 1: Mr. Guo Qiang has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 26 March 2019.

The list of the Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company from
time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this annual
report, to the best knowledge of the Company, there are
no financial, business, family, or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2019, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board and at least one independent
non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his or her
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are laid down in the Articles
of Association. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on matters
relating to the appointment of the Directors.

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company
pursuant to which each of them has agreed to act as an
executive Director or a non-executive Director (as the
case may be), subject to re-election as and when required
under the Articles of Association, until it is terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the service
contract or by either party giving to the other not less than
one month’s prior notice in writing. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company and has been appointed for a term of
three years. The appointment may be terminated by either
party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior
notice in writing.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and the Board has power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any new Director to fill a
causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he or she
understands the business and operations of the Company
and that he or she is fully aware of his or her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.
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The Directors are continually provided with information
relating to the developments in the legal and regulatory
regime and the business and market environments to
facilitate the execution of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development for the Directors
were arranged by the Company and its professional
advisers.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, each Director has
attended training sessions arranged by the Stock Exchange
regarding ESG Governance and Reporting.

According to records provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2019 is as follows:

Name of Director Training*
Mr. Shi Yonghong
Ms. Dang Chunxiang
Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Ms. Shu Ping

Mr. Guo Qiang

Mr. Zhang Yong

Mr. Yau Ka Chi

Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

2 22222 2 2 =2

*

Each Director has read and learnt relevant information
regarding the Company under the “Listing Rules and
Guidance” issued by the Stock Exchange in 2019. On top of
the above-mentioned trainings, each of the Directors has also
read materials prepared by external professional advisers on
“Main Regulations in Hong Kong and Regulatory Update”.
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6.

Attendance Record of Board Meetings

a.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code prescribes that at least four regular Board
meetings should be held in each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of majority
of directors, either in person or through electronic
means of communication.

The Board met 4 times during the year ended 31
December 2019 for reviewing and approving the
audited annual results for the year ended 31 December
2018, unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2019, the change of members of the
Board, the entering of continuing connected transaction
and revision of annual caps under certain agreements
as well as the grant of RSUs to the Directors and senior
officers of the Group.

The chairman of the Company held meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors once during
the year ended 31 December 2019 without the other
Directors present.

The Company held two general meetings on 21 May
2019 and 4 July 2019 respectively during the year
ended 31 December 2019. All proposed Shareholders’
resolutions put to the above general meetings were
resolved by poll vote and were duly passed. The
vote tally of each such resolution was set out in the
Company’s announcements released on the day of the
general meetings.
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ERERRE

REBZE2019F12A31H
LtEER FESHE

The attendance records of each Director at the Board
meetings and general meetings of the Company during

the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out below: EEEERNEALAN
REAXEWEEERS W0
T
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Board Meetings General Meetings
HERE, HERE,
Name of Director EEnA EEEERRY BRRXERE
Mr. Shi Yonghong i & e 4/4 2/2
Ms. Dang Chunxiang EfRLL 4/4 2/2
Mr. Sun Shengfeng Bkt 4/4 2/2
Ms. Shu Ping e ceen 4/4 2/2
Mr. Guo Qiang SR EAE 4/4 2/2
Mr. Zhang Yong REEE 4/4 2/2
Mr. Yau Ka Chi BBxREGEE 4/4 2/2
Mr. Qian Mingxing BPE%E 4/4 2/2
Ms. Ye Shujun EFELL 4/4 2/2
Practices and Conduct of Meetings EHEEHRERIES

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each
meeting are made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
of the Directors at least 14 days before the meetings.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notices were generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information were sent to all of the Directors
at least three days before each Board meeting or
committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions.
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Each Director also had separate and independent
access to the senior management of the Company
whenever necessary.

The senior management of the Company attend all
regular Board meetings and where necessary, other
Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The joint company secretaries are responsible for
taking and keeping minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

The Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
the Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

With effect from 9 December 2018, Ms. Dang Chunxiang resigned
as chief executive officer of the Company and Mr. Shi Yonghong,
the existing chairman was appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company. As such, the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company are performed by the same
individual and constitute a deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code.
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Mr. Shi Yonghong had assumed both the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company as he has
extensive experience and knowledge in the food and the catering
service industry and management experience within the Haidilao
Group and in order to improve the efficiency of the operations of
the Company.

In view of the ever-changing business environment in which the
Group operates, the chairman and the chief executive officer must
be proficient in the Chinese condiment market and be sensitive
to market changes in order to promote the businesses of the
Group. The Board thus considered a segregation of the role of the
chairman and chief executive officer might create unnecessary
costs for the daily operations of the Group.

The Board considered that vesting two roles in Mr. Shi Yonghong
enabled the Company to promptly and efficiently make and
implement decisions and will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company. The Company has established board committees,
namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
and the Nomination Committee, with their members mainly
comprising of independent non-executive Directors and which
are responsible for the important corporate governance functions.
The three independent non-executive Directors who possess
balance of skills and experience appropriate to the business of
the Company also contribute valuable independent views to the
Board. All major decisions have been made in consultation with
members of the Board and appropriate committees, as well as the
senior management team. The Board is therefore of the view that
there are adequate balance of power and safeguards in place.
Due to good practice of corporate governance, with effect from
25 March 2020, Mr. Shi Yonghong has resigned from the post of
chief executive officer and Mr. Guo Qiang has been appointed
as the chief executive officer of the Company. Please refer to
the announcement on change of chief executive officer dated 25
March 2020 for further details.

To facilitate discussion of all key and appropriate issues by
the Board in a timely manner, the chairman of the Company
coordinates with the senior management of the Company to
provide adequate, complete and reliable information to all of the
Directors for consideration and review.
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The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All of these three committees are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available at the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

1.  Audit Committee

We have established the Audit Committee with terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules as well as paragraphs C.3 and D.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yau Ka
Chi, Mr. Qian Mingxing and Ms. Ye Shujun. The chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Yau, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2)
and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, assisting the Board by (i) reviewing and monitoring
the relationship of the external auditor and the Group,
particularly the independence, objectivity and effectiveness
of the external auditor; (ii) providing an independent view
of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process,
compliance, risk management and internal control systems
of the Group; (iii) overseeing the audit process and
performing other duties and responsibilities as assigned
by the Board; (iv) developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements
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under the Listing Rules; (v) reviewing the financial information
of the Company and ensuring compliance with accounting
standards and reviewing significant adjustments resulting
from audit; and (vi) developing, reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct applicable to the Company’s employees
and Directors.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and its main work involved the
following:

° reviewing the audited annual results and financial
report for the year ended 31 December 2018;

o reviewing the unaudited interim results and financial
report for the six months ended 30 June 2019;

° reviewing the financial reporting and the compliance
procedures;

° reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance;

° reviewing the compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and the disclosure requirement in the corporate
governance report as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules;

° reviewing the code of conduct and the compliance
manuals for employees and the Directors, the financial,

operational and compliance monitoring;

o reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems;

° reviewing the internal audit work of the risk management
and internal audit department; and

° reviewing the work of the external auditor.
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The Audit Committee met with the external auditor of the
Company in the absence of management of the Company
once in relation to the provision of audit service to the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee Meetings
are set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of

Meeting(s)

HiERE

Name of Committee Member ZEEHRENSA BERE
Mr. Yau Ka Chi ERREG L 3/3
Mr. Qian Mingxing RIAE%E 3/3
Ms. Ye Shujun EBELL 3/3

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
on 23 March 2020. The Audit Committee considers that the
annual financial results for the year ended 31 December
2019 are in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards, rules and regulations and appropriate disclosures
have been duly made.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
with terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules as well as paragraph B.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee consists
of three Directors, namely, the executive Director Ms. Shu
Ping and the independent non-executive Directors Ms. Ye
Shujun and Mr. Qian Mingxing. Ms. Ye Shujun serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a
year. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (ii)
reviewing and approving senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board corporate goals and
objectives; and (iii) making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2019 to review the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company, and consider and
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company.

The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee
Meetings are set out below:
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Attendance/
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HERE,

Name of Committee Member LZEEMENA BERE
Ms. Ye Shujun E2HELL 3/3
Ms. Shu Ping gLt 3/3
Mr. Qian Mingxing AR kA 3/3

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 37
to the Financial Statements. In addition, the remuneration
payable to the senior management of the Company
(who are not the Directors) by band for the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report — D. Remuneration of Senior
Management” of this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination
Committee consists of three Directors, namely, the
executive Director Mr. Shi Yonghong and the independent
non-executive Directors Mr. Qian Mingxing and Ms. Ye
Shujun. Mr. Shi Yonghong serves as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include,
but are not limited to, (i) reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board; (ii) assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors; (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment of Directors; and (iv) reviewing the diversity
policy and nomination policy of the Board.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2019 to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience and length of service) of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board relating to
the appointment and re-election of Directors to ensure that
the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company; to review the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management; and to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.
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The attendance records of the Nomination Committee
Meetings are set out below:
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Name of Committee Member LZEEMENA R
Mr. Shi Yonghong KR EE 11
Mr. Qian Mingxing AR KL 1/1
Ms. Ye Shujun E2HEuL 1/1

Where vacancies on the Board arise, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations.

On 26 March 2019, the Nomination Policy was adopted
to enable the Nomination Committee to nominate
suitable candidates to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation to Shareholders for election as Directors of
the Company at the Shareholders’ annual general meeting or
to fill casual vacancies of the Directors for the appointment
by the Board. A summary of the Nomination Policy is set out
below:
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Purpose:

Selection Criteria:

Nomination
Procedures:

EREKRERAERA S

The Nomination Policy aims to set
out the approach to enable the
Nomination Board to nominate
suitable candidates to the Board.

Evaluation of candidates will
be based on a range of factors,
including but not limited to
their reputation in the industry,
achievements and experiences in
the food and beverage industry,
time commitments and board
diversity, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee
shall hold special meeting and
invite the Board members to
recommend candidates (if
suitable candidates available) for
consideration before the meeting.
The Nomination Committee may
also nominate the candidates who
are not recommended by the Board
members.

In the case of filling the casual
vacancies, the Nomination
Committee shall recommend
candidates to the Board for its
consideration and approval. If
candidates are recommended to be
elected at the Shareholders’ annual
general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall nominate to the
Board for its consideration and
recommendation for their election.
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Confidentiality:

The nominated person should not
be presumed to be recommended
by the Board for election at the
Shareholders’ annual general
meeting until the publication of the
circular to the Shareholders.

The information of candidates
nominated by the Board shall
be set out in the circular for the
Shareholders’ annual general
meeting.

The candidates may withdraw from
election by serving written notice
to the Board at any time before
holding the Shareholders’ annual
general meeting.

The Board has absolute final
discretion as to all matters in
relation to the candidates to be
recommended by it for their election
at the Shareholders’ annual general
meeting, and the appointment
of candidates is subject to final
approval at the Shareholders’
annual general meeting.

Unless otherwise required by law
or any regulatory authorities, under
no circumstances shall a member
of the Nomination Committee or
a staff member of the Company
disclose any information to the
public or entertain any enquiries
from the public, as the case may
be, with regard to any nomination
or candidate before the publication
of the circular to Shareholders.
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Prior to the Listing Date, the composition and diversity
of the Board were considered by adopting the Board
Diversity Policy including the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
development of the Company and for effective leadership.
All the executive and non-executive Directors possess
extensive and diversified experience in management
and broad industrial experience. The three independent
non-executive Directors possess professional knowledge in
management, finance, accountancy and legal, respectively
with broad and extensive experience in business advisory
and management, respectively. A summary of the Board
Diversity Policy is set out below:

Purpose:

Board Diversity
Policy statement:

EREKRERAERA S

The Board Diversity Policy aims to
set out the approach to achieve
diversity of the Board and enable
the Board to comply with the
Corporate Governance Code.

The Company considers increasing
diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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TEERRS
Measurable Objectives: Selection of candidates will be AitE REANGELE
based on a range of diversity B&: RZEFE (B
perspectives, including but not BAREREAMR - F
limited to gender, age, cultural and B XtRHEE
educational background, ethnicity, =Bk BELR
professional experience, skills, By - Hige ~ AL
knowledge and length of service. RIRIGIEER) - &&&
The ultimate decision will be based REBEREEMN
on merit and contribution that the BREATAESSE
selected candidates will bring to TRV EEKRER
the Board. MiE °
In reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity RRsTEEENEE - AZ
of the Board, the Nomination Committee has taken into HREZTE  REEEE
account the measurable objectives as set out in the Board BEEZREEEREZTILBER
Diversity Policy. FREMAIEtERE -
33% 33%
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67% 56%
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Corporate Governance Report
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Business management
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Related industry experience
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ERgERKER

H

)

——)
(——( )
———)
ﬁ

RRITERER
The Nomination Committee is of the view that the diversity REZESRA EEGHE
level of the Board is appropriate in terms of knowledge, WZ T ERESHARE
experience and skills of the directors. However, the KEREEMSIBEE - R
Nomination Committee will continue to observe the Board M REZESBEEETE
Diversity Policy and consider potential candidates against EENEZTLBRRIRES
the objective criteria set out in the Board Diversity Policy in EREZTIEBERFTENBEEZE
order to achieve increasing diversity at the Board level. HAZREBEEIREA  USE
EERERARE L °
D. REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT D. S#HREIEERFIM
The remuneration (including salary only) payable to the senior ERAEAAGISRERERE (BRITE
management of the Company (who are not the Directors) is shown B)HNEHFMH (RBEEHFS) BRERM
in the following table by band: T&RIIR
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The Company has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries
have been made to all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company’s relevant employees, who are likely to be in
possession of inside information of the Company, have also been
subject to the Model Code for securities transactions. No incident
of non-compliance of the Model Code by the Company’s relevant
employees was noted by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The senior management of the Company has provided such
explanation and information to the Board as necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Company in order to put forward
such information to the Board for approval.

Pursuant to the resolution of the 2019 Shareholders’ annual
general meeting, PricewaterhouseCoopers was re-appointed
by the Company as the external auditor of financial statements
prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set out
under the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this
annual report.
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The external auditor of the Company will be invited to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report and
auditor’s independence.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company for the provision
of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to RMB2.1 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company in respect of non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to RMBO0.5 million. The nature of such non-audit services is to
provide advisory services.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems that are in line with the strategic objective
of the Group. The Group established risk management and
internal control systems to protect the interests of the Group and
Shareholders, ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, effectively identify and manage significant
risks in achieving its strategic objectives, protect the safety
of the Group’s assets, and ensure the maintenance of proper
compliance accounting records and financial reports.

The Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating the nature
and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving
strategic objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems as well as overseeing management of the
Group in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.
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The Board periodically receives (at least once a year) reports from
the Group’s management regarding financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as the establishment, review and
assessment of the risk management and internal control functions
of the Group. All significant risks are reported to the Board. The
Board will also evaluate the corresponding risks and the response
plan. The Group would review, among other things, adequacy of
resources, staff’s qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of our accounting, internal control and financial
reporting functions.

The Group’s management is authorized by the Board to be
in charge of the organization and implementation of the risk
management and internal control of the Group and be responsible
for establishing the risk management and internal control systems,
standardizing the organization, authorization, responsibilities,
procedures and methods of the risk management and internal
control systems and also responsible for ongoing monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
and makes periodic reports to the Board regarding the status of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

The risk management and internal audit department of the Group
assists the Board and the Audit Committee in their analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal audit department adopts an audit
approach based on risk and control. The annual work plan of the
risk management and internal audit department covers the major
activities and processes of the Group’s operations, businesses
and service units. Special reviews are also performed at the
management’s request. The results of these audit activities are
communicated to the Audit Committee. The risk management and
internal audit department provides independent assurance to the
Board, the Audit Committee and the management of the Company
as to whether the Group’s internal controls are adequate and
effective.

With respect to risk management, the Group has chosen
and adopted the risk management framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in the United States of America (“COSQO”), and
established a risk management system covering design,
implementation, monitoring, assessment and continuous

ERERRE

NAEBEEEH (ELEF-R)
WRREEEEEBERASENE
% BEREREE  UREARE
ERARPEEIEREEEY - FRKT
RS - TEEANEARIIEM
ExEER -ESESTHHEERR
ML BRI - AREEFE
RETEET - AAEERMBER
BETHNER BETERRER
=R URIBIRERBEE
BERERE

rEEEEERESERE 88
AEERBREE TEMAIBERY
HENER  AETERREER
NEEZHE - RELAEEERER
fEERAIMEENARRE &
B RERNGE AERE
EEAKERBEERAMEZEN
T WEHEETEESIHA
MESEREAEERBEENR
EERIER -

rEERZE B ESERE
FFEEE  WAKENEREEER
NBEERAGRERAUREBEN
MELT DM RB LRI o AIREE
BRER A LA R K 2 R AN R TS
& o BIRES AN 2 F TERTE
WEREEEE  EBNRBEN
BFRFETERBRE  WIRREE
BHERETHRRN  MBE KT
ENEREXTENEZES - BZ
Ei A AREANEEEEEN
RERQESE FXEEERAE
NREEEREELRE -

ERBREEIHEH  AEEEH
ZE Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway
Commission ([COSO ) #l&E
MWEXEBEEEZLR  XLISO
31000 : 20092 (AR EE — ]

67



68

improvement based on the ISO 31000:2009 “Risk Management —
Principles and Guidelines”. The Group’s management established
the overall targets and policies of the risk management system
which are in line with the strategic objectives, and identified,
analysed and assessed the overall risk of the Company, especially
the risks in making major decisions, important events and key
business processes. The Group’s management is also responsible
for reviewing and approving the response plans to major risks, as
well as following-up and periodically reviewing the implementation
of such response plans of risks identified, in order to make sure
that sufficient attention, monitor and responses will be paid to
all key risks of the Company. The risk management reports are
submitted to the Board periodically.

With respect to internal control, the Group has chosen and
adopted the internal control framework issued by COSO,
established an internal control system and mechanism over
financial, operational and compliance controls and conducted
continuing review and evaluation of the internal control system of
the Group to ensure the timeliness, accuracy and completeness
of all information reported.

o The management has evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of its internal control regarding the financial
report as of 31 December 2019, did not identify any material
weakness as a result of the evaluation, was not aware of
any areas of concern that would have a material impact on
the Company’s financial position or results of operations,
and considered the risk management and internal
control systems to be generally adequate and effective,
including with respect to the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the accounting, and internal audit and financial reporting
functions. On the basis of such evaluation, the Board
considers that as of 31 December 2019, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group were effective and
adequate.

° At the same time, the Group has established a mechanism
for remediating internal control deficiency under which
the person in charge of each unit is assigned clear
responsibilities relating to remediating internal control
deficiency of the unit.
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° The Group has formulated an inside information policy and
regularly reminds its Directors and employees to comply
with all inside information policies.

° The Group established an open channel to handle and
discuss internal and external whistle-blowing regarding
financial irregularities, internal control deficiencies and fraud,
and to ensure that every accusation receives sufficient
attention. Significant internal control deficiencies or
accusations will be reported directly to the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For details of the nature and extent of the principal risks faced by
the Group, please refer to the section headed “e. Principal Risk
and Uncertainties” in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company are expected to provide
a forum for communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the
Nomination Committee and, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees and, where applicable, the chairman
of the independent Board committee, will be available to answer
questions at the general meetings. The chairman of a meeting will
provide the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer
any questions from the Shareholders on voting by poll.
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To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.yihchina.com, where information and updates on
the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, no change had been
made to the Articles of Association of the Company.

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial
issue, including the re-election of individual Directors. Meanwhile,
procedures are in place for the Shareholders to (i) convene an
extraordinary general meeting; (ii) direct their enquiries to the
Board; and (iii) put forward proposals at general meetings.

In accordance with Article 13.5 of the Articles of Association,
all resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be taken by
poll save that the chairman may, in good faith, allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter as
prescribed under the Listing Rules to be voted on by a show of
hands.

In addition, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after the relevant general
meeting.

1. Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, any
two or more Shareholders or any one Shareholder which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition (deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists) not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
and carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
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the Company shall at all times have the right, on written
requisition, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the Requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.

According to Article 12.4 of the Articles of Association, any
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by not less
than 14 days’ notice in writing. Subject to the requirement
under the Listing Rules, the notice shall be exclusive of the
day on which it is served or deemed to be served and of the
day for which it is given, and shall specify the time, place,
and agenda of the meeting, particulars of the resolutions
and the general nature of the business to be considered
at the meeting. The notice convening a meeting to pass a
special resolution shall specify the intention to propose the
resolution as a special resolution. Notice of every general
meeting shall be given to the auditors of the Company
and to all the Shareholders other than those who, under
the provisions hereof or the terms of issue of the shares
they hold, are not entitled to receive such notice from the
Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no single provision in the Articles of Association or
the Cayman Islands Companies Law for the Shareholders
to put forward proposals at general meetings. The
Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding section.
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3. Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, the Shareholders may send written enquiries
to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries, concerns or requests
to the Company at 40th Floor, Sunlight Tower, No. 248
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholders must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice
or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. The information
of the Shareholders may be disclosed as required by law.

Subject to the Cayman Islands Companies Law and the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Company may declare dividends in
any currency through a general meeting, but no dividend may
be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board. The Articles of Association provide that dividends may
be declared and paid out of profit of the Company, realized or
unrealized, or from any reserve set aside from profits which the
Directors determine is no longer needed. With the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and paid
out of a share premium account or any other fund or account
which can be authorized for this purpose in accordance with the
Cayman Islands Companies Law.

Except as provided under the terms of a particular issue, or with
respect to the rights attached to any Shares, (i) all dividends will
be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up on the
Shares in respect of which the dividend is paid, but no amount
paid up on a Share in advance of calls may for this purpose be
treated as paid up on the Share; and (ii) all dividends will be
apportioned and paid pro rata according to the amount paid up on
the Shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect
of which the dividend is paid. The Directors may deduct from any
dividend or other monies payable to any of the Shareholders or in
respect of any Shares all sums of money (if any) presently payable
by such Shareholder to us on account of calls or otherwise.
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In addition, the declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion
of the Board, and the amounts of dividends actually declared and
paid will also depend on:

° general business conditions of the Company;
o financial results of the Company;

o capital requirements of the Company;

o interests of the Shareholders; and

° any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.

Future dividend payments to the Shareholders will also depend
upon the availability of dividends received from the PRC
subsidiaries. PRC laws require that dividends be paid out of the
net profit calculated according to PRC accounting principles.
PRC laws also require PRC enterprises to set aside part of
their net profit as statutory reserves before they distribute the
net proceeds. These statutory reserves are not available for
distribution as cash dividends. In addition, the dividends paid
by the PRC subsidiaries are also subject to the withholding tax
imposed by the PRC laws.

The Board has absolute discretion in whether to declare any
dividend for any year and, if it decides to declare a dividend, how
much dividend to declare. The Company has not paid or declared
any dividend since its inception. In the future, the Company
expects to distribute no less than 20% of the annual distributable
profit as dividends. There is, however, no assurance that the
Company will be able to distribute dividends of such amount or
any amount each year or in any year. The Company will continue
to re-evaluate the dividend policy in light of the financial position
and the prevailing economic climate. However, the determination
to pay dividends will be made at the discretion of the Board and
will be based upon the earnings, cash flow, financial conditions,
capital requirements, statutory fund reserve requirements of the
Group and any other conditions that the Directors deem relevant.
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The Company’s net proceeds from the Global Offering amounted
to approximately HK$720.2 million.

The net proceeds have been used in a manner consistent with
those disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of

Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had used the
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net proceeds from the Global Offering for the following purposes:

SEEBERBEMERREFR

RTFIAR :
Use of proceeds in The cumulative The cumulative
the same manner and amount of proceeds ~ amount of proceeds
proportions as utilized as of utilized as of
stated in the Prospectus 31 December 2018 31 December 2019
(in RMB million) (in RMB million) (in RMB million)
NERRER
FHEERNAAR  BE018F12A31E  HE019512A31A
HhERRGRE EARRRGIESE  RRERASTELE
(AR#%BER) (AR%BET) (ARERET)
30% used to construct Phase | of 0% ARERNRTLEEMN
our Bazhou Production Base located FNEEEN-B
in Bazhou, Hebei Province 216.1 152.8 216.1
25% used for potential strategic BN AREENRRILERS
acquisition opportunities in the future 180.0 120 120
25% used to promote our products and brand 5% BREERBNERANRE 180.1 532 180.1
10% used to enhance our research 10%BRESEANHES D
and development capabilities 720 28.0 424
10% used for working capital 0%EREEEER-REERR
and general corporate purposes 720 720 720
Total At 7202 318.0 522.6

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had unused
net proceeds from the Global Offering of approximately RMB197.6
million. Regarding the net proceeds that had not been utilized
as of 31 December 2019, the Company intends to use them in
the same manner and proportions as stated in the Prospectus.
Unutilized amount is expected to be used in three years.
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Mr. Sun Shengfeng (“Mr. Sun”), the executive Director and chief
financial officer of the Company, has been engaged by the
Company as joint company secretaries effective on 12 March
2016. Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”) of SWCS Corporate
Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, has been engaged by the
Company as joint company secretary effective on 31 May 2018.
Ms. Chan has been engaged by the Company as one of the
authorized representatives effective on 31 May 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Sun and Ms. Chan
have each undertaken over 15 hours of professional training to
update their skill and knowledge.

Mr. Sun Shengfeng, the executive Director and chief financial
officer, is the primary corporate contact person of the joint
company secretary, Ms. Chan.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to the Shareholders through the optimization of the debt
and equity balance.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

KATDBTESRUBAEREIE
%4k ((RAEE]D) CEZEEAQT
BEATWE  LEFER2016F
SE12B4EM - FETLEREER
(BB) BRATNREELZ L (K
Z+ ) EEADTDEZEABELT
WE - B2018F5831BBENK -
Mzt OEALATNZEERERE
Z— ' E201855831 BiB4ERX -

HBZE2019F 12831 HIEFEER -
BAEERRZLTHIESM15/NEEL
FOVRRIE I - IR S H RS
FIRE o

BRBEEE (MTESHRUBRE)
RBEARAMERZLHAREERE
BrEA o

FEBMEHERETER - UHER
REEBET AREHFELEE - B
RKZEBECEBRERABNFER
AREMHRESKRRLER -

BESBETAEHABRNERT
P EZ A Y AR D ANFELE
BENBREREER °

75



76

EXEHS

The Board of the Company presents this directors’ report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

We are a leading and fast-growing compound condiment manufacturer
in China primarily focused on the hot pot condiment market. We are
the sole supplier of hot pot soup flavoring products for Haidilao Group
in China. We employ a distributor model to sell our products, and our
physical distribution network is supplemented by e-commerce channels
and third-party catering companies, which have recently experienced
significant development. The Group is also expanding its sales network
in overseas markets.

The principal activities of the Group are researching and developing,
manufacturing, distributing and selling high-quality hot pot condiments,
Chinese-style compound condiments and convenient ready-to-eat
food products. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income of this annual report.

The Board resolved to propose to the Shareholders in the forthcoming
AGM on Friday, 22 May 2020 for the distribution of a final dividend of
RMB20.593 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The final dividend is expected to be paid on or about Monday, 15 June
2020 to the Shareholders whose names are listed in the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 1 June 2020, in an aggregate
amount of RMB215.6 million. Subject to the consideration and approval
of the Shareholders at the AGM, the final dividend will be paid in
Hong Kong dollars based on the average benchmark exchange rate of
Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars as announced by the People’s
Bank of China in the five working days prior to but excluding the date
of the Board Meeting, that is HK$22.583 cents per Share.
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Details of the issued shares of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 18 to the Financial Statements.

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes In Equity of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has distributable reserves of
RMB1,664.0 million in total available for distribution.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group made charitable
donations of RMB0.97 million.

The Group’s financial summary for the last five financial years is set out
in the section headed “Five-Year Performance Review” of this annual
report.

As at 31 December 2019, save for lease liabilities, the Group has
recorded no bank loans and other borrowings.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 8
to the Financial Statements.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the
Latest Practicable Date.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

The net proceeds from the Global Offering amounted to approximately
HK$720.2 million. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report — Use of Proceeds from the Global
Offering” of this annual report.
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Overview and performance of the Year

Business review and financial review are provided in the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this annual
report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

It is our corporate and social responsibility to promote a
sustainable and environmental-friendly environment. We strive to
minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and to
build our corporation in a sustainable way.

The Group has undergone a series of effective energy-saving
and pollutant-reducing measures such as conserving water and
electricity, reducing the creation and emission of pollutants during
the production process and optimizing production lines.

Additionally, we have adopted a set of emergency planning,
response and control procedures as counter-measures for
unexpected environmental pollution accidents to minimize
our impact on the environment and the adverse effect on our
business. We incurred RMB5.1 million (2018: RMB2.92 million)
in environmental compliance costs for the year ended 31
December 2019. Such environmental compliance costs relate to
expenditures in implementing environmental protection policies,
and for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not
incurred any fines as a result of pollution.
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EXEHS

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group has complied with the requirements under the
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the SFO and the
Corporate Governance Code for, among other things, the
disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group
has also complied with other relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the operations of the Group. Please
refer to the section headed “Regulations” in the Prospectus for
details.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Relationship with Haidilao Group and its Affiliates

One group of the primary customers of the Company is Haidilao
Group and its affiliates. We are the sole supplier of hot pot soup
flavoring products to Haidilao Group in China. The hot pot soup
flavoring products that we sell to Haidilao Group for use in its
hot pot restaurants are customized products meeting Haidilao
Group’s specific requirements. In addition, our retail products
are displayed and sold directly to consumers in Haidilao hot pot
restaurants. In general, Haidilao Group makes purchase orders
based on customer demands. We have the right to arrange
production ahead of time and stock the finished products in
anticipation of peak seasons, but had no obsolete inventory
in prior years. We also sell retail and customized condiment
products to Shuhai Supply Chain and Youdingyou, our affiliated
companies.

Relationship with our distributors

The other group of the Company’s primary customers is the
distributors, who in turn resell our products to sub-distributors
and retailers, including hypermarkets, supermarkets, grocery
stores, neighborhood stores and butcher shops across China.
As at 31 December 2019, we had an extensive distribution
network covering 31 provincial regions of China and the Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions and 49 overseas countries and
markets.
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Management of Our Distributors

Our distributors are typically regional distributors primarily
involved in the distribution of food and condiment products
with well-established local distribution networks. We select
our distributors in each region based on factors including
their business qualifications and distribution capabilities.
The distribution capabilities we consider include breadth
and quality of sales network, reputation, creditworthiness
and financial conditions, and capabilities in personnel,
warehousing, logistics, facilities and transportation.

We have a seller-buyer relationship with our distributors. The
ownership of the products, as well as all risks and rewards
associated therewith are transferred to them upon delivery
and acceptance. In general, our sales to our distributors
are made on a payment-before-delivery basis according
to our distribution agreements with our distributors with
certain exceptions during our peak seasons. We formulate
a monthly production plan based on historical sales and
market demand. Upon receipt of purchase orders, we will
first deliver the products previously prepared based on the
relatively conservative monthly plan and further produce and
deliver the shortfall, if any. Due to our effective production
and inventory management, our warehouse time of finished
products is approximately 7 days for retail products and 30
days for customized products sold to related parties. Once
the products are delivered to the distributors, they cannot be
returned except for defective products.
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Distributors Performance and Inventory Management

We closely monitor the performance of our distributors. For
example, our sales personnel conduct inspections of our
distributors from time to time to monitor their sales, sales
prices, marketing activities, storage conditions, logistics
facilities, staff quality, quality control and inventory levels.
Generally, we require our distributors to report to us their
inventory records every two weeks to cross-check with our
internal data base. Our staff also conduct monthly inventory
checks at randomly selected distributors. When we notice
that our distributors have excessive inventories or their
sales volumes drop significantly, we may make inquiries and
adopt necessary measures such as suspending the supply
of relevant products. We prohibit our distributors from selling
any expired products. Through visiting the retailers and sub-
distributors and verifying the two-dimensional code that we
implanted on our products, we also monitor whether our
distributors distribute our products within their designated
geographic regions and whether they sell any counterfeit
products. Through these activities, we ensure that our sales
to distributors reflect genuine market demand and our
distributors are complying with the terms and conditions of
their distribution agreements. If we discover non-compliance
issues, we inform the relevant distributor and request the
distributor to cease the non-compliant activities within a
specified period of time. Our distributors are also liable for
breaches of their distribution agreements, and we can claim
compensation from them for relevant breaches. We can
terminate the distribution agreements if they breach material
provisions stipulated therein.
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We provide sales rebate as an incentive to our third-party
distributors when they achieve or exceed the sales targets
set out in their distribution agreements, which are negotiated
and determined based on various factors such as past
performance and market conditions. If a distributor achieves
or exceeds its sales target, we will grant the rebate by
providing certain discount for such distributor’s purchases
in the next year. Such sales rebates are deducted from our
revenue for each of the relevant periods. We do not impose
minimum annual purchase requirement in the distribution
agreements. If a distributor fails to achieve its sales target,
then it will not be entitled to the sales rebate as described
above.

Relationship with Third-party Catering Service Providers

Leveraging our experience in providing customized services to
Haidilao Group, we provide customized compound condiment
products to third-party catering service providers, primarily hot
pot restaurants, spicy stir-fry pot restaurants and barbecue
restaurants.

We use a standardized agreement for these services. Our
customers will discuss their requirements with us before placing
orders. Following our agreement on the detailed requirements
of the customized condiment products, packaging requirements
and purchase prices, our customers will pay an advance payment
equal to 50% of the total purchase price for our manufacturing
and pay the remainder before delivery. Almost all of our
customers are not allowed to return any products after completion
of inspection and acceptance. Our customers are required to
use the customized condiment products only for their provision
of catering services and may not resell the condiment products
to other parties. Typically if the third-party catering service
providers consume the Company’s retail products, then they
are the Company’s own product formula. But if it is customized
condiment, then it will be the same arrangements as the sales
to Haidilao Group, i.e., the Company will not own the intellectual
property right of the product formula.

As an increasing number of service providers intend to take
advantage of the high quality and consistent products offered by
large and reputable manufacturers, we believe there is significant
growth potential for us in providing customized services to third-
party catering service providers.
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Relationship with Our Suppliers

Our raw materials are generally available from various suppliers.
To maintain high standards of product quality and food safety,
we place strong emphasis on sourcing high-quality raw materials
from large suppliers with good reputations. We minimize our
reliance on any single source of supply by maintaining at least
two suppliers for each type of raw material. We also implement
various measures to monitor the performance of our suppliers,
including sample examination and on-site inspections.

We usually enter into supply agreements with our suppliers on an
annual basis. Our suppliers are required to provide raw materials
adhering to the quality requirement under the supply agreements
and are responsible for any liabilities caused by product defects.
Our supply agreements do not have an automatic renewal clause.

Relationship with Our Employees

We embrace our employees as the most valuable assets of the
Group. The objective of the Group’s human resources management
is to reward and recognize outstanding employees by providing
competitive remuneration packages and implementing a sound
performance appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to
promote career development and progression within the Group by
providing adequate training and opportunities.

Relationship with Shareholders

We recognize the importance of protecting the interests of the
Shareholders and of having effective communication with them.
We believe communication with the Shareholders is a two-way
process and have thrived to ensure the quality and effectiveness
of information disclosure, maintain regular dialogue with the
Shareholders and listen carefully to the views and feedback from
the Shareholders. This has been done through general meetings,
corporate communications, interim and annual reports and results
announcements.
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Principal Risk and Uncertainties
Risk of Product Quality

The quality and safety of our products are very important to
our continuous operation. If our quality control system is not
sufficiently implemented, quality or food safety issues may arise.
With the increase of the number of OEM factories, if the OEM
management is poor, there will be food safety risks and product
quality risks, which will have a material adverse impact on the
Company’s brand, reputation and financial condition.

Response Measures

The Group has passed the HACCP System Certification and the
ISO9001 System Certification. From the process of raw materials
import to products delivery and sales, strict implementation
has been made in accordance with the requirements of such
systems to ensure product quality. At the same time, according
to our “Food Safety Risk Assessment Criteria”, we will conduct
comprehensive risk assessments for food safety and quality under
three major aspects: regulatory risk, product risk and operational
risk. We will identify risk points through such risk assessments
and track and evaluate the effectiveness of risk rectification. In
respect of OEM management, we developed a quality control
system for OEM factories by performing risk assessment on
different OEM factories, formulating corresponding management
measures and conducting quality audit quarterly in a bid to ensure
the Group’s operational risk is controllable.

Risk of New Product Development

As certain new product types belong to new industries, of which
standards are not standardized and manufacturers are of vastly
different qualities, the market environment for such new products
may be damaged as a result and consumers may not trust such
products, thus affecting the Company in achieving its sales
objectives for new products.
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Response Measures

The Group will actively participate in the development process
of standards of emerging industries and participate in the
activities of relevant industry associations, in an effort to provide
suggestions for the revision and formulation of industry standards.
Secondly, we will continue to explore and develop new processes,
constantly optimize and upgrade new products, and strictly
manage the production and processing processes to ensure the
quality of our products.

Risks Associated with Projects Under Construction and
Production in an Environmental-friendly Manner

At present, the Group has a number of factory projects under
construction, if they are not completed according to the expected
schedule, investment benefits may be affected. As residential
areas near some factories are increasing gradually, the waste
gas and peculiar smell generated in the production process of
the factories may cause environmental complaints, thus causing
negative impact on the reputation of the Company.

Response Measures

The Group has developed a management system for the progress
of the factories under construction, under which, the person in
charge in each process is specified, and tracking and analysis
are performed regularly. In view of possible emergencies, such
as shutdown caused by weather, policies and other reasons,
emergency plans are made to ensure the progress of the projects
from all aspects. The Group has formulated plans and indicators
at the headquarters level regarding the treatment of waste gas
and peculiar smell, and required each factory to complete at least
one comprehensive examination annually to ensure that the waste
gas emission meets the environmental protection requirements.

A description of the future development in the Company’s business
is provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis section of this annual report.
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The spread of the novel COVID-19 in Mainland China and other
countries and regions since the beginning of 2020 has a certain
impact on economic activities. We refer to announcements of Haidilao
International Holding Ltd. dated 28 January 2020 and 2 February
2020 regarding the suspension of operation of restaurants of Haidilao
Group in Mainland China due to the outbreak of COVID-19. According
to the announcement of Haidilao International Holding Ltd. dated 11
March 2020 and as at the date of this report, certain restaurants of
Haidilao Group in Mainland China have resumed operation, and the
remaining restaurants will resume operation in batches according to
the development of the relief of the epidemic in the regions where the
relevant restaurant is located. As Haidilao Group is the largest customer
of the Group, the closure of their restaurants for an extended period
of time may affect the business, operations and financial results of the
Group. The Group has taken all possible effective measures to respond
to the impact from this epidemic on our business. Currently, the third
party retail business of the Group is operating normally. The Group will
keep continuous attention on the change of situation and make timely
response and adjustments in the future.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any significant

event requiring disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this report.

The Directors up to the date of this annual report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Dang Chunxiang

Mr. Sun Shengfeng

Ms. Shu Ping

Mr. Guo Qiang

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhang Yong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Ka Chi

Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun
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Mr. Pan Di has resigned from his positions as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 26 March 2019 for business affairs
which do not compete with the business of the Company.

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors will retire by rotation at every annual general meeting
(provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years) and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. Ms. Dang Chunxiang, Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Ye Shujun
will retire from the Board by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

Mr. Pan Di resigned from his position as a non-executive director with
effect from 26 March 2019 for business affairs which do not compete
with the business of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Mr. Guo Qiang has been appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 26 March 2019.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management”, during the year ended 31
December 2019, there has been no change in the information of the
Directors as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the
Listing Rules.
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The executive Directors and non-executive Directors have each entered
into a service contract with the Company pursuant to which each of
them agrees to act as an executive Director or a non-executive Director
(as the case may be), subject to re-election as and when required under
the Articles of Association, until terminated in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the service contract or by either party giving to
the other not less than one month’s prior notice in writing.

The independent non-executive Directors have each signed a letter of
appointment with the Company and have been appointed for a term of
three years. The appointment may be terminated by either party giving
to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in writing.

None of the Directors have an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

We have received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ka Chi, Mr. Qian Mingxing and Ms. Ye
Shujun, the confirmation of their respective independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has duly reviewed the
confirmation of independence of each of these Directors. We consider
that the independent non-executive Directors have been independent
from the date of their appointments to 31 December 2019 and remain
so as of the date of this annual report.
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As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
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HMERNRRBRXANERRARERTIM

T
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the total
Ordinary issued share
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares capital (%)
REBITRE
BB RIEA
Y 3 S/ @Y EERYME HRES%)
Mr. Shi Yonghong!" Founder of a discretionary trust, interest of controlled 177,703,492 (L) 16.97% (L)
corporation, interest of spouse, beneficial owner and
beneficiary of a trust
KR EED ERGEANALA - SRFEEER - REOES
BEEBAARGAEZEA
Ms. Shu Ping® Founder of a discretionary trust, interest of 373,007,021 (L) 35.63% (L)
controlled corporation, beneficial owner,
beneficiary of a trust and interest of spouse
Hute EREANELA - SRFEEER  BEREEA
RiEAZB AREBER
Mr. Zhang Yong® Founder of a discretionary trust, interest of 373,007,021 (L) 35.63% (L)
controlled corporation, beneficial owner,
beneficiary of a trust and interest of spouse
RELLED ERETNAIVA - FEFEERD - BREEA
RiEAZHEAREBER
Ms. Dang Chunxiang® Beneficiary of a trust, beneficial owner 1,150,000 (L) 0.11% (L)
BHERELLO ERANZHEA  BERZEAA
Mr. Sun Shengfeng® Beneficiary of a trust, beneficial owner 680,000 (L) 0.06% (L)
BRiELEe ERNZHEA  BEREAA
Mr. Guo Qiang® Beneficiary of a trust, interest of spouse and 400,000 (L) 0.04% (L)
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Notes:

1)

Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan, as the settlors and protectors,
established for their own benefit the SL Trust, which indirectly holds the
entire share capital of SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd, which in turn
holds a total of 177,243,492 Shares. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Shi
Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan are deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd are interested.

Mr. Shi Yonghong is the spouse of Ms. Li Haiyan and is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares in which Ms. Li Haiyan is
interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Li Haiyan is the spouse of Mr.
Shi Yonghong and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the
Shares in which Mr. Shi Yonghong is interested for the purpose of the
SFO.

260,000 RSUs were granted to Mr. Shi Yonghong pursuant to the RSU
Scheme on 27 December 2019, all of which had been vested.

Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping, as the settlors and protectors,
established for their own benefit the ZYSP Trust, which holds the entire
share capital of ZYSP YIHAI Ltd, which in turn holds 372,547,021
Shares. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping
are deemed to be interested in the Shares in which ZYSP YIHAI Ltd is
interested.

Mr. Zhang Yong is the spouse of Ms. Shu Ping and is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares in which Ms. Shu Ping is
interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Shu Ping is the spouse of Mr.
Zhang Yong and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the
Shares in which Mr. Zhang Yong is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

On 27 December 2019, 160,000 RSUs were granted to Mr. Zhang Yong
pursuant to the RSU Scheme, all of which had been vested.

70,000 RSUs were granted to Ms. Dang Chunxiang pursuant to the RSU
Scheme on 27 December 2019, all of which had been vested.

60,000 RSUs were granted to Mr. Sun Shengfeng pursuant to the RSU
Scheme on 27 December 2019, all of which had been vested.
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(5) 120,000 RSUs were granted to Mr. Guo Qiang pursuant to the RSU
Scheme on 27 December 2019, all of which had been vested. Ms. Guo
Weiwen is the spouse of Mr. Guo Qiang and is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Ms. Guo Weiwen is interested for
the purpose of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company has or is deemed to have
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which will be required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO); or which will be required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which will be
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2019, the followings are the persons, other than
the Directors or chief executives of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which would
be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Approximate
Percentage of
Total number Shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest of shares (%)
RREEA S EHEE RPAE BMARKRESLL(%)
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
ZFEA GEERHEZEA)
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner 372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
ERBEBA
Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited® Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
CEINE S HIN
Li Haiyan® Founder of a discretionary trust, interest of 177,703,492 (L) 16.97% (L)
controlled corporation and interest of spouse
FREEACA  ZEHFERZREBNER
Twice Happiness Limited® Interest of controlled corporation 177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
REFEERER
LHY YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner 88,621,746 (L) 8.47% (L)
ERHEEA
SYH YIHAI Ltd@ Beneficial owner 88,621,746 (L) 8.47% (L)
ERBEAA
JLJH YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner and nominee for 73,766,000 (L) 7.05% (L)
another person
ERHAARS - EATHREA
Vistra Trust (HK) Limited® Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 73,766,000 (L) 7.05% (L)
ZFEA GEEREZEA)
UBS Group AG¥ Person having a security interest in share 1,180,000 (L) 0.11% (L)
RROEERERERNAL
Interest of controlled corporation 72,214,591 (L) 6.90% (L)
SEHEERER
(L)  denotes a long position L RKrEFR
Notes: FaE

(1)  ZYSP Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms.
Shu Ping as the settlors and protectors on 1 June 2016 for their own
benefit. The entire share capital of ZYSP YIHAI Ltd is wholly owned
by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited as the trustee of the ZYSP Trust. Mr.
Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping (as founders of the ZYSP Trust) and UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are taken to be interested in the Shares held by
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd for the purpose of the SFO.
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ZYSP YIHAI LtdH¥ 23R ABHUBS
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UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited 5t 3% % A
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SL Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms.
Li Haiyan as the settlors and protectors on 2 June 2016 for their own
benefit. The entire share capital of SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd
is wholly owned by Twice Happiness Limited and ultimately owned by
Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited as the trustee of the SL Trust.
Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan (as founders of the SL Trust), Twice
Happiness Limited and Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited are taken
to be interested in the Shares held by SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd
for the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Shi Yonghong is the spouse of Ms. Li
Haiyan and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the Shares
in which Ms. Li Haiyan is interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Li
Haiyan is the spouse of Mr. Shi Yonghong and is deemed to be interested
in the same number of the Shares in which Mr. Shi Yonghong is interested
for the purpose of the SFO.

Vistra Trust (HK) Limited is the trustee and JLJH YIHAI Ltd is the nominee
to administer the RSU Scheme. JLJH YIHAI Ltd holds the Shares
underlying the RSU granted by us for the benefit of eligible participants
pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

During the reporting period, 8,062,000 Shares were vested pursuant
to the RSU Scheme. Among which, 240,000 Shares were vested and
transferred to the respective grantees, and 65,704,000 Shares were
vested but the transfer to the respective grantees was not completed as
at 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2019, 73,766,000 Shares were
held by JLJH YIHAI Ltd.

UBS Group AG is interested in 1,180,000 shares as person having
a security in share and 72,214,591 shares as interest of corporation
controlled by it via secured wholly owned subsidiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company are not aware of any other person
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors, and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2019 and up to the date of this annual report was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of the shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18
were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such
right.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Our History, Reorganization
and Corporate Structure — Reorganization” in the Prospectus and save
for their respective interests in the Group, none of the Directors and
the Controlling Shareholders was interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the businesses of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

We have received annual written confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders, consisting of Mr. Zhang Yong, Ms. Shu Ping and
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd, of the compliance with the provisions of the Non-
competition Undertaking by such Controlling Shareholders and their
close associates.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking during the year
ended 31 December 2019 based on the information and confirmation
provided by or obtained from the Controlling Shareholders, and were
satisfied that our Controlling Shareholders have duly complied with the
Non-competition Undertaking.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has not issued any
convertible bonds.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Company has not entered
into any loan agreement which contains covenants requiring specific
performance of the Controlling Shareholders.

Among the related party transactions disclosed in note 34 to the
Financial Statements, the following transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the
Listing Rules and are required to be disclosed in this annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that for the related party transactions falling under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
it had complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please see below the information
required to be disclosed in compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

1. Chengdu Lease Agreement

On 6 July 2018, Sichuan Haidilao and Chengdu Yueyihai, our
wholly owned subsidiary, entered into the Chengdu Lease
Agreement, including the supplemental agreement, pursuant to
which Chengdu Yueyihai agreed to lease from Sichuan Haidilao
a parcel of land together with properties and fixtures thereon
to be used for production and warehousing. Sichuan Haidilao
is our connected person and therefore the transactions under
the Chengdu Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Chengdu Lease Agreement has a term of two years from

1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 6 July 2018 for details.
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The annual caps for the rental payable under the Chengdu Lease
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 are
RMB4,500,000 and RMB4,500,000, respectively. Please also refer
to note 34 to the Financial Statements for details. The aggregate
transaction amount incurred in accordance with the Chengdu
Lease Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB2,932,000.

Sichuan Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement

On 6 July 2018, Sichuan Haidilao and Yihai Shanghai, our wholly
owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
entered into the Sichuan Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service
Agreement, pursuant to which Sichuan Haidilao Group agreed
to provide warehousing facilities and related services, including
warehouse storage, sorting process management, stock-taking,
and other logistics services, to the Group in connection with
storage of our products. Sichuan Haidilao is our connected
person and therefore the transactions under the Sichuan Haidilao
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Sichuan Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement has
a term of two years from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6 July
2018 for details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Haidilao
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2020 are RMB300,000 and RMB360,000,
respectively. Please also refer to note 34 to the Financial
Statements for details. The aggregate transaction amount
incurred in accordance with the Haidilao Warehouse Storage
Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB245,000.
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Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement

On 6 July 2018, Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai Shanghai, our
wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, entered into the Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service
Agreement, pursuant to which Shuhai Supply Chain Group agreed
to provide warehousing facilities and related services, including
warehouse storage, sorting process management, stock-taking,
and other logistics services, to the Group in connection with
storage of our products. Shuhai Supply Chain is our connected
person and therefore the transactions under the Shuhai
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement has a term
of two years from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6 July 2018 for
details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Shuhai
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2020 are RMB10,600,000 and
RMB17,400,000, respectively. Please also refer to note 34 to
the Financial Statements for details. The aggregate transaction
amount incurred in accordance with the Shuhai Warehouse
Storage Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019
was RMB9,508,000.
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Master Sales Agreement

On 6 July 2018, Singapore Haidilao and Yihai Shanghai, our
wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, entered into the Master Sales Agreement, pursuant
to which we agreed to supply Haidilao Customized Products,
Haidilao Retail Products and Small Hotpot Products to the
Haidilao Group. Singapore Haidilao is our connected person and
therefore the transactions under the Master Sales Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The Master Sales Agreement has a term of two years from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020. Please refer to the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 6 July 2018
and 19 July 2018, respectively, for details.

The annual caps receivable under the Master Sales Agreement
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 are
RMB2,337,900,000 and RMB3,567,300,000, respectively. Please
also refer to note 34 to the Financial Statements for details. The
aggregate transaction amount incurred in accordance with the
Master Sales Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019
was RMB1,625,628,000.
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Shuhai Sales Agreement

On 6 July 2018, Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai Shanghai,
our wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries, entered into the Shuhai Sales Agreement,
pursuant to which we agreed to sell hot pot soup flavoring
products, hot pot dipping sauce products and other compound
condiment products to Shuhai Supply Chain Group for sales and
distribution to its customers who are catering service providers.
Shuhai Supply Chain is our connected person and therefore
the transactions under the Shuhai Sales Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Shuhai Sales Agreement has a term of two years from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020. Please refer to the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 6 July 2018
and 19 July 2018, respectively, for details.

The annual caps for the transactions under the Shuhai Sales
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 are
initially RMB19,660,000 and RMB29,500,000, and further revised
to RMB80,860,000 and RMB131,660,000 respectively. Please
refer to the announcement and circular of the Company dated
10 June 2019 and 14 June 2019, respectively. Please also refer
to note 34 to the Financial Statements for details. The aggregate
transaction amount incurred in accordance with the Shuhai
Sales Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB37,410,000.
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Framework Sales and Purchase Agreements

On 18 September 2017, the Joint Venture and Yihai Shanghai,
our wholly owned subsidiary and for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, entered into the Framework Sales and Purchase
Agreements, pursuant to which (i) we agreed to sell hot pot soup
flavouring products to the Joint Venture as raw materials for the
manufacture of Small Hot Pot Products; and (ii) the Joint Venture
agreed to sell Small Hot Pot Products to us. The Joint Venture is
our connected subsidiary and therefore transactions under the
Framework Sales and Purchase Agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Framework Sales and Purchase Agreements have an initial
term of three years from 6 November 2017 to 31 August 2020
and is renewable for further term of three years from time to
time, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable
laws and regulations. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 18 September 2017 and 6 November 2017 for
details.

As the Framework Sales and Purchase Agreement will expire on
31 August 2020, the Joint Venture and Yihai Shanghai entered into
a new Framework Sales and Purchase Agreement on 6 July 2018
for a term of four months from 1 September 2020 to 31 December
2020. The nature of the new Framework Sales and Purchase
Agreement is similar to the Framework Sales and Purchase
Agreement. Please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 6 July 2018 and 19 July 2018, respectively, for
details.

The annual caps for the transactions under the Framework Sales
and Purchase Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2019
and 2020 are initially RMB205,500,000 and RMB356,666,000,
and further revised to RMB258,362,000 and RMB452,317,000
respectively. Please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 10 June 2019 and 14 June 2019, respectively, for
details. Please also refer to note 34 to the Financial Statements for
details. The aggregate transaction amount incurred in accordance
with the Framework Sales and Purchase Agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was RMB185,615,000.
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Shuhai Purchase Agreement

On 10 June 2019, the Company and Shuhai Supply Chain entered
into the Shuhai Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which we
agreed to purchase food ingredients (such as beef and bovine
offal) from Shuhai Supply Chain Group. Such food ingredients
will primarily be used in the manufacture of the Small Hot Pot
Products. Shuhai Supply Chain is our connected person and
therefore the transactions under the Shuhai Purchase Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The Shuhai Purchase Agreement has a term of not more than two
years from 10 June 2019 to 31 December 2020. Please refer to
the announcement and circular of the Company dated 10 June
2019 and 14 June 2019, respectively, for details.

The annual caps for the Shuhai Purchase Agreement for the
seven months ended 31 December 2019 and the year ended
31 December 2020 are RMB85,584,000 and RMB228,037,000,
respectively. Please also refer to note 34 to the Financial
Statements for details. The aggregate transaction amount incurred
in accordance with the Shuhai Purchase Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was RMB22,266,000.

The Group has followed policies and guidelines when determining
the price and terms of the continuing connected transactions
conducted for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The auditor of the Group has reviewed the continuing connected
transactions referred to above and confirmed to the Board that
the continuing connected transactions: (i) have received the
approval of the Board; (ii) were in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group; (iii) were entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing the transaction; and (iv) have not
exceeded the caps.
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The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that
the above continuing connected transactions were entered into
by the Group: (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (jii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement (including the pricing principle and
guidelines set out therein) governing them and on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company has designated a team of senior management from
business operation, legal, risk control and finance departments
and Board office to monitor the continuing connected transactions
and ensure that the continuing connected transactions with the
abovementioned connected persons are on arm’s length basis
and that the annual caps are not exceeded. Such team of senior
management continuously traces and regularly monitors the
progress of the continuing connected transactions and reports
to management of the Company. They review the continuing
connected transactions with the finance department to ensure that
annual caps are not exceeded. They will also communicate with
the Audit Committee, management and the Board of Directors,
monthly or as needed, to report the progress of the continuing
connected transactions, and request for approval of new changes
of existing transaction terms. The heads of different departments
of the Company will be informed on a periodic basis in relation
to the terms and pricing policies of the continuing connected
transactions as well. The Audit Committee has also assigned
the independent internal audit team the task to ensure that the
Company’s internal control measures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions remain effective and complete. With
these measures, the independent non-executive Directors could
therefore assess and give the confirmations in the preceding
paragraph.

Save for disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2019, we have not entered into any connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which should be disclosed
pursuant to the Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, there were no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or its connected
entity (within the meaning of Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance)
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, and subsisting
during the year ended 31 December 2019 or as of 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, no contract of significance was
entered into between the Company, or one of its subsidiary companies,
and any of its Controlling Shareholders or subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this annual report.

Pursuant to Article 33 of the Articles of Association and subject to
Cayman Islands Companies Law, each Director shall be indemnified,
out of the assets of the Company, against all losses or liabilities
incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his/
her favor, or in which he/she is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance

coverage for the Directors of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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As at 31 December 2019, we had 1,907 employees. The remuneration
of our employees includes salaries and allowances. We provide training
to our staff to enhance technical and product knowledge. The Group’s
remuneration policies are formulated based on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly. The Group follows
closely the demand of business development and continuously
improves its incentive system and implements a competitive
remuneration policy.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to the Directors.
Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to the
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group. Details of the Directors’ remuneration during the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in note 36 to the Financial Statements.

In accordance with the laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group
has arranged for its PRC employees to join defined contribution
plans, including pension, medical, housing and other welfare benefits,
organised by the PRC government. No forfeited contribution under this
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
The Group also provides social insurance, including pension insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and medical
insurance for the employees of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company did not have
any share option scheme which was required to be disclosed.
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The Company has approved and adopted a RSU Scheme by a
resolution of the Shareholders on 24 February 2016 and a resolution of
the Board on 24 February 2016. The RSU Scheme is not subject to the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as the RSU Scheme does
not involve the grant of options by the Company to subscribe for new
Shares.

The RSUs do not carry any right to vote at general meetings of
the Company. No RSU grantee shall enjoy any of the rights of a
Shareholder by virtue of the grant of an award of RSUs (the “Award”)
pursuant to the RSU Scheme, unless and until such Shares underlying
the Award are actually transferred to the RSU grantee upon vesting
of the RSU. Unless otherwise specified by the Board in its entire
discretion, the RSU grantees do not have any rights to any cash or
non-cash income, dividends or distributions and/or the sale proceeds
of non-cash and non-scrip distributions from any Shares underlying an
Award. Please refer to the section headed “Appendix IV — Statutory and
General Information” of the Prospectus for details.

The Company approved and granted 9,140,000 RSUs among which
1,510,000 were granted to two Directors pursuant to the RSU Scheme
on 28 December 2016. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 December 2016 for details. As at 31 December
2019, 620,000 RSUs out of the 9,140,000 RSUs that were granted
on 28 December 2016 have been cancelled due to resignation of our
employees and all of the remaining RSUs (i.e. 8,520,000 RSUs) have
been vested in accordance with the vesting period as set out in the
announcement.

The Company approved and granted 1,510,000 RSUs among which
770,000 were granted to five Directors pursuant to the RSU Scheme on
9 December 2018. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 December 2018 for details. As at 31 December 2019, all of
the 1,510,000 RSUs have been vested in accordance with the vesting
period as set out in the announcement.
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The Company approved and granted 750,000 RSUs among which
670,000 were granted to five Directors pursuant to the RSU Scheme on
27 December 2019. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 27 December 2019 for details. As at 31 December 2019, all of
the 750,000 RSUs have been vested in accordance with the vesting
period as set out in the announcement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no RSU had been
granted or agreed to be granted by the Company pursuant to the RSU
Scheme.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no equity-linked
agreement entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the respective percentage
of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five
largest suppliers in aggregate was 5.3% and 23.5%; and the respective
percentage of the total sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers was 14.3% and 38.9%.

Our largest customer was Xinpai Shanghai, second largest customer
was Sichuan Haizhiyan Trading Co., Ltd.* (H)IiB2EE ZER A7)
and third largest customer was Sichuan Xinpai Catering Management
Co., Ltd. ()| ¥k B EEFR A F)), all of which are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Haidilao International Holding Ltd (stock code: 6862).
The aggregate percentage of the total sales attributable to these three
largest customers was 36.2%. Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping are
the controlling shareholders, and Mr. Shi Yonghong and his spouse are
the substantial shareholders of Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had a material interest in our five largest suppliers or customers.
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Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries have
been made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code since the Listing Date and up
to the date of this annual report.

The Company’s employees, who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company, have also been subject to the Model Code
for securities transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by the Company’s employees was noted by the Company since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company had applied the principles and code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and has complied with
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code for the year
ended 31 December 2019, except for the deviation from the Corporate
Governance Code provision A.2.1. Please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report of this annual report for details.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
certified public accountants.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-appointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the AGM.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
19 May 2020 to Friday, 22 May 2020, both days inclusive, in order
to determine the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote at
the AGM. The Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Monday, 18
May 2020 will be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
before 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 18 May 2020.The register of members
of the Company will also be closed from Thursday, 28 May 2020 to
Monday, 1 June 2020, both days inclusive, in order to determine the
entitlement of the Shareholders to the final dividend. The Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at
the close of business on Monday, 1 June 2020 will be entitled to the
final dividend. In order to be eligible to entitle to the final dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 May
2020.

By order of the Board
Shi Yonghong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 20 April 2020
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LT3 LT3

Yihai International Holding Limited (hereinafter “Yihai”, “the Group”, “the
Company” or “we”) is pleased to present our report on Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) for the year 2019 (“the Report”). This
is the fourth consecutive ESG report we have disclosed to the public
regarding our ESG management philosophy and performance of our
practices. We aim to disclose in this report the concepts and practices
on sustainable development of the Group in a transparent manner and
enhance the mutual understanding and communication of the various
stakeholders of the Group.

The Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) by Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (‘HKEx”). We follow the principles of importance,
quantification, balance and consistency, and strive to fully represent
our current management status and performance results in terms of
environmental, social and governance for the year. This report should
be read together in conjunction with the “Corporate Governance
Report” in the Group’s 20719 Annual Report for a more comprehensive
understanding of the Group’s ESG performance. The Report has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide.
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Unless otherwise stated, the Report covers the period from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2019 which is the same as the period covered by
the annual report of the Company. All data involved in the Report are
derived from internal documents or statistical reports of the Group.

ESG Concept

We believe that sustainable and robust ESG performance is essential
to the sustainable development of the Group’s business and the
community where the Group operates. The dynamic combination of
commercial and social needs is bound to embrace more influential
social effects. We are not only committed to achieving sound financial
performance, but also realising greater overall benefits through
actively identifying stakeholders’ expectations, discovering areas
where our business development coheres with environmental and
social demands, exercising prudent management over our ESG risks,
fully integrating our existing and potential resources to provide more
value-added products and services for the society, striving to enhance
our corporate value and ensuring the Group’s long-term sustainable
development.

ESG Governance System

The Group has established an ESG governance system that functions
at different levels where the Board of Directors takes responsibilities,
the management takes a leading role, and departments cooperate
flexibly to effectively carry out ESG actions. The Board of Directors is
responsible for reviewing and supervising the implementation of the
ESG strategy and objectives on a regular basis. The management is
responsible for implementing the ESG strategy and objectives. The
ESG Working Group formed by various departments of the headquarter
is responsible for carrying out specific ESG work in their respective
fields of work. Branches and sub-branches are responsible for carrying
out local ESG work under the guidance of the ESG Working Group.
The establishment of the ESG governance system ensures that the
environmental and social risks related to each business are properly
managed and that the ESG concept and strategy are effectively
implemented.
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RE  HERERERE

Communication with Stakeholders and Substantial Analysis

The Group has maintained effective communication with the
stakeholders through various channels, with an objective to fully
understand and actively respond to their comments and demands, thus
enabling our business and operations to better satisfy their needs and
expectations through continuous enhancement of internal optimisation
and management.
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Major Stakeholders ESG Topics Communication Channels
FEREMERA ESG# & BERE
Government and Regulators Compliance with laws and regulations Meetings of government and regulators
AT EEEARPT BRTE BREERBNES
Transparent governance Disclosure of compliance reports
ZERRE BRBERE
Environmental management Forums and seminars
RREHE mERMHE
Taxation in accordance with law Institutional inspection
HRE B HEER
Investors Operation compliance Strengthen internal control management
REE BRKE BibrEERE
Investment return Shareholders’ meeting
RELHR RERE
Market development Regular announcement
FA™ES EHRDE
Product innovation Temporary announcement
EmAIF SN
Employees Employee rights Workers’ representative conference
=] BTIfs BIARKE
Employee remuneration and benefits  Employee activities
BTHBEER BTEH
Occupational Health and Safety Internal training
BEREZE R &R S
Training and development Symposium
ST #EZI BERE
Customers Product quality and safety Industry Research
HEE EmBESHEZE 1T
Customer rights Customer Complaint hot line
EFER EFPRFER
Customer service Satisfaction survey
B F R MR ERE
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Major Stakeholders ESG Topics Communication Channels
FEFEEMRA ESG#E BERE
Suppliers Transparent procurement Supplier management
fHtrEm ERRE HERER
Equal competition Supplier inspection
FEBF HERER
Business ethics Supplier communication
[GESERES HEFER
Community and the public Community development Volunteer activities
HEEAR HEER SREEEE
Social welfare Public welfare activities
HEARE NEIEE
Public charity Charitable contribution
N@mBEE HERE

We conducted substantial analysis on the 11 ESG topics presented
in the ESG Reporting Guide and identified the material topics for
the current year by considering the Group’s strategy and business
development direction for the year. The analysis results indicated
that topics in relation to “Product Responsibility”, “Emissions”, “Use
of Resources”, “Environmental and Natural Resources”, and “Health
and Safety” had a higher level of materiality; while those in relation
to “Employment”, “Development and Training”, “Labour Standards”,
“Supply Chain Management”, “Anti-corruption” and “Community
Investment” had a lower level of materiality. The Group will discuss the

contents of each topic in the Report.

The Group attaches great importance to product quality management
and devotes itself to ensuring product safety and quality and the
legitimate rights and interests of consumers through the continuous
improvement of quality management procedures. In 2019, we were
not aware of any violation of laws or regulations governing product
responsibility regarding product quality, advertising, labelling,
consumer privacy and rights protection, etc., which led to any lawsuit
with significant impact on the Group.
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RE  HERERERE

Focus on Food Safety

As a responsible food production enterprise, the Group strictly
observes food-related laws and regulations and regulatory standards,
such as the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Measures for the Administration of Food Recall of the People’s
Republic of China, and the National Food Safety Standard - Compound
Seasoning. Through strictly managing and controlling each and every
production procedure, we are committed to providing consumers with
qualified, safe and assured products and comprehensively enhancing
consumer confidence and satisfaction in our products. In response to
the update of the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China in
2019, we developed the bottom line standard for food safety, clarified
the standards and bottom lines in all processes from raw materials
to finished products, and further enhanced food safety control. In
2019, the National Food Safety Standard — Compound Seasoning (GB
31644-2018) took effect. We tested and evaluated all related products
in accordance with the relevant standards for compound seasoning
products, and updated the labelling on the package to carry out food
safety management.

To ensure product quality, we implemented all-round quality verification
process from raw materials to finished products in a more rigorous
way: we continued to strengthen the examination on supplier access
qualification from the beginning and introduce only the qualified
suppliers by sample testing, the supplier can only be introduced after
being qualified; each batch of raw materials were verified upon arrival
in accordance with relevant standards; during production, parameters
were verified and controlled based on the work flow; we developed
Regulations on Food Safety Rewards and Punishments, and involved
external professional organisations to inspect suppliers’ factories
in accordance with the Regulations on Food Safety Rewards and
Punishments and relevant laws and regulations. The results would
affect the factory’s points-based management and would be directly
associated with the factory’s performance; each batch of products
were verified before delivery from the factory to ensure every single
product can meet our quality requirement. Additionally, in 2019, we
strictly screened and evaluated all quality management personnel, and
conducted work-with-certification training for employees responsible
for on-site quality control, raw material delivery and acceptance,
product release, and supplier review. We further optimised the quality
of raw materials, the production process and quality standards of
finished products through risk analysis of the whole supply chain.
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To enhance product quality control of OEM and ODM, we carried out
on-site management, inspections and sample tests of products. We
set up OEM and ODM management teams to manage and supervise
OEM products: When the OEM was introduced, the management team
carried out risk assessment in advance and conducted on-site review
and certification, and only the companies that passed the certification
can be introduced into use; different OEM factories are managed in
different ways based on their risk levels, and the A-level factories with
high risks required full-time on-site supervision; the Food and Safety
Department conducted in-depth evaluations of the product inspection
capabilities of all OEM factories, and required the inspection personnel
of OEM factories to work with certification, further improving product
safety and quality control.

In terms of product recall, the Group prepared its Food Recall
Management Policy in line with the Measures for the Administration of
Food Recall of the People’s Republic of China based on the Group’s
business characteristics, which elaborated and improved relevant
categories and emergency measures for product recall, making product
recall process more compliant, clear and convenient. If a problem
of quality or safety was detected in the products in stock, we would
isolate the defective products in a timely manner to stop delivery. If
the delivered products were defective, we would look up shipping
destinations and communicate with relevant distributors, logistics
stations or stores in a timely manner to stop selling, and isolate such
products for inspection. Follow-up measures would be taken later in
accordance with the Process for Handling Nonconforming Products to
prevent defective products flowing into the market. If the sold products
were reported to have safety problems, the Group would make internal
records according to consumers’ feedback in a timely manner, and
relevant departments would analyse the causes and put forward
schemes for improvement; at the same time, the Quality Assurance
Department and Customer Service Centre would coordinate and
cooperate to solve the problems for consumers in an effective way.

Promotion of Product Traceability

The Group attaches great importance to source management and
continuously promotes the whole-process traceability management
of products in order to enhance its ability to control the quality of
products. All products of the Group can be traced in the factory by the
QR code on the product package. In terms of main raw materials such
as salad oil, beef tallow, tomato, Sichuan pepper, mushroom, etc., we
strive to trace back to specific companies, product batches, and even
planting fields, strictly control product quality, and enhance food safety
guarantees to assure our consumers.
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Case: Traceable Tomatoes

The tomatoes used as raw materials by the Group can be traced
from seed selection to product delivery. At the planting stage, the
varieties of tomatoes and the selection of growers are determined after
evaluation, and all the pesticides used are collected by suppliers and
then distributed to growers. At each stage of tomato growth, quality
control personnel will conduct spot check on farmers to verify whether
they have applied fertilizer, watered, weeded and other field work in
accordance with the requirements and proportion. At the harvesting
stage, suppliers arrange the centralised machinery collections, and
directly send the harvest to the detection area of the processing
factory to be tested for maturity and quality before going through any
organisations and warehouses. After passing the test, tomatoes will be
immediately cleaned and put into production. The whole process takes
no more than 4-6 hours. For the whole production process of ketchup,
tomatoes are processed in closed pipelines and directly bottled and
sealed. Every barrel of ketchup has an identification number used for
tracing its information including specific production line, bottling nozzle,
delivery vehicle, planting field and seed type.

Case: Beef Tallow Quality Control

Beef tallow is one of the important raw materials for the Group’s
production. The Group traces the source through the refinery to specific
body parts. There are requirements on suppliers’ qualification and the
Group only accepts tallow from three parts including sirloin oil, tripe oil,
split oil to prevent miscellaneous oil and fake oil. Meanwhile, in order to
ensure the food safety, the Group adopts on-site supervision to verify
the qualification certificates of upstream suppliers for each batch of
raw materials, and supervises the whole process of material feeding.
Suppliers need to provide us with the product processing technology
and regularly provide their updated information and qualification
certificates. The Group’s quality control personnel audit the upstream
cattle slaughtering plant to ensure the safety and compliance of raw
materials. To ensure the stability of the flavour, suppliers organise
on-site personnel and internal quality control personnel to conduct
on-site examination before each shipment, and the Group’s on-site
personnel is to stamp for passing the examination and approving
permission of release for the shipment.
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Satisfaction of Health Demands

The Group promotes the nutrition and health of food and actively
responds to the concept of “Three Reductions and Three Healthies”
proposed in the National Nutrition Plan (2017-2030), including salt
reduction, oil reduction, sugar reduction, healthy mouth, healthy weight,
and healthy bones. The Group takes into account consumers’ health
demands and is committed to providing consumers healthy food.

We conduct online surveys on consumer satisfaction through
online evaluations and fan-based surveys, and decision-making for
service quality and our product improvement is based on consumer
evaluations. We continue to develop new products and optimise
existing products based on the health and nutrition needs of various
consumers. Meanwhile, the Group sets up the Sensory Testing
System, under which a product is tasted for feedback on its flavour in
simulated consumption scenarios during product release process, in an
attempt to provide a direction for improvement on consumers’ sensory
experience and reduce poor consumer experience due to unstable
taste of our products.

Hotpot condiment is the Company’s main product. Traditional Sichuan
spicy hotpot leaves consumers the impression of high fat and salt. On
such basis, the Group carries out researches on healthy oil and fat, and
“Less Salt, Same Taste”, committed to making hotpot condiments with
healthier raw materials and healthier fats.

We have met the health needs of consumers in a directional manner.
At present, we are implementing “clean labels” throughout the
Company that is, using as few additives as possible in products and
preserving natural food in the ingredient. Additives of all our products
are in compliance with relevant food regulations, based on which we
advocate less additives and more natural food, and are committed to
solving preservative problems with natural additives. Currently, “clean
labels” covers all the products of the Group.

The Company also consider the needs of international consumers, and
specifically collects dining preferences of consumers in all countries
and regions, so as to meet consumers’ needs and optimise products.
We are aware that international consumers have higher health
requirements for oil, fat and tomato products. Therefore, the Group has
set up projects and conducted research on such needs. R&D projects

B HERERERS

mEREEERR

AEE+IBEIERNEEERERE &
BEFE(EREEFTE (2017-20304F) )
REWNI=R=@ 8=  BNRE &
OB BREOR  BREREREE  #F
BE Y BEZEEHEBENREFRRK &
HREEEBELZEEL  15#E -

EMERR LRBENE BERAS
ERAMRKLEEERBERAE I
EREEEVE ARBEEREMHN
ERMARRMEE - RPARBIEHESE
MEREEENTER  THRENNER
THEENERETEL - B A&
Ry T(RBEAERFE)  EERBIT
BRET  BRNAEEREESSR - M7
EmO%  ARSHEEERERRER
TRERR - WD T EALRWEmM DK
TREMEKIEEE TERER -

KBARBERBAARDNERER
BRI KRB AATHE - B
BHER - BRI AEERRE TR
HBERTSE ~ R B TRER TR - R
AERENREME - BEREAMIERE
KBRS - LAERAZ AR -

EMBERAMBEIBEEEENRES
R BAEMEZRAAETIERRE
B EERPEESHERFME
REGBEHFINERRAABM - &
NEFBEEMNANEEFSHEERR
BERAE  EUHERLE > RAREDR
s BERA - BORAR AR T A
REFBEE - BRI ERER I THEES
AEEFRENER °

RRREEREIBEIINEEENER » &
MUEEEBEZMtEEEENAE
R BURIMBUEBEENFERLBLE
me RMTHE  BEIEEEHRE
Je - BEMARERESHRETR
LEAREES B EERETLIRNE - B

117



118

RE  HERERERE

currently focus on reducing oil and fat in the hotpot condiments,
reducing the irritation to the stomach and intestines from Sichuan
pepper and spice, while preserving good taste. The ingredients are
optimised to meet the needs of international consumers.

Pursuant to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Group practices sustainable development concepts of
low-carbon, environmental protection, energy saving and emission
reduction, to actively fulfil its environmental responsibilities. We actively
identify the latest environmental compliance requirements through
the official websites of national and local government agencies and
WeChat public accounts, timely update the laws and regulations
database applicable to the business of the Group, and continuously
improve safety and environmental protection management system on
such basis to ensure the operating activities of the Group are legal and
compliant.

While enhancing our environmental compliance management system,
we have been exploring feasible energy-saving and emission reduction
technologies and procedures during the course of business. Besides,
the Group has also attempted to enhance the staff’'s awareness of
environmental protection to minimise the impact of our production
and operation activities on the surrounding environment. No violation
of laws and regulations or legal actions concerning the Group’s
environmental protection was reported in 2019.

Improvement of Safety and Environmental Protection Management
System

Based on the applicable laws and regulations identified, we develop
new management policies such as the Contractor Safety Management
Policy, Environmental Risk Assessment and Management Policy,
and Fire Safety Management Policy, and revise the Environmental
Protection Management Policy to further clarify the management scope
of contractors and strengthen supervision; to specify classification of
chemical accidents to clarify statistical standards for accident rates; in
terms of the environment, to instruct factories to evaluate environmental
risks, promote compliance management, reduce violations risks, and
continuously improve the Group’s safety and environmental protection
management system. The Group also regularly conducts compliance
reviews auditing on the operation of the safety and environmental
protection system of various factories to ensure that the production
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processes are in compliance with laws and regulations. In 2019, the
Group developed the Red Bottom Line Management Policy. Based on
the gradually maturing management system of factories, the Group
authorised factories to rectify minor on-site problems to enhance the
flexibility of safety management. Meanwhile, the Group conducted
safety and environmental protection training for all frontline personnel,
and arranged examinations to ensure the effectiveness of the training.

In 2019, the Group further optimized the management and control
mechanism of production waste gas, waste water, solid waste,
hazardous waste and noise in each factory, effectively implemented
various measures for energy conservation, emission reduction and
hazardous waste treatment stipulated by the Group, and further
standardized and normalized the environmental management.

Emissions Control

The Group strictly abided by national and local laws, regulations and
standards for emissions, such as the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Law on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused
by Solid Wastes of the People’s Republic of China, and continuously
enhanced management and control measures for exhaust control,
sewage treatment and solid waste management.

Exhaust Emission Reduction

Regarding the aspect of exhaust emission control, the Group requires
all factories to install extraction hoods and oil smoke purifiers for better
purification of smoke. In 2019, we changed the existing spray treatment
to treatment that requires activated carbon adsorption, desorption
and catalytic combustion process. At present, the new treatment is
fully upgraded in Zhengzhou Factory and Bazhou Factory. Zhengzhou
ingredient fry workshop improved the oil smoke purification efficiency
from about 85% to more than 95% through this process, which greatly
facilitated emission reduction. We also plan to continue optimising the
emission system in Ma’anshan Factory and the Zhengzhou Factory in
2020 to improve the efficiency of waste gas treatment.
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Improvement of Waste Water Treatment

Due to the Group’s business nature, sewage arises from the wok
washing water discharged by stir-frying workshops. In this regard, all
factories have been equipped with a set of centralised suction and
discharge vacuum system and oil-water separation system to treat wok
washing water before direct discharge of sewage containing waste
oil. In 2019, the Group updated equipment and process for waste
water treatment. The new factory adopted CIP (clean in place) system,
to separate oil and water with oil filter tank before the waste water
entering the sewage station. In addition, all the factories of the Group
have sewage treatment stations. Waste water produced from factory
canteen is firstly pre-treated by an oil filter and purification tank, and
is then, together with domestic sewage from the factory area, sent to
the sewage treatment station in the factory area for further treatment.
Finally, the treated waste water is discharged of into the municipal
sewage treatment plant in the industrial park when it meets the national
emission standard.

Enhancement of Solid Waste Management

The Group expressly stipulates measures for managing solid waste in
the Environmental Protection Management Policy that all factories must
set up storage warehouses and garbage bins, and garbage must be
classified into general solid waste and hazardous waste by designated
staff after being collected from the bins.

General waste, such as household waste from the factories, is collected
for centralised treatment every day; raw material waste residues,
waste oil collected by oil smoke purifiers and waste package materials
are sent to qualified professional waste treatment companies for
processing. All hazardous wastes are kept in specialised warehouses,
reported to environmental protection authorities and then treated by
qualified third parties as required, including waste chemical reagents,
waste toner cartridges and ink cartridges and hazardous waste
batteries with special symbols. The Group’s monthly compliance audit
for the environment protecting management system of safe production
includes the audit for solid waste and hazardous waste to ensure
compliance. In 2019, all hazardous wastes produced by factories of the
Group were treated in line with laws and regulations.
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Promotion of Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction

We have continued to explore practical energy-saving measures
in our production and operation. We have achieved energy saving,
energy consumption reduction, carbon emission reduction by
measures including enhanced management, process upgrade of
factory technology, etc. The Group also steps up publicity efforts for
energy conservation and emission reduction to enhance employees’
environmental awareness.

To further integrate energy management and control into the production
and operation, we employ competent staff at the group level and skilled
engineers in factories to analyse energy usage in each production
line as well as guide and support the energy-saving management
and control in each production stage to save energy. We establish a
competition mechanism to reduce emissions and rank every factory
based on indicators such as energy consumption per unit to urge all
factories to actively promote energy efficiency.

Case: Energy saving and emission reduction effect of each factory

All factories have made excellent achievements in the conservation of
water, electricity, gas, paper, and fuel, as follows: the water trap was
upgraded for steam and water recycle to save 540 tons of water, 7,968
tons of steam, and RMB50,076 of cost per year; labelling was changed
to coding to save 3,585kg of paper per year; partially processed
condiments were converted to local production, saving 34,000 litres of
fuel from transportation annually; carton compressive capability was
changed from 4,000N to 3,000N, saving 14 tons of paper per year,
extraction and emission of cooking were improved, saving 370,000 kwh
of electricity per month.

We are constantly innovating and exploring more effective
energy-saving technologies. The Group upgraded the cooking process,
and changed gas wok to steam wok cooking in new factories, which
not only reduced energy loss to achieve energy saving, but also
improved the working environment of employees; the Group collected
and recycled the surplus heat from the production process to save
energy consumption. For example, Chengdu Factory used steam
panels to collect surplus heat from frying workshops, which is directly
used to heat cold water to provide hot water for production, saving
more than 2,000 cubic meters of natural gas per month. Extraction
method of workshops were improved to save electricity, for example,
Bazhou factory directly took out the smoke from the wok and replaced
the hood with a fan reducing average air volume of every wok by 3
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times, and saving the annual operating cost by RMB2.078 million;
the Group optimised the process or process parameters to reduce
energy consumption, for example, through the process optimisation,
Chengdu Factory saved electricity and labour by eliminating the cutting
operation of tomatoes, and the annual savings were about RMB72,000;
Ma’anshan Factory optimised hot oil stirring speed, shortened hot oil
heating time, and reduced energy consumption; Zhengzhou Factory
has optimised single-pot production, cutting labour costs and energy
consumption. Various measures on energy efficiency also brought
considerable economic benefits to the Company.

In terms of the use of water, the Company fully promoted water saving,
and posted publicity signs for water saving in public areas to remind
employees of water saving. Factories of the Group have introduced
evaporative condensers to improve the recycling rate of indirect
cooling water; automatic induction water outlet devices have been
installed in the wash basin of every workshop. Some factories (such as
Zhengzhou and Bazhou) have installed secondary/tertiary water meters,
and other factories are gradually implementing data monitoring and
conducting year-on-year analysis of water consumption to promote
water conservation. In addition, the new factories used CIP system to
separate oil and water, which eased burden of waste water treatment
and reduced water consumption.

In terms of carbon emission reduction, the Group optimised all
processes of transportation of raw materials, product manufacturing,
and transportation of finished products. For example, the Ma’anshan
factory uses baskets instead of boxes, when the transportation distance
of self-serving small hot pot’s raw materials and packaging materials
are relatively close, and reuses baskets to reduce packaging material
consumption. The Group has adjusted the transportation methods
of finished products. Starting from June, instead of factories directly
delivering to local distributors, the Group set up 6 sub-warehouses, and
developed a “factory-warehouse-local distribution” model, achieving
spot to spot transportation; we introduced some raw materials
suppliers of mini hotpots’ to Ma’anshan in 2019, reducing packaging
and transportation; additionally, when selecting and purchasing raw
materials for production, factories of the Group preferred local sources
or those from nearby regions where possible to improve efficiency
while saving energy.
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Environmental Performance RIFEIBENEK
Emissions and Energy Consumption HrHCH R BERERLR
Index Unit® 2018 2019°
1EiE By 20184 20194F°
Annual revenue million RMB 2,681.373 4,282.488
EX: 3PN BETARE
Emissions Tonnes 4.94 5.82
FER B ARE i
Stationary sources emission’ Tonnes 4.94 5.82
[ 3 5 BE R B Mg
No, emission Tonnes 0.89 1.19
—StRHHRE Mg
So, emission Tonnes 0.37 0.46
“E LR E 7}
Fume emission Tonnes 2.79 2.98
SHEBE 2 7}
Smoke and dust Tonnes 0.89 1.19
ye) = 7}
Annual emissions per revenue? Tonnes/million RMB 0.0018 0.0014
BUKLEWABERIEREE? W, BETARE
Total waste water discharged?® Tonnes 16.66 26.10
REKBE AR ES Mg
COD emission Tonnes 6.88 15.87
FH=(COD) 7}
BODs emission Tonnes 2.36 3.42
5HAELFEAE(BODs)HEHME I
Suspended solids Tonnes 5.96 5.65
L 3=27) I
Ammonia and nitrogen Tonnes 1.06 1.02
[g M
Animal and vegetable oils Tonnes 0.40 0.14
EpEYd 7}
Annual waste water discharged per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 0.0062 0.0061
BKE WA KBEREE W, BETARE
Total hazardous waste* Tonnes 2.9 7.03
AEEEYHEE" 7}
Waste chemical reagent Tonnes 2.6 6.57
BE{L 2 A 7}
Waste engine oil Tonnes 0.3 0.40
JBEHE 7}
Waste engine oil Tonnes 0.00 0.00
BERY) 7}
Waste lead-acid accumulators Tonnes 0.00 0.00
RSB E M 7}
Waste fluorescent lamps Tonnes 0.00 0.00
RN E 7}
Others Tonnes 0.00 0.06
H 7}
Annual hazardous waste per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 0.0011 0.0016
BURERAEERRYEE W BETARYE
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Emissions and Energy Consumption (Cont’d)

PR R sEFERDR (A8

Index Unit 2018 2019
EE B 20184 20194
Total non-hazardous waste® Tonnes 6,485.69 8,044.98
REBEZWES® 7}
Household waste Tonnes 544.60 586.50
HTEIIR U]
Sludge at sewage treatment stations Tonnes 1,381.00 1,413.00
VEE SV Mg
Production waste Tonnes 4,560.09 6,045.48
EEREY) 7}
Annual non-hazardous waste per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 2.42 1.88
BUKLEWABEZEZYHRE W BBTARYE
Total energy consumption® MWh 52,655.19 80,756.05
RERH B KR
Direct energy consumption MWh 40,143.80 53,821.70
EiEaREE JKELBF
Natural gas consumption MWh 40,019.73 53,683.83
RARHEFE JK FLBF
Petrol consumption MWh 42.61 97.57
FURHAES JKFLBF
Diesel consumption MWh 81.46 40.30
SOmHMER KR
Indirect energy consumption MWh 12,511.39 26,934.35
BiEREIRIHAE KRB
Electricity consumption MWh 12,511.39 26,934.35
EHEE JK FLBF
Annual energy consumption per revenue MWh/million RMB 19.64 18.86
EFFENRARTEEE KRR, BETARY
Municipal water consumption Tonnes 236,680.57 385,008.00
THAERKERE I
Annual municipal water consumption per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 88.27 89.90
BUKERATHANRKERE W BETARYE
Total packaging materials consumption’ Tonnes 6,253.80 13,154.60
BEMEHERRET I
Annual packing materials consumption per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 2.33 3.07
BUKERABEMRMERZ W BETARYE

BESEFZERARD R



B HERERERS

BEREE AR

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Index Unit 2018 2019
B By 20184 20194
Total greenhouse emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2)'° Tonnes 16,798.93 27,725.84
MEREHEMEE (SBE— - SiE2) " I
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes 7,879.68 10,605.62
BiEH (ER—) 7}
Natural gas Tonnes 7,825.30 10,494.12
RAR U
Petrol and diesel Tonnes 54.38 111.50
)N E U7
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes 8,919.25 17,120.22
R (&) Mg
Outsourced power Tonnes 8,919.25 17,120.22
SNBE N
Annual greenhouse gas emissions per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 6.27 6.47
BARE R BEREHEK W BBTARE
Notes: i

1. Waste gases emitted from stationary sources consisting of nitrogen 1. EERERBEIBRFERNERFPRSEL

oxides, sulphur dioxide, fumes and particulates contained in exhausted Y- —E(LR - RE - BRYEAMK -
gases emitted by factories, which mainly come from the burning of FERRRRARRE  HP—FA
natural gas. Among others, the nitrogen dioxide emission is calculated HERRIBE (R - RARRENSEYE
based on the Coefficients on Pollutants Generated from the Combustion EREVETRE  —EMBEBUREE
of Coal and Natural Gas, sulphur dioxide emission is calculated based (REREEAGEFTMETZE > A
on the Practical Data Handbook for Environmental Protection, fume SEHERARIE 25 = H ESRIIRE A BB IR E
emission is calculated based on the data in monitoring reports prepared ETHE  EERERREE - XAR
by third parties, and smoke and dust emission is calculated based on the RIENSRYEERE) ETHRE -
Coefficients on Pollutants Generated from the Combustion of Coal and
Natural Gas.

2. Our self-owned vehicles did not consume much petrol and diesel, and 2. ZAATEHRBIAESALHFEREE
according to the principle of materiality, the data of mobile source B REBESEHRL  BEREERE
emissions is not disclosed. TREER BEREE -

3.  The data of COD (Chemical Oxygen Demand) emission, BODs (5 day 3. EEFREKF 1KE*§§(COD)§FB{

Biochemical Oxygen Demand) emission, suspended solids, ammonia 2 5% {LESEBOD)HEHE «
nitrogen indicator in waste water discharged from stationary sources is FY o SREEERBEEKEELEEKD
calculated based on total waste water discharged at the outlet of sewage H# ?3F7J< 25 IS LA Bk O BODs Y
treatment stations multiplied respectively by the average concentration of HRE - HKOABNTIIRE - HK
BOD:, total phosphorus, ammonia and nitrogen at the outlet. DSR2 FIRETESHEE -

4.  Hazardous waste is handed over to qualified third parties for treatment, 4. ﬁ%@ﬁ%s&?ﬁﬁé SE=LERE R

and is calculated based on the data recorded on the hazardous waste AN 3R & HA R 18 B R ) U 7% gk B o RS
transfer manifests or receipts of waste recyclers during the reporting #@J@Hﬁlﬁﬁlﬁl”ﬁl EiR E R BUIRETZ
period. =
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Non-hazardous waste includes household waste, sludge at sewage
treatment stations and production waste, and is calculated based on
the data provided by factories, waste pick-up units, or third-party waste
recyclers.

Energy consumption data, including electricity consumption, natural
gas consumption and fuel consumption of group-financed vehicles, is
calculated based on the consumption of electricity and fuel, and the
conversion factors provided in the General Principles for Calculation of
Total Production Energy Consumption (GB/T 2589-2008).

Packaging materials include tabs, inner packaging bags, condiment
product packaging boxes, white boxes, sauce product (including box
body, transparent cover and cover film), sauce product packaging boxes,
trays, small white barrels (including cover, barrel body and handle) and
condiment product rolling films.

The 2019 environmental density data are disclosed using environmental
performance data and the Group’s annual revenue.

The disclosure scope of environmental performance data in 2019 includes
Chengdu Yueyihai factory, Zhengzhou Shuhai factory, Ma’anshan Yihai
factory, Bazhou factory and Fuhai factory, among which Bazhou factory
and Fuhai factory are new included in the disclosure scope.

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide,
mainly resulted from outsourcing electricity, natural gas consumption,
diesel consumption of diesel-powered generators and group-financed
vehicles. Greenhouse gas emissions are measured in carbon dioxide
equivalents and calculated based on 2077 Baseline Emission Factors
for Regional Power Grids in China issued by the Ministry of Ecological
Environment of the People’s Republic of China and the 2006 IPCC
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories revised in 2019
issued by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).

An important component of the development strategy of the Group is
to “emphasise safe and quality food and prevent risks in the supply
of raw materials”. The Group has established a series of supply chain
management systems to develop a responsible supply chain and to
promote the improvement and development of the entire supply chain
system.

Strict Selection Criteria for Suppliers

The Group chooses suppliers in strict compliance with requirements
of laws and regulations such as the Anti-unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic of China, combined with Supplier Safety
Management Policy developed by the Company.

EREKRERAERA S

5. HBEBERWEELETLR  5KUT
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We require suppliers to submit qualification certificates and licenses,
and to sign a safety and environmental agreement. Those who fail to
provide satisfactory certificates will not be selected. We will give priority
to products and services of environmental protection and renewable
resources. We prioritise environmentally friendly raw materials when
designing products. For example, we use recyclable materials as
packaging, and use degradable carton packaging instead of plastic
barrels for food and beverage products.

During the review and assessment process, suppliers will fill in the
Supplier Assessment Form as required by the Company, which takes
environmental performance and employee health status of the suppliers
into account. Only those approved by the Company will win potential
cooperation. Suppliers are required to have access to environmental
protection facilities such as waste water treatment during the review.
Meanwhile, suppliers are encouraged to optimise process design and
reduce the use of resources and energy.

When establishing partnership, suppliers must sign valid contracts
and the Letter of Commitment Relating to Supplier Integrity and agree
to abide by Supplier Award System, Supplier Punishment System,
Supplier Delivery Rules and the Letter Relating to Spot Check on
Supplier Factories prior to effecting formal business, so as to ensure
that the suppliers accept supervision and review from the Group.
Requirements for supplier assessment from the ESG perspective
were incorporated into the Supplier Assessment Form by the Group in
response to relevant national policies this year, which emphasised on
assessing environment compliance of suppliers’ factories to lower risks
arising from environmental issues of suppliers that may affect regular

supply.

In 2019, we conducted 144 on-site supplier reviews on new suppliers
(including existing suppliers supplying new raw materials), and
conducted strict selection criteria for suppliers.

Enhancement of the Supplier System Construction

We also proactively carry out continuous on-site visits to suppliers
to pay close attention to market information regarding raw materials
and auxiliary materials, processing and manufacturing conditions, risk
resistance capabilities and state of operation of the suppliers, so as to
make better decisions as to whether the suppliers can meet long-term
procurement strategies of the Group. The Group requires purchasing
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staff responsible for contacting major production material suppliers to
regular visit these suppliers every half a year to ensure material safety
and stabilised product prices. After the visits, the purchasing staff
is required to fill in the Suppliers Revisit and Assessment Form and
submit to the supplier administrator for documentation and records.

The Group classifies suppliers into three levels of A, B and C based
on quantity and risk levels of raw materials. A-level suppliers are the
most important with strictest inspection, including salad oil, beef tallow,
tomato, Sichuan pepper, mushroom and so on. Based on different
raw materials, the risk levels and the Group’s special requirements,
we have developed customised review standards and specifications
to better identify risks to ensure that the raw material suppliers are in
line with laws and regulations, and the quality of raw materials meets
the Group’s requirements. In 2019, we adjusted and updated the
factory-examination standards on raw material suppliers based on
different industries. For example, the factory-examination standards
on suppliers engaging in rock sugar industry were distinguished
from the original factory-examination standards on raw materials and
auxiliary materials for food, and the factory-examination standards on
food packaging containers and non-food packaging containers were
distinguished. The updated standards took environmental protection
into consideration, and made clear requirements on enterprises’
pollutant discharge qualifications.

We examine suppliers regularly to mitigate raw material risks. In 2019,
on-site and real-time monitoring as well as monthly spot inspections
were adopted to beef tallow suppliers and fungus powder suppliers;
douban (broad bean chilli sauce) suppliers went through 3 spot
inspections in accordance with the production and service condition.
Centralised spot checks were carried out during the production period
on suppliers of quarterly production and annual sale of raw materials
while corresponding checks were carried out on suppliers of other
raw materials. Furthermore, the Group launched spot checks on
third parties in 2019, such as cross checks on Shuhai Supply Chain
Solutions (“Shuhai”) and Haidilao as our largest customer, inspects
some of the Group’s suppliers. By the end of 2019, we have conducted
141 on-site spot checks on existing suppliers of raw materials and
self-serving small hot pot and original equipment manufacturers (the
“OEMSs”), intensifying the daily supervision and management of the
existing suppliers.

The Group has established a performance evaluation system to
regularly assess suppliers according to the Suppliers Performance
Assessment and Evaluation Form, where ranking is divided into four
grades of A, B, C, and D. For suppliers with evaluation result of Grade
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A, the Group would provide them with preferential policies, such as
financial support, technical coaching, and guidance to its management
personnel and on-site directions from the Group’s quality control
team. Suppliers rated Grade D twice in a row will be added into the
list of eliminated suppliers. If there is a need to engage such a supplier
again, the supplier shall go through new application and evaluation
procedures for being engaged as a supplier. Suppliers violating
relevant regulations of the Group will be added into the Group’s
supplier blacklist, and in principle, such suppliers will never be engaged
again. They can be used only upon meeting special conditions for
example, they must undergo strict assessment, and can only be used
after at least a year from the date of being blacklisted. In addition, such
suppliers shall provide a warranty statement, and if similar problems
occur again, there will be no chance for future cooperation.

Extensive Communication with Suppliers

The Group regularly organises discussions on standards requirements
among suppliers. In 2019, key representative suppliers were gathered
for communication regarding the top ten materials. The Standard
Incentive Policy for Improvement was released and communicated.
Meanwhile, in 2019, the Group encouraged suppliers to put forward
valuable suggestions, and the reward for suggestions adopted reached
about RMB30,000. At the beginning of 2019, the Company held the
first General Meeting of Yihai Suppliers, presenting the guidelines for
selecting suppliers and daily management methods and collecting their
questions. We initiated communication to address such questions,
such as it was difficult to distinguish small yellow ginger from large
yellow ginger in the past, but now we use technology to test, and
inform the dealers of the company’s testing standards and methods. In
2019, self-serving small hot pot’s customer complaints from suppliers
were significantly decreased, down 50% compared with last year, and
thus suppliers’ economic losses were also significantly reduced.

At the same time, the Group listens to the voices of suppliers, and has
developed a variety of communication channels such as complaint
mailbox, hotline and WeChat platform. Once a complaint is received,
the Group will handle the case in accordance with the Suppliers
Complaint Response Procedures and reply with a Response Letter
to Supplier’s Opinion. For true and verified supplier complaints, the
Group will reward the suppliers in accordance with the Supplier
Award Regulations. The Group conducts opinion surveys for suppliers
every half a year, gives timely feedback to relevant departments
and personnel and replies to the suppliers regarding solutions and
outcomes.
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Support for Supplier Management Enhancement

The Group also focuses on market information regarding
product-related raw materials and future development in the industry.
For suppliers supplying products with characteristics but being
engaged in the industries which lacks standardised management, we
provide guidance on operating management and food processing for
suppliers. In doing so, characteristics of the products are retained, risks
of food safety are lowered, and consequently, enhancing the overall
level of the industry. In particular, a dedicated on-site supervision
team is assembled for the management of self-serving small hot pot
suppliers to ensure the quality of raw materials by various means
including raw material check, process monitoring, finished product
inspection, etc. Meanwhile, the quality of raw materials is checked
and the suppliers are examined and evaluated based on the problems
found.

In order to improve the quality management ability of OEM suppliers
and ensure a stable supply of raw materials, the Food Safety
Department has carried out training on laboratory testing knowledge
and ability for some laboratory testing personnel of OEM factories, and
hired third-party OEM factories to train the QC personnel of suppliers
on Global Standard for Food Safety (BRC standards). Meanwhile, with
a view to improving the efficiency of the verification teams of suppliers,
the Group has conducted training and examination of theoretical
knowledge for team members, and certification examination of on-site
practical operation. Team members are not allowed to carry out
inspection before obtaining certification.
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Suppliers Data HER BT
Programme/Year 2018 2019
HE FE 20184 20194
Total suppliers™ HEmBHE" 359 491
Overseas suppliers BIMEERE 2 10 9
Regional suppliers mERERESE 349 482
Suppliers in East China ERMBEHRERHE 108 169
Suppliers in Central and South China FEithEUERHE 88 111
Suppliers in North China EitihEHEREHE 47 104
Suppliers in Northwest China Al EHERHE 16 12
Suppliers in Southwest China ArEitEHEREE 85 81
Suppliers in Northeast China RitihEMEREHE 5 5

Suppliers that have completed risk ERERRE - HERMRTH

assessments on environment and society? tEFEH S 170 285

Notes:

11.  The location of a supplier is determined by its place of registration. The
suppliers in 2019 cover full category types of suppliers, whilst those in
2018 only covered those that were raw material suppliers.

12. Suppliers that have completed risk assessments on environment and
society refer to those which went through the risk assessment initiated by
relevant departments of the Group on environment and safety (including
environmental protection, human resource management, occupational
health and safety, etc.).

Employees are not only the key to the Group’s sustainable
development but also the most valuable asset. Adhering to the concept
of people oriented, we provide our employees with equal employment
opportunities, welfare, a platform for training and development and we
also attach significant importance to employees’ health and care.

Employment

In strict compliance with such laws and regulations as the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection on Minors, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Rights and Interests of Women and
Children, as well as administrative rules at operating sites, the Group
has established and developed human resources management system.
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The Group strictly abides by the legal procedures in the process
of signing, renewing, terminating and cancelling labour contracts
with employees, in order to guarantee all relevant procedures are
implemented in terms of fairness, open and justice. Any discrimination
against gender, nationality, age, race, geographical origin or family
status in the recruitment process are forbidden pursuant to the Yihai
Employee Recruitment Management Policy. As for the disabled, we
offer positions with relatively less requirements on skills such as online
customer service and guards. In 2019, we recruited ten disabled
persons. In addition, employment of child labour is strictly prohibited,
which is clearly established in the human resource information system
to ensure that the candidates under 16 years old cannot be recruited.
We clearly stipulate the working hours required for the position in
the employee’s labour contract, and add flexible working system to
the Yihai Employee Attendance, Vacation and Welfare System to
prohibit forced labour. In 2019, the Group did not engage in any illegal
employment and forced labour.

In 2019, we further carried out the talent introduction to recruit middle
and high-level talent through internal referrals, website recruitment,
head-hunting recommendation, etc. In addition, we also cooperated
with colleges and universities specialising in food science and
technology. By virtue of students’ graduation design and internship,
communication and mutual understanding between the Group and the
students were enhanced prior to their employment, which helps the
Group to identify talent more accurately.

Employee Remuneration and Benefits

Abiding by the national laws and regulations regarding minimum wage
and the basic welfare, the Group provides employees with various
social benefits and public holidays in accordance with relevant laws.
For those in high-risk positions, they are additionally covered by the
employer’s liability insurance. In 2019, the Group revised the Yihai
Employee Attendance, Leave and Welfare Policy to further standardise
maternity insurance for employees.
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The Group formulated a fair and transparent remuneration review and
promotion mechanism, providing competitive remuneration based
on different businesses and job requirements, as well as employees’
personal ability and performances. At the same time, the Group
provides comprehensive welfare benefits, including family visiting
vacation, housing subsidies, child care allowance, parental care
allowance, child education allowance, congratulatory gifts for birthday/
marriage/child-birth, injury allowance, and welfare for grandparents etc.
Besides, the Group organises a series of employee activities, including
parent-child companionship activities, sports events, skill contests,
amusements to strengthen employees’ experience of satisfaction and
belonging.

Case: Parent-Child Companionship Activities

At present, the Group is fully carrying out parent-child companionship
activities to make up for employees as parents who lack time to
accompany their children. We also encourage these employees to
bring their left-behind children to their side. The Group also provides
additional education subsidies, childcare subsidies and nursery
subsidies for senior employees. The Group is striving to reunite more
left-behind children with their parents. Except for financial support
above, the Group also provides psychological training and organises
parent-child companionship activities for employees and their children,
sparing them more time to interact with their children and better
understand their children’s psychological status. As at 31 December
2019, 88 families participated the parent-child companionship
activities.
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The Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE  HERER®RE

Case: Summer Camps for Employees’ Children

In order to enrich children’s life, help them achieve progress and
promote their healthy growth during the summer holidays, the
Group has initiated summer camps in many cities including Beijing,
Zhengzhou, Chengdu and Ma’anshan since 2016. The activities are
financed by the Group and all employees’ children are welcome to join.
2019 Summer Camp was themed with “Life Safety: Self-protection
+ Survival in the Wild” and 237 children of employees participated
in the camp. Aiming at strengthening their awareness and skills of
safeguarding, teaching them self-protection and helping them master
self-rescue knowledge and basic skills, the Group launched an activity
themed “wild survival” to increase the child’s willpower and train their
ability to adapt to the social environment.

ERERZERAERAE Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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B HERERRE
Employment and Employee Turnover ST EFER AR
Year 2018 2019
FE 20184 2019%
Total headcount HmES 1,976 1,907
By nature REBESE
Full-time employee 2H 1,632 82.6% 1,899 99.6%
Part-time employee FRE 344 17.4% 8 0.4%
By gender EHERSE
Male B 1,107 56.0% 1,092 57.3%
Female pog i3 869 44.0% 815 42.7%
By age group RERSE
<30 years old <305% 780 40% 704 36.9%
30-40 (exclusive) years old 308% —405% 715 36% 703 36.9%
40-50 (exclusive) years old 408% —505% 419 21% 420 22.0%
>=50 years old >=505% 62 3% 80 4.2%
By region™ RiESES
East China ERME 660 33.4% 927 48.6%
Central and South China ARt E 696 35.2% 356 18.7%
North China FEHE 414 21.0% 364 19.1%
Northwest China ki E 25 1.3% 29 1.5%
Southwest China AratthE 172 8.7% 196 10.3%
Northeast China RitihE 9 0.4% 24 1.3%
Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan BRAHE 0 0.0% 2 0.1%
Overseas ST 0 0.0% 9 0.4%
Total employee turnover AR 469 582
By gender RS E
Male B 301 64.2% 359 61.7%
Female pog i3 168 35.8% 223 38.3%
By age group RERSE
<30 years old <305% 195 41.6% 264 45.4%
30-40 (exclusive) years old 308% —405% 181 38.6% 190 32.6%
40-50 (exclusive) years old 408% —505% 77 16.4% 106 18.2%
>=50 years old >=505% 16 3.4% 22 3.8%
By region ZiESE
East China ERME 248 52.9% 430 73.9%
Central and South China ARt E 102 21.7% 23 4.0%
North China FEHE 91 19.4% 102 17.5%
Southwest China it 21 4.5% 27 4.6%
Northeast and Northwest China RitRFdtihE 7 1.5% 0 0.0%
Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan BRAHE 0 0.0% 0 0.0%
Overseas ST 0 0.0% 0 0.0%
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13. East China covers Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui, Fujian, Jiangxi and
Shandong.

Central and South China covers Henan, Hubei, Hunan, Guangdong,
Guangxi and Hainan.

North China covers Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shanxi and Inner Mongolia.

Northwest China covers Ningxia, Xinjiang, Qinghai, Shaanxi and Gansu.

Southwest China covers Chongging, Sichuan, Guizhou, Yunnan and
Tibet.

Northeast China covers Liaoning, Jilin and Heilongjiang.

Overseas covers areas except for mainland China, Hong Kong, Macao
and Taiwan

Health and Safety of Employees

The Group has been tracking and strictly complying with national laws
and regulations related to health and safety that has a significant impact
on production management and day-to-day operations, including the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and the Interim Provisions on Supervision and Administration
of Work Safety at Food Production Enterprises, etc. On this basis, and
combined with features of its operations, the Group has established a
series of safety management policies, including the Safety Inspection
Management Policy, the Hidden Safety Risks Identification and
Elimination Policy, the Safety Training Management Policy, the Safety
Incident Management Policy, the Warning and Informing Policy for
Occupational Hazards to standardise production safety procedures and
reduce occupational hazardous risks. Additionally, the Group updated
the Contractor Safety Management Policy, the Fire Safety Management
Policy, etc. in 2019, which has strengthened the supervision on
contractors and contributed a further improvement on the Group’s
safety management system. In 2019, there were no reported incidents
of death casualties of employees arising from the Group’s production
and operations.
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Every year, the Group regularly organises medical examinations for
employees. Relying on the city-level Centres for Disease Control
and Prevention, the new recruits and employees with expired health
certificate are subject to medical examinations. The Group also
cooperates with third-party physical examination companies to arrange
for an additional physical examination every year for female employees,
employees with a high frequency business trip record, employees at
the management level or above and employees over 50 years old, so
as to help them recognise their health status comprehensively and
reduce occupational health risks. In 2019, the Group organised 387
medical examinations. In addition, the Group organises annual physical
examination for health certificate for every employee.

The Group takes a series of measures to ensure the employees’ safety,
including strict health occupational pre-job, on-job and off-job physical
examination; separate safety paths for people and vehicles; continuous
5S improvement on site and increase in the professional pulse-jet
series dust filters to reduce the dust hazard on site and eliminate the
risk of dust explosion; providing 3M dust-proof cotton face masks;
noise-cancelling ear protectors; anti-smash labour protection shoes.
Additionally, the Group developed events such as “Safety Promotion
Month”, “Safety Knowledge Contest” to publicise the importance
of safety production. Meanwhile, in order to intensify employees’
awareness of safety production, we held emergency drills in 2019.

Case: Yihai Ma'anshan Fire Control Training

The National Fire Control Publicity Month in November 2019 was
themed with “Away from Fire Hazard and Build A Beautiful Homeland”.
Specifically, Yihai Ma’anshan Factory organised theme fire training.
The on-site fire safety supervisor explained in detail the configuration
of indoor hydrant components and the spot inspection of firefighting
facilities to each team. Staff on site learned about how to use these
facilities through training, communication and explanation. In addition,
practical exercises were carried out on site in conjunction with theory
explanation to deepen employees’ understanding and awareness of fire
safety.

In 2019, the Group had no reported incidents of death casualties of
employee arising from operations nor did it have cases of penalties
imposed by relevant authorities due to violation of national laws on
working safety and hygiene.

B HERERERS

AEESFAEHAMS TRE K
B AR TR E S RO E T ABE
IHNREEFNHETETER - AEH
BHE-LSEREEEERMAGHE Y
ZMET  REHEZET - KELAUE
ETRS0mUEETHIIES—IXE
B ERETENZEETHESRE
R - BREBERERRE - AFEHE
SR ETRMAAS 7387 NRHE
Be S XEBTSHEBBAEES
m—RE2EREERIEE -

AEBRNAIERREETZSE &
hEEBREHITRERERMA - &P A
BEEER BREHZEAAEIR  BRE
SESSHERMNE - BT EXMNRERX
WREER  RERSHHERLFLH
RERER  REIMEEROS - fHR
EER  BMENSERES - LBRE
IZ2REREHWERR - Ik KK
EERRT I Z2EEA I Z22AEBH
B|EEE  EERZLEENEEMN-F
K BTREEIRZEERSH  &F
EEFRR T Hh 22 ES0EM -

=0 BEEFE LB E

201911 B REZEEREER » =&
BlImE KRR BREFRE B
EBERLIRSEUMAZETHRET
FEERIEN c RS EMZE2EAEM
HETHMAEMR T ENHAREGHES
NOHB R e SR R RE o BB R B
SETIMNER  EZ3T28H#EFERE
Rt iEEZE - SHNESEHETERE
oS HEEWERE UWINRETHR -
REEMEZEER -

2019 AKEBER IR TR » TRE
HENRBREBZE2HENBSEEM
ZREBEBTBES -

137



138

RE  HERERERE

Employee Health and Safety' ETREZEHR"
Programme/Year 2018 2019
HE £E 20184 20194
Work-related deaths (persons) THRTAE 0 0
Percentage of work-related deaths (%) B L3 T3 (%) 0 0
Work-related injuries (persons) IZEBEAH 2 9
Loss of work time due to work-related [E T{E#8 %k TIEERE (X)
injuries (day) 160 128.5
Note: i

14. Data of health and safety is based on the information on attendance
sheets and statistics of manual recording.

Training and Development of Employees

We are committed to forging an ideal career development platform
for our employees and cultivating talent in line with our goals and
development strategies through establishing branded and professional
talent development system. At the same time, we constantly update
our internal strategies on talent cultivation based on the characteristics
of condiment industry, in combination with increasing requirements on
the comprehensive quality of employees and the tendency of younger,
better educated and more professional business teams. In 2019, the
Group organised various training programs, including orientation for
new recruits, production safety training, training for safety management
of chemicals, training for electricity safety, training for warehousing
management, management system for warehouses under lease,
training for communication skills, training for enhancement of ability
to act, and excellent team management. We also held a contest
of knowledge and skill to advance employees’ business skill and
occupational quality.

The Company further improves the training mode of centralised
management, division of labour responsibilities and implementation by
levels. In order to enable employees to quickly adapt to the working
environment, understand the work requirements and intensify their
safety awareness, the Group organises training for new employees.
The Group also provides some senior executives with training in
industrial and commercial school to improve their management skills
and experience. In addition, each factory requires on-job certification
and provides on-the-job skill training for employees. They may obtain
an on-job qualification certificate after passing the on-job skill training.
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Case: Yihai (Maanshan) Factory Enhanced Innovation Sharing

The Enhanced Innovation Sharing is one of the Company’s innovative
training courses. By providing a platform for innovation, improvement
and sharing, the Company shares good real examples with everyone.
Moreover, experts, instructors from other famous companies have
been invited to deliver lectures and bring us more good ideas. By
sharing the excellent cases and interactive brainstorming, it leads more
excellent employees to actively participate in the training, gain a better
understanding on logical thinking and continue to optimise their skills

and improve labour efficiency.

Employee training
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Year 2018 2019
FE 2018%F 20194
Number of trainees EINAE 1,131 1,391
By gender RS E
Male B 676 60% 775 56%
Female pogi 455 40% 616 44%
By role R BED
Senior management SREBEEAR 4 1% 3 1%
Middle management PREEEAS 56 5% 57 4%
Employees other than senior or FEEE
middle management 1,071 94% 1,331 95%
Total hours of training BIERE R 20,697 23,185
By gender =R R
Male B 12,280 59% 12,193 53%
Female pogid 8,417 41% 10,992 47%
By role RE R
Senior management SREEEAE 1,280 6% 637 3%
Middle management PREEEAS 769 4% 1,280 5%
Employees other than senior or FEEE
middle management 18,648 90% 21,268 92%
Average hours of training TR
By gender RN E
Male B 18 16
Female g3 18 18
By title R RED
Senior management SREEEAS 320 212
Middle management FREEEAS 14 22
Employees other than senior or FEEE
middle management 17 16
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Safeguard on Customers’ Rights and Interests

For the sake of active response to customers’ feedback, complaints
and suggestions, and reassuring consumers, the Group strictly abides
by the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection
of Consumer Rights and Interests and other laws and regulations
and develops corresponding rules and regulations. In 2019, the
Fleeing Goods Management Policy and the Distributor Authorisation
Management Policy were revised and updated. Among them, the
Fleeing Goods Management Policy further clarifies the definition
standard of fleeing goods, so as to enhance fleeing good control of
distributors and ensure the healthy and orderly development of the
consumers’ market. The Distributor Authorisation Management Policy
makes clear description of the authorised areas, channels, products
and authorised channels of the distributors and promotes the Group’s
management on the distributors.

We have established a thorough customer service system and
customer complaint response mechanism to protect the legitimate
rights and interests of consumers. The Group sets up an exclusive
position, Customer Complaints Dealer. The person on duty is dedicated
to fill in the Registration Form of Customer Complaints in 2019. The
form records details of customer complaints including product batch
number, product type, classification and detailed description as well
as the expected solutions. Furthermore, the specific information
is conveyed to the relevant departments of the Group for clear
division of responsibilities and follow-up actions according to Yihai
Customer Complaint Management Measures. If necessary, we will
promptly launch product verification and retrospective recall process
to effectively solve the customer complaints. We specifically added
in Yihai Customer Complaint Management Measures to address
complaints arising from self-serving small hot pot products, as a result
of our strengthened selection and quality control over agricultural raw
materials, such complaints received of this nature decreased.

At the same time, we continued to enrich the Standard Terms for
Product Feature Description and extensively carried out activities to
popularise the knowledge of our raw materials among consumers to
enhance their cognitive ability and discernment in an effective way.
To ensure consistent quality of raw materials, the Group designated
special personnel to suppliers of the main materials and product
assembly plants to perform on-site monitoring and management to
build up confidence in our new products among customers.
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Performance Indicator Related to Customer Complaints EERFERENISERE
Description/Year 2018 2019
BE FE 20184 20194
Customer Complaints (times) BEERFSEMHOR)® 1.51 1.92
Note: R

15. Customer complaints (times) for the year = Total complaints that year/
annual production (in millions of packages)

Protection of Customer Privacy

The Group’s sales model is divided into selling through distributors and
selling on line. In distribution mode, we fully respect the customer’s
privacy and protect their information. In relation to on-line sales, we
have developed the Customer Information Confidentiality Policy for
Internet Marketing Department based on the Cybersecurity Law of the
People’s Republic of China, which specifies data security measures and
supervision methods, as well as corresponding punitive measures in
case of any violation, to protect the information of relevant departments
and customers, standardise on-line store accounts and safeguard the
Group’s rights and interests.

Enhancement of Brand Image

In 2019, we continued to strictly adhere to the applicable laws and
regulations governing advertising and labelling, such as the Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China. In 2019, the updated Food
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China further increased
the requirements on e-commerce, and thus the Group intensified
the examination and verification on e-commerce advertisements.
All advertisements should be reviewed by the Brand Management
Committee to ensure compliance with the requirements of the
Advertising Law.

Besides, we have developed the Yihai Marketing Management
Procedures to ensure the compliance of all promotion materials of
major marketing activities in an effective way. In order to minimise
possible risks of our Internet Marketing Department from committing
intriguing publishing pictures, texts, videos and other information
in new internet channels, and safeguarding the rights and interests
of the Group, we also formulated the Management Procedures for
Infringement Avoidance of Internet Marketing Department, which
specifies measures and supervision methods to prevent infringement,
as well as corresponding punitive measures in case of any violation.
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The well-established advertising and labelling management mechanism
has strongly safeguarded the integrity of our marketing and avoided
sending false information to consumers.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group strictly abides by the Anti-unfair Competition Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other applicable laws and regulations to
safeguard intellectual properties. To this end, we have systematically
reviewed our existing application procedures regarding the different
intellectual property the Group owns, and formulated a new version
of Administrative Measures for Intellectual Property, which covers
detailed and highly operable provisions for establishment and updating
of the intellectual property database as well as its supplement, striving
to achieve standardised management of all intellectual property
related matters within the Group. When applying for a trademark and
patent, departments within the Group would complete and submit the
Application for Trademark and the Technical Disclosure Statement,
etc., in which such information as the background and necessity of the
application would be specified. Prior to proceeding with the application
process as planned, the above documents would be reviewed and
approved with specific personnel responsible for the application
assigned.

Promotion of Integrity

In strict compliance with applicable national laws and regulations
related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including
the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery and the Anti-money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China, we have formulated
the Yihai International Anti-fraud and Anti-corruption Management
Policy to regulate the occupational behaviours of the directors, senior
and middle management and the general staff, so that they would
strictly comply with the relevant laws, industry standards and norms,
occupational ethics, and the Group’s regulations. The policy also aims
to establish a culture of integrity, diligence and dedication to duties,
and to prevent infringement of the interests of the Group and its
shareholders. The following aspects are specified in the Policy:

° Promoting and creating a corporate culture of honesty, integrity,
anti-fraud and anti-corruption;
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o Evaluating risk of fraud and corruption, and establishing the
procedures and mechanisms of control, to lower the possibility of
fraud and corruption;

° Risk Control and Audit Department is a standing body for
anti-fraud and anti-corruption, which is responsible for organizing
and implementing the anti-fraud and anti-corruption work within
the company, and reports to the audit committee on a regularly
basis. Its main responsibilities include assessing and evaluating
the establishment and implementation of the company’s anti-fraud
and anti-corruption control mechanism; carrying out publicity
activities in terms of anti-fraud and anti-corruption; accepting
reports of corruption and malpractice cases and organizing
investigations of reported cases, eventually issuing opinions and
report to management, and reporting regularly to the board of
directors through the audit committee;

° A dedicated hotline, email and WeChat official account through
which all staff and partners can report on misconduct, fraud and
non-compliance matters related to the issues of the Group at any
time, so that we could detect and rectify them in a timely manner.

The Group has systematically established an internal system for
anti-corruption. The Code of Discipline for Directors and Employees,
for instance, is applicable to all our staff including full-time, part-time
and temporary employees. According to the Code, employees are
required to strictly observe the applicable rules and regulations on
anti-corruption and anti-fraud while performing business on behalf
of the Group. Direct/indirect requests, receipts and offers of any
benefits are equally prohibited. Besides, prior to accepting other work
outside the Group, employees shall apply for a written approval from
appropriate approvers, who shall determine on whether the work is
in conflict with the applicant’s position in the Group and the Group’s
interests. In addition, we have been continually implementing the Yihai
Misconduct Management Measures which specified non-compliance
and misconduct by employees, including corruption, fraud and
deception. In terms of high-risk positions, such as procurement,
marketing and promotion, we require employees to sign the Letter
of Commitment relating to Integrity in Procurement, and the Letter of
Commitment Relating to Sales and Promotion, to enable them to get
a better understanding of misconduct which is explicitly prohibited in
performance of their business, efficiently restraining and regulating
their behaviours, and enhancing the awareness of ethical conduct
and integrity. In 2019, we add the OEM resident representative to
the high-risk position, and ask the employees to sign the /etter of
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commitment relating to resident representative. At the same time,
the Group has established a collective responsibility system for key
positions, which expressly states that the management assumes the
responsibility for supervising and guiding subordinates to perform their
duties with integrity.

The Group has also attached great importance to integrity and
honesty in the external business cooperation. The key partners,
including suppliers and distributors, are required to sign the Letter of
Commitment Relating to Supplier Integrity or the Letter of Commitment
Relating to Distributor Integrity, prior to officially signing contracts
with us. These letters of commitment explicitly express our integrity
requirement for suppliers and distributors and inform them of complaint
and reporting channels that aim to prevent possible corruption and
fraud to the greatest extent during cooperation. The Group is entitled
to terminate or cease partnership with suppliers, distributors or other
partners under the contracts, if they violate any clause under their
commitment to cooperate with integrity, and to hold them liable to any
breach of contract pursuant to the liability clause in the contract. The
Group also implements a reward incentive system for our partners to
promote our partners to disclose any non-compliance, misconducts or
frauds perpetuated by any employees of the Group.

The Group’s Risk Control and Audit Department, the major responsible
department for anti-corruption and anti-fraud, works out annual plans
for special audit and conducts audit on internal control and anti-fraud
focusing on procedures of main business and critical focus areas of
the Group and reports issues based on such audit plans. In addition,
the Risk Control and Audit Department also conducts audits on
assignment or resignation of personnel in key positions. In 2019, we
carried out special audits and internal control inspections to identify
and improve the management problems in business process actively
and timely, protecting the benefits of the company. Further, we carried
out “sunshine publicity” activities and integrity examinations, and also
sent integrity reminders to our partners on public holidays. This has
promoted and encouraged our employees and important partners
to follow the Group’s integrity policies and further strengthened
their understanding of the Group’s integrity policies and anti-fraud
requirements.

In 2019, the Group was not involved in any litigation caused either
by itself or its employee’s misconduct relating to corruption, fraud,
extortion and money-laundering with material impact on the Group.
Combating corruption and building a clean governance is increasingly
vital to the sustainable development of the Group. We always adhere to
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maintaining our management system for integrity and honesty to further
enhance internal control and governance.

The Group has constantly carried forward the idea for undertaking
social responsibility that provides safety and quality food for the market
and customers. We give back to the society in fulfilling our social
responsibility and actively participate in public welfare undertakings.
We take the initiative to understand the needs and expectation of local
and neighbouring communities where we operate and encourage the
staff to participate in community public welfare activities. The Group
also takes concrete actions to ensure that it has taken the interests of
local communities into consideration when conducting our business
activities. In addition, we are dedicated to promoting common growth
of ourselves and communities and to contributing to public welfare.

In 2019, more emphasis was given to community investment. The
office of the Board of Directors took the lead in organising various
departments to participate in diversified social welfare activities with an
investment amount of nearly RMB970,000, including RMB490,000 for
education and RMB480,000 for charity.

Funding for Underprivileged Students

As the backbone in the future development of the society, students are
one of the groups that we are most concerned about. We grant subsidy
to poor students to help them successfully complete their studies. In
2019, the Company provided financial aid to 50 poor students from
Sichuan Tongjiang Xinwen Primary School; provided jobs to fresh
graduates from Henan University of Animal Husbandry and Economy
and other colleges, and subsidised 30 poor college students. In terms
of financing and donating to education, the Group continued to expand
the channels of social donation to help students, improve the financial
aid system for students, and light up the path of learning for poor
students with love.
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Opportunities of Employment Practice

We actively carry out school-enterprise scientific research cooperation,
talent training, student practice and other activities with colleges and
universities to provide students with better employment opportunities.
We donate to set up innovation and entrepreneurship award fund for
fresh graduates from China Agricultural University, which is used for
graduation design projects and off-campus internships. In 2019, we
also established an university-enterprise cooperative relationship with
China Agricultural University by jointly setting up the “Yihai (Bazhou)
Food Co., Ltd. — College of Food Science & Nutrition Engineering of
China Agricultural University Innovative and Entrepreneurial Base”
(the “IE Base”), which is aimed at providing the undergraduate and
graduate students with more experience and practising opportunities.
It is beneficial to the development of the students’ ability of production
practice. Additionally, it can build a bridge between the Company and
the colleges or universities by virtue of this platform, satisfying the
demand of the Company, speeding up the transformation of scientific
research achievements and strengthening motive force of the enterprise
development.

Special Care Service Centres

Beijing HYQZ Intellectually Disabled Service Centre started to launch
health recovery charity programs for children in single parent families,
criminal parent families, poor families or remote areas in 2012. The
Group has been cooperating with the Centre for a long time to organise
voluntary service and donation activities. In 2019, we donated goods
and materials equivalent to RMB30,000 to HYQZ Intellectually Disabled
Service Centre.

On 28 May 2019, ahead of the Children’s Day, we went to HYQZ
Intellectually Disabled Service Centre in Tongzhou District to conduct
a visiting activity. We brought clothes and food to the children, played
games and made dumplings with them. After the event, we further
donated goods and materials including TVs, sheets, quilt covers,
clothes, etc., hoping they feel our care and warmth.
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Efforts on the Control of COVID-19

COVID-19 (COVID-19) has been spreading in China and some other
countries and regions since early 2020. In the face of the sudden
outbreak, the Company donated 2 million RMB worth of self-serving
small hot pot products to the Hubei Charity Federation on January
25th, 2020. It was heard that Jinyintan Hospital in Wuhan and Renmin
Hospital of Wuhan University are in urgent need of living materials.
On 11 February 2020, the Company made designated donation of
40,000 boxes of self-serving small hot pot to these two hospitals.
Since February 12, we have, via Hubei Charity Federation, made a
daily donation of 20,000 boxes of self-serving small hot pot to frontline
medical staff in Hubei until the epidemic in Hubei province is brought
under control, contributing to the fight against the disease.
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To the Shareholders of YIHAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of YIHAI INTERNATIONAL

HOLDING LTD. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 156 to 268, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (‘IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment

provision for inventories:

Key Audit Matter
FREETEER

FREER
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB E M RIEARENER

Impairment provision for inventories

FEREERE

Refer to Notes 2.13, 4.1(a) and 12 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value, being estimated selling price less
estimated selling costs, where applicable, impairment
provision is made to write down the inventories to their
net realisable value.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s balance of gross
inventories was RMB297,334,000.

The estimation of impairment provision for inventories
involves significant management judgment based on the
consideration of key factors such as aging profile, prior
experiences, estimated future selling prices and selling
expenses.

The impairment assessment is an area of focus for us

given the inherent uncertainties and the significant amount
of the gross inventory balance.

BESEFZERARD R

Our audit procedures relating to impairment provision for
inventories included the following:

° We obtained and understood the Group’s
inventory provisioning policy.

° We understood and evaluated the relevant
controls over the generation of inventory aging
schedule and the process of the estimation of
inventory impairment provision.

° We evaluated, on sample basis, the assumptions
in estimating future selling prices and selling
expenses by reference to historical records and
sales transactions after year end.

° On sample basis, we tested the aging profile of
the year end raw materials and finished goods.

° We observed physical condition of inventories
during stocktake to identify if any inventories were
slow-moving, damaged, or obsolete.

We found the assumptions adopted and judgment
applied by management were supported by the evidence
we gathered and consistent with our understanding.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Five-
Year Performance Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
(but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, and the Chairman’s Statement, Profiles of Directors
and Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Directors’
Report and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which
are expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Chairman’s Statement, Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Directors’ Report
and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to the Audit Committee of the Company and
take appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
OF THE COMPANY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee of the Company regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee of the Company with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee of the
Company, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Cheuk Kay.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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GEEEREXR

As at 31 December

n12A831H
Note 2019 2018
hE3 20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARBT T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 8 483,393 308,616
Right-of-use assets FREEE 9 151,435 -
Land use rights + b {5 P 6,9 - 75,034
Intangible assets B EE 7 17,649 5,309
Deferred income tax assets EEMSHEE 11 25,445 23,889
Other assets HibEE 13 194,949 156,027
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEBEN
through profit or loss SRIEE 17 84,893 12,000
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 957,764 580,875
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 12 297,334 275,815
Other current assets HiREERE 13 168,879 213,178
Trade receivables B S EWRE 14 269,175 206,893
Other financial assets at BB BN AT EMEM
amortised cost eREE 15 7,762 5,368
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFTABEN
through profit or loss TRIEE 17 89,596 -
Term deposits with initial term
over three months VRHRA=EAZE
and within one year —FNEHFR 16 484,845 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBATEED 16 1,036,396 1,179,910
Total current assets RENEELE 2,353,987 1,881,164
Total assets EEHE 3,311,751 2,462,039
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners AARIHEE AEILHEDZS
of the Company
Share capital &N 18 68 68
Shares held for employee share MEERMETEIEFE
scheme o)iey) 19 4 (%)
Reserves &1 20 2,613,785 2,005,127
Capital and reserves attributable A2 BB AEEER
to owners of the Company RS 2,613,849 2,005,190
Non-controlling interests FEIERR RS 10 114,298 34,531
Total equity HE AR 2,728,147 2,039,721
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GEEEREXR

As at 31 December

R12A31H
Note 2019 2018
g 20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥F T AR¥T T
Liabilities afg
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 9 26,361 -
Deferred income tax liabilities EEREHEE 11 381 =
Total non-current liabilities EREAKEE 26,742 =
Current liabilities REak
Trade payables B ERRIE 22 217,418 188,659
Contract liabilities EHERE 24 46,224 45,350
Lease liabilities HESE 9 12,790 -
Other payables and accruals HibEAFIER ESHE A 23 173,589 103,616
Current income tax liabilities FIEEp Ry k=K 106,841 84,693
Total current liabilities nEBaEEE 556,862 422,318
Total liabilities BERE 583,604 422,318
Total equity and liabilities EEkaERR 3,311,751 2,462,039
Net current assets nEEEEE 1,797,125 1,458,846

i aA B E S R R A — O
B -

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.

%156 H £ 5268 B MBI 5 3RKR M 20204F
3A2SREESEHE  THTIESK

The financial statements on pages 156 to 268 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 25 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

SHI YONGHONG SUN SHENGFENG
Director Director
EE EE
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GmeRakHEMEZERER

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

Note 2019 2018
{iEd 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
Revenue A 5 4,282,488 2,681,373
Cost of sales SHERA 25 (2,641,088) (1,642,476)
Gross profit EF 1,641,400 1,038,897
Distribution expenses FEEE1EE 25 (383,344) (241,474)
Administrative expenses THHX 25 (265,590) (163,196)
Other income and gains — net HAaug AR W& EEE 27 79,035 86,203
Operating profit R F 1,071,501 720,430
Finance income BEUA 28 23,679 10,071
Finance costs L& AN 28 (1,560) -
Finance income — net BE WA FEEE 28 22,119 10,071
Profit before income tax B BT 45 %56 A1 it ) 1,093,620 730,501
Income tax expense FriSiip 29 (298,615) (182,597)
Profit for the year FEWEFH 795,005 547,904
Profit is attributable to: WMTALTEGER :
Owners of the Company RATEBA 718,634 517,793
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS 76,371 30,111
Other comprehensive income Hih=mUTAN
Items that may be reclassified to ~ A[EF 7 EZ B EH
profit or loss
— Currency translation differences — X Z%8 843 -
Other comprehensive income FREMETRAN
for the year, net of tax ($NRRFIR) 843 =
Total comprehensive income SHUENGEEE 795,848 547,904
Total comprehensive income T ALTESEZEHRA
attributable to: b
- Owners of the Company VNG Z=DN 719,469 517,793
- Non-controlling interests — JEEERER 76,379 30,111
Earnings per share attributable 7/ B#& AEL
to owners of the Company FRAER
(expressed in RMB cents (UERARE7F7T)
per share)
- Basic — & 30 741 53.4
- Diluted -8 30 741 53.1

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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GERBEDR

Attributable to owners of the Company
VNG 2PN 1
Shares
held for
employee
Share share Non-
capital scheme  Reserves controlling Total
(Note18)  (Note19)  (Note 20) Total interests equity
AEERR
FRIEH
Bx Rh i
(W=18)  (W&H9)  (ME20) G kEREZ  BZOE

Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ018%512A3 ALEE

Balance at 1 January 2018 R201851 F1BE S 68 B 1501326 1,501,389 4420 1,505,309
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year ERERl - - 57793 517793 30111 547904
Other comprehensive income E2EBA - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income 2ERNGE - - 517,793 517,793 30,111 547,904
Transactions with owners L INOUEYE 1IN

in their capacity as owners: 25
Share-based payment expense DRGBERNARES 21 = = 34,202 34,202 - 34,202
Shares vested under employee RERSRMHARBNRN

share scheme 21 - - 97 97 - 97
Dividends provided for or paid BHRACKARE 31 - - (48291)  (48,291) - (48,.291)
Total transactions with owners ~ EHBEAR 548 - - (13,992) (13,992) - (13,992)
Balance at 31 December 2018 20184512831 A& th 68 () 2,005,127 2,005,190 34531 2,039,721
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE019512A3ALEE
Balance at 1 January 2019 R201951 A1 B8 68 (5) 2,005,127 2,005,190 34,531 2,039,721
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year ERER - - 718,634 718,634 76,371 795,005
Other comprehensive income YT ON
Currency translation differences ENZR - - 835 835 8 843
Total comprehensive income 2EANGE - - 719,469 719,469 76,379 795,348
Transactions with owners BEEA (NHEZBEASR)

in their capacity as owners: 25
Capital injections from FERERTE

non-controlling interests - - - - 3,388 3,388
Share-based payment expense SR AERNARESY 21 = = 37,487 37,487 = 37,487
Shares vested under employee REESROERBNRG

share scheme 19, 21 - 1 345 346 - 346
Dividends provided for or paid BEHRRERARE 31 - - (148643)  (148,649) - (148,643
Total transactions with owners HBEEAR5EE - 1 (110811)  (110,810) 3388 (107,429
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019512F31 A 68 4 2,613,785 2,613,849 114,298 2,728,147

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read — _F #li47 & 125 55 Bf 7 FEEA BB [ i 3 — 1
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. & -
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Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31BLEE
Note 2019 2018
BifaE 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETT AR®T R
Cash flows from operating activites  EEEHMERERE
Cash generated from operations REERS 32 1,205,355 479,006
Interest received EAE 23,679 10,071
Income tax paid Eh‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ (277,642) (160,506)
Net cash inflow from operating REFBMERETNER
activities 951,392 328,571
Cash flows from investing activities RERHMBHRERE
Purchases of property, plant BENE  BERFE
and equipment (258,049) (252,706)
Purchases of financial assets at BERATEFTAESNEHERE
fair value through profit or loss (158,701) (12,000)
Purchases of right-of-use assets BEGREEE (40,305) (41,017)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEVEE (15,069) (1,304)
Investment income from financial assets R ERAFE ABEMN
at fair value through profit or loss EREENREBA 6,395 8,753
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « BERREFREHRE
plant and equipment 32 3,320 3,468
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAFEF ABRN
assets at fair value through ERMEENENE
profit or loss - 34,396
Increase in term deposits with initial NRBRA=EAZ—FH
terms over three months and EEFFIEM
within one year (484,845) -
Net cash outflow from investing REEEMAREFHE
activities (047,254) (260,410)
Cash flows from financing activites =~ BEZHFIERERE
Dividends paid to the Company’s
shareholders BEAGIE DR 31 (148,643) (48,291)
Payments for lease liabilities HESENAR 9 (8,827) =
Capital injections from non-controlling
interests FERERTE 3,388 -
Net cash outflow from financing MEFBRAREFE
activities (154,082) (48,291)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReERREEEY GRD)
and cash equivalents HhnEEE (149,944) 19,870
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning BIBFHEREES KBS
of the financial year Z£EY 16 1,179,910 1,130,205
Effects of exchange rate changes on HeRBELZBYEZREE
cash and cash equivalents D7 6,430 29,835
Cash and cash equivalents FEXRRERAEEEY
at end of year 16 1,036,396 1,179,910
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in — _F #4754 1 %7 2 7 FEEZRE AT BT aF —
conjunction with the accompanying notes. (& -
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GENERAL INFORMATION

YIHAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the production and sales of hot pot condiment, Chinese-style
compound condiment, and convenient ready-to-eat food products
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18
October 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay
Road, P.O. Box 31119, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s global offering of its shares (the “Global Offering”)
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “HKSE”) was completed on 13 July 2016.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(*RMB?”), unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 25 March 2020.

e MBRRME

— B

EgEREZERARAE ((AQF])
REKBAR (SE A5%E]) £+
FEARLANE ([HE]) EBZ/EX
WAER - hAESARY R ER
BNEERFEE -

ARANBR2013F10B18HERE
HEREHEHSE1961FE35
EBIE22E AR E (RigEaR1B
)M LAEREERLAA ©
ARABHFMPREE U A Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, P.O. Box 31119, KY1—
1205, Cayman Islands °

RRABARDEBBHERZIER
DA ([BBBR]) ERAZERE
£ (2HEE]) EN20165F7713
AR °

BRIESBER  BRIRGRE VR
RUARE [ARE D 25 -

ZENHHRREN20205F3A25H
EE=antafE-

161



162

e M RR M

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated
financial statements are for the Group consisting of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(0

(i)

(i)

Compliance with IFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
has been prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (‘HKCQ”) Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a

historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which measured at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new standard,
amendments and interpretation for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing from 1
January 2019, which are relevant to its operations:

° IFRS 16 Leases

e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 —
2017 Cycle
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

° Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement —
Amendments to IAS 19

° Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments.

The Group had to change its accounting policies as
a result of adopting IFRS 16. The Group elected to
adopt the new rules retrospectively but recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard
on 1 January 2019. This is disclosed in Note 2.2 below.
The other amendments and interpretation listed above
did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in
prior period and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.

New standards, amendments and revised conceptual
framework not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments and
revised conceptual framework have been published
that are not mandatory for 31 December 2019 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These standards, amendments and revised conceptual
framework are not expected to have a material impact
on the Group in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16
Leases on the Group’s financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted
IFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but
has not restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting period,
as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in
the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised
in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The new
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.23.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of IAS
17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s applicable incremental borrowing rates as of 1
January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rates (applicable to borrowings with similar
repayment periods) as applied to the lease liabilities on 1
January 2019 was 4.75%.

() Practical expedients applied
In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has

used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

() Practical expedients applied (Continued)

o relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to performing
an impairment review — there were no onerous
contracts as at 1 January 2019

o accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases

° excluding initial direct costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application, and

° using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before
the transition date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying IAS 17 and IFRS Interpretations
Committee 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease”.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continueq)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Measurement of lease liabilities

EXERBERBE (&)

2.2 EFBUREE (&

() HEEEHE

RMB’ 000
AR¥T T
Operating lease commitments disclosed 2018512 A31 B EN
as at 31 December 2018 RETHERE 23,834
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental BXERABEAABEAN
borrowing rates of at the date of initial BEERAERETIER
application 22,794
Less: short-term leases recognised on a W RESEERBRER
straight-line basis as expense MIEEEE (6,428)
Lease liabilities recognised 201941 A1 HHERRRY
as at 1 January 2019 HEAE 16,366
Of which are: HohGiE .
Current lease liabilities RBEEEE 5,958
Non-current lease liabilities FRBEESE 10,408

(i) Measurement of right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount
equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognised in the balance sheet as at 31

December 2018.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEBRIBE(E&)
(Continueq)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iv) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1 (iv)

v)

January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following
items in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

o right-of-use assets — increase by RMB91,951,000

° land use rights — decrease by RMB75,034,000

° other current assets — decrease by RMB551,000

° lease liabilities — increase by RMB16,366,000

The net impact on the retained earnings as of 1 January
2019 is immaterial for warranting any adjustment.

Lessor accounting v)

° The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of
IFRS 16.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(0

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2.4).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and balance
sheet respectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEBRIBE(E&)
(Continueq)

24 ¥KE6t

2.4 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred,

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business,

o equity interests issued by the Group,

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

24

25

Business combinations (Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.6

2.7

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (‘CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the chief
executive officer, vice presidents and directors of the
Company that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
()  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”),
which is the Company’s functional currency and the
Company’s and Group’s presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowing are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income within
‘Finance cost — net’. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income within
‘Other income and gains — net’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continueq)
(i) Group companies (Continueq)

° income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXE:HEEBE (&)
(Continueq)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment 28 Y% - BEKZE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the
shorter of lease term and estimated useful lives as follows:

e Buildings 20 years
e Machinery 5-10 years
e Equipment and others 3-5 years
e Vehicles and furniture 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continueq)

29

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or pending for installation
and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition.
No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. When the assets concerned are available for
use, the costs are transferred to the respective categories
of property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

Intangible assets
() Trademarks

Acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful lives of
5 years and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

(i) Software

Acquired computer software are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continueq)

EXERBERBE (&)

210 FEMEERE

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount

AEAFRTRENETLEE
BREE  EEFAMREE
ITRIR - RRBESFRABER
IR 2L R AT RE R RLE
R B RARERA - &
@ﬁ%@?%i%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&

may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised Rt BT HREEARSEE
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount el RF - EATRERIE © B
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount EE?&ETEEEE’%FEEE{EE@
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal Hu e £ BN HEEER o
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, Hﬁl@ﬁﬁﬁ%’;?ﬂ’]@$ﬁﬂﬂj

assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.11 Investments and other financial assets 211 RERHMEMEE
()  Classification 0 ¥
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following AEBERUTITEER

measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value

HEESMEEDH

s BREAVEE

(either through other comprehensive income (FFAHMZ2EK
(“OCI”), or through profit or loss), and A(THfM2EUWK
Al HEtABR)

° those to be measured at amortised cost.
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TREE
The classification depends on the entity’s business PERTEREESR
model for managing the financial assets and the EEMEBEARRES

contractual terms of the cash flows.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(0

(i)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies financial assets when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

EEEKRZERERA S

2.

EXE

BRI E ()

211 RERHMESRMEE (&)

(@

(i)

7 (&)

?ﬁﬁi’&$fﬁﬂ'§ﬂﬁ§?
= WEREEBEE
)\L s H A2 mE W
A BRIAKRBFEES
BATIAEREMmMS  H
BRFAREBRA LR
REERELFTTHE
FEBELRARER D
FEFAHMEZEERRA
(TR AFEFAHMEE
EUWA L FIER ©

AEBEREERERE
ZEEENEBRAE
EJH—:E%?“*E%@Q%F

HERE R A LE HERE

FHRBARLEN TR
BERRS H (FEEE
ABARHEZEEN
RH) %R - RItZEE
MEERNBRESREN
BANERNCERMA
EEBEEE BB -1
Fr ' L B R 1B R B
RILEIFAETHEE -



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other income and gains-net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continueq)

Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net within other income and
gains-net in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other income and gains-net in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 14 for further
details.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria
for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.13 Inventories

Raw materials and finished goods are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being
allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis
of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated subsequent
production costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

2.14 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are generally due for settlement within 30-90
days and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 14 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note
3.1 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEBRIBE(E&)
(Continueq)

215 BERBRESEEY

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, that are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

2.16 Share capital and shares held for employee share

scheme
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back
or a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs
and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Restricted Share Unit Scheme (“RSU”
Scheme) Trustee are disclosed as treasury shares and
deducted from contributed equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.17 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 30-90 days of recognition. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continueq)

EXERBERBE (&)

2.18 BVARIEE RSB (A7)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.18

2.19

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred income
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
income tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group has arranged for its PRC employees to join defined
contribution plans, including pension, medical, housing and
other welfare benefits, recognised by the PRC government.
According to the relevant regulations, the monthly
contributions that should be borne by the PRC subsidiaries
of the Company are calculated based on percentages of
the total salary of employees, subject to a certain ceiling.
The assets of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independent funds managed by the PRC
government.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the above contributions have been paid. The Group’s
contributions to these plans are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEBRIBE(E&)
(Continueq)

2.20 Share-based payments 2.20 D AEBHR

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via restricted share unit scheme plans.
Information relating to the schemes is set out in Note 21.
The fair value of the services received in exchange for the
grant of the restricted shares is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the restricted shares granted as at date
of grant, including any market performance conditions,
excluding the impacts of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions as well as including any
non-vesting conditions, when applicable. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied.

For the Company’s separate financial statements, fair value
of restricted shares granted to its subsidiaries’ employees
is recognised as increase in investment in subsidiaries and
equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of restricted shares that
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the shares are exercised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.21 Revenue recognition

(0

Sale of goods — wholesales

For wholesale business, sales of goods are recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the wholesaler,
the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the products
have been shipped to the specified location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
wholesaler, and either the wholesaler have accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contracts,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

The products of the Group is often sold with sales
discounts based on aggregate sales over a 12 month
period. Revenue from these sales is recognised based
on the price specified in the contracts, net of the
estimated sales discounts. Accumulated experience
is used to estimate and provide for the discounts, and
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal will not occur. A
refund liability (included in other payables and accruals)
is recognised for expected sales discounts payable to
customers in relation to sales made until the end of the
reporting period. No significant element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit
term of 30-90 days, which is consistent with market
practice.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Sale of goods - on-line

Revenue from the sale of goods on the internet is
recognised at the point that the control of the products
has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Transactions are settled by credit or payment
card or through on-line payment platforms. Provisions
are made for internet credit sales based on the
expected level of returns, which in turn is based upon
the historical rate of returns.

2.22 Earnings per share

(0

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEBRIBE(E&)

(Continueq)
2.22 Earnings per share (Continued) 222 SREBR (&
(i) Diluted earnings per share (i) EREERF
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in BREERAEBAR
the determination of basic earnings per share to take BREARBRN &5 -

into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other e BREBERANEE
financing costs associated with dilutive potential MWREREMEE
ordinary shares, and AR BRBL & TS

BEE R

e the weighted average number of additional e RBERFAEAERTH
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding EME 2 R EE
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ne EIHMEBER
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEBRIBE(E&)
(Continueq)

2.23 Leases 223 #HE

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee.
The new policy is described below and the impact of the
change in Note 2.2.

Until the 2018 financial year, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the Group as lessee are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The
Group didn’t have any finance leases.

From 1 January 2019, leases (including land use rights) are
recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for
use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not
to separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar
economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

U makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take effect.
When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or
rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEBRIBE(E&)
(Continueq)

2.23 Leases (Continued) 2.23 & (&)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use asset are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues
its land and buildings that are presented within property,
plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the
right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise manufacture equipment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

Leases (Continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet
based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Dividends distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Note 27 provides further information on how the
Group accounts for government grants.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as part of other income and other
gains-net.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.26

Interest income (Continued)

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 28 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income and other
gains-net.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of
the financial assets (after deduction of the loss allowance).

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks and how
these risks could affect the Group’s future financial performance.
Current year profit and loss information has been included where
relevant to add further context.

Risk Exposure arising from
I BEER
Market risk — Financial assets and liabilities

foreign exchange

SRR — JNE

denominated in foreign currency different
from its functional currency.

LIAREREZIREE B INERTHER
TREERERE -

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other financial assets
at amortised cost.

SRR RERBREEEY EZRWGIER
RN NEMERERE -

Liquidity risk Trade payable and other liabilities
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Measurement
=l =
A=

Cash flow forecasting
sensitivity analysis

REeRERAISRED

Aging analysis credit limit

ARER D AT 1S FAIRER

Rolling cash flow forecasts

RBBEREFER
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. HHEKRER (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors 31 FBERREZE

(a) Market risk (@ HHER

196

(i)

EEEKRZERERA S

Foreign exchange risk

(i) MERBE

The Group operates internationally and is exposed AEBEFEEEK
to foreign exchange risk, primarily the RMB. FREEBRER
Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised FEHRARBEE
assets and liabilities and net investments EWINERE o S
denominated in a currency that is not the B /B px 3R B LAFE AR
functional currency of the relevant Group entity. EEEERNIIRE
The risk is measured through a forecast of highly EBNEETEN
probable US$/RMB and HK$/RMB expenditures. CHRAEERAEE

The Group did not enter into any forward contract
to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Exposure

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, expressed in
RMB, was as follows:

URIREFEE - A
g S E TS
THARERBT
AARMEZHNWE
BIMETE - REZE
2019%F 20184
12831 HLEEE -
REBI KT E
REHEHHE
HSME R BRI O o

[ Bz
REBRBRERR

LA R SIRE S
ERRAT :

31 December 2019
2019£12H31H

31 December 2018
2018%F12A831H

Us$ HK$ us$ HK$
ESH #IT Ey BT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTE AR¥FR ARETRT AR¥ETR
Bank deposits RITFER 611,811 153,122 440,861 295,464
Financial assets at BAFEFA
fair value through BENEMERE
profit or loss 91,294 - - -
Trade receivables B o EWRIER
and other assets HihEE 492 257 522 161
Trade payables and B ZEMFIER
contract liabilities EHas (3,159) (504) (544) (32)




3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Sensitivity

As shown in the table above, the Group is
primarily exposed to changes in US$/RMB and
HK$/RMB exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit
or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises
mainly from the bank deposits and financial
instruments denominated in US$ and HK$ in the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries, the functional
currency of which are RMB.

e MBRRME

M EREE (F)

3.1 HBEBEE(E

@) T5EE ()

(i)

SNE R ()
R

mERFR AE
BEEASETH
ARMLUR BT
ARMEZN ST
BEORBEEEE
READTREF
BB R (%
DRSS
ARY) £ERE
TRTERHLH
IR~

Impact on post tax profit

T EER R

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AREET T ARET T
HK$/RMB exchange BT A RMER

rate — increase 10% — EF10% 11,484 22,160
HK$/RMB exchange BITHARBER

rate — decrease 10% — TF&10% (11,484) (22,160)
US$/RMB exchange ERNAARMBER

rate — increase 10% — EH10% 52,533 33,065
US$/RMB exchange ETHARMER

rate — decrease 10% — TF10% (52,533) (83,065)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
and deposits with banks and FVPL, trade receivable
and other financial assets at amortised cost as well as
credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers,
including outstanding receivables.

EEEKRZERERA S

Risk management

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its bank balances, trade receivable and other
financial assets at amortised cost.

The carrying amounts of each class of the
above financial assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. To manage this risk arising from
bank balance, the Group only transacts with
state-owned financial institutions and reputable
commercial banks which are all high-credit
quality financial institutions. There has been
no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions.

3.

M EREE (F)
3.1 HBEBEE(E
(b) =/AERE
EREBRELEBERER

BReZEY  RITRR
RFEFABENE
FBZRWFRERRE
BENATTENEMGS
MEEUARMBERETE
EFERRER BN
RUTELHY B FRIR o

(i)

R REE

AN R B BEER AT
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

Trade receivables at the end of each reporting
period were mainly due from Haidilao International
Holding Ltd. and its subsidiaries (‘Haidilao Group”)
and the distributors in cooperation with the
Group. As at 31 December 2019, the amounts due
from Haidilao Group represented approximately
77% of total trade receivables of the Group.
The management of the Group believes the
credit risk on amounts due from related parties
is limited because they continuously monitor
the credit quality and financial conditions of the
related parties. Ageing analysis of the Group’s
trade receivables is disclosed in Note 14. The
directors of the Company believe that the credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding trade
receivables balances due from the distributors is
low.

3.

e MBRRME

M EREE (F)
3.1 HBEBEE(E

(b) EHEE (&)

(i)

EfEE (A

EREHRNES
BURREETEARE
WU T 155 B R 22 B
BRARAREWE
ARRA(NBEHESE
) REAEHR
EBEREHEBEHR
1H o JA2019F 12
B318 » BUWEE
BEBNFIEG AR
EEEZERFIE
HEBRTT% o X
EEEEERA
FE UK BE B 5 SR IE Y
ERRRER -
AEEFEERE
BAENEREER
B SRR o $IANEE
EESERREN
BRER 2 MTAABTEE 14
FIRE o AQFE
ERBAREBEK
E=FHREENAR
WERE 5 FE W FRIE
HAEBMNERAR
BREXE o

FERSE



200

e M RR M

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

EEEKRZERERA S

Risk management (Continued)

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
management makes periodic collective assessments
as well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other financial assets at amortised cost based on
historical settlement records and past experience.
The directors of the Company believe that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of other financial assets at amortised cost.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has two types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model.

o trade receivables, and

o other financial assets at amortised cost

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

3.

M EREE (F)
3.1 HBEBEE(E

(b) EHEE (&)

(i)

EfEE (A

IR AT E
MWHESREET
= EEERBES
FEETERBE
ERREHR B A
SFENHMEME
ERNA W E M ER
#E1TREE I (8 B &Y
fli e ARFESER
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 12
months before 31 December 2019 or 1 January
2019 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

3.

e MBRRME

M EREE (F)
3.1 HBEBEE(E

(b) EHEE (&)

(ii)

TREERE (&)
ESENE

755 [ 5% A B R
3R RSB 9 5%
ZEE AT R
MEREBEX B
BE ZRBRME
BEEFEPNE
HARSE o

RAERHERR
X ERBHER
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A% 8 5 WA
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

EEEKRZERERA S

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance was immaterial
for trade receivables in 2018, and the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2019 was
determined as follows for trade receivables:

M EREE (F)

3.1 MBEBEZE(E

(b) 1EHEE (&)

(ii)

TRIEERE (&

RZEEGE 8
S W IEM 2018
FNBERESRE
FEKX BZER
RIER20195F12
B 31 BWEEERE
mT

More than More than

30 days 90 days
31 December 2019 Current past due past due Total
20194%£12H31H AN ER 30H 90H fEt
Expected loss rate EHEER 0.14% 0.43% 44.41%
Gross carrying amount HEREE
— trade receivables - B REWFIE 255,126 11,729 4,897 271,752
Loss allowance EREE 352 50 2,175 2,577
The loss allowances for trade receivables as B 5 EWFIER12
at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss B31BEERE
allowances as follows: EEYBEREN
HERWT -
As at 31 December
®12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TF T ARET T
As at 1 January M1A1H 30 2
Provision for impairment FHRERERE
allowance 2,547 28
As at 31 December M12A31H 2,577 30
The creation and release of provision for impaired 2R E R R IE
receivables have been included in ‘Administrative BB R RRES
expenses’ in the consolidated statement of profit AiREBEERHEM
or loss and other comprehensive income. EHEBERWIT
BAXZIA



3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include, amongst others, the failure
of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments for a period of greater than 360 days
past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost mainly
include deposits, advance to employees and
other receivables. Impairment on other financial
assets at amortised cost is measured as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on
the asset as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition by
considering available, reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. The loss
allowance for other financial assets at amortised
cost as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 was
immaterial.

e MBRRME

3. HMHERERE(E)
31 MEEBEE(E)
b) =rAEE (&)

(ii)

TRIEERE (&

i ESETBH AR
O &5 EWEE
B FHifiss - BEIE
FEHKENIEER
7 (HhaR) &%
AKRBESTFAREER
KB RN AT &8I R KBS
FB B B360H
R BRF/EH & &1

g
TN °

8 5 BWCKIRRR
EBBNEERER
A2 ARERE
FEE o HRWE %L
A MEE AV 2R A
sFARB—IERE °

BBEFAE B
Hitt2@EE

RBERATEN
HihEeMEETE
BERE  EE
2R EMEWRE
18 o R EE R ANET
ENEMEREE
HBEFTEA12
& B AiEk
HEEFEPHTE
HEREBXL /YT
BERERURE
EREED KIEE
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BREMBES KIiFE
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

EEEKRZERERA S

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Net impairment losses on financial assets

recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following losses were

M EREE (F)

3.1 HBEBEE(E

(b) EHEE (&)

(ii)

TREERE (&)

R m BRI 2
BEHNRERREF
5

FA - THEER

recognised in profit or loss in relation to impaired EHEEREER
financial assets: BRPER
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TF T ARET T
Impairment losses WEEE
Impairment losses on B S RWFIERERE
trade receivables 2,547 28
Impairment losses BB ATTEN
on other financial assets Hithe@mEEN
at amortised cost REEE 24 262
Reversal of previous BEREE R
impairment losses (608) -
Net impairment losses EMEENREEIER
on financial assets HER 1,963 290




3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

e MBRRME

3. MBERKERE#)
3.1 MBEBREE(HE)

(c)  Liquidity risk © REELER
The Group has significant cash and bank balances and rEBERERERE
investments in treasury products issued by banks with THBEURRTETH
maturity within one year and liquidity risk is considered FH-FURMBRE
to be minimal. Due to the dynamic nature of the EmBRE ABHELRA
underlying business, the Group’s finance department PRt AR R o AR
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate BEBBHREMEE K
cash and cash equivalents. EEMNBKBAEER
ENBRERBEEEY
RMEFESHFENE
JEME o
Cash flow forecasting is performed by the finance BeREBFERIHAKRE
department of the Group. The Group’s finance B EBEL - NEE
department monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s BB IR E AR ER
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to BEESERWEETEN
meet operational needs as well as the liabilities to other LREEXZEESR
parties. REEEBEERREHME
FOR=REgE
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities TR EAEENE R
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining EERBRHEEARBR
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual HEIZEHEH B e
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are T HAR 2 B AE B B9 2 HR
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. HEBIETHDN - "W
FriREeBEASHRE
BEESRE °
Between Between Total Carrying
Less than 1and2 2and5 contractual amount
1 year years years  Over 5 years cash flows liabilities
BNRE
VyQE 1525 2%5% HBiisE mERT  AEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  AREFT  ARETRT ARETRE ARETE ARETR
As at 31 December 2019 12019512 A31H
Trade payables (Note 22) E SE(1508 (frat22) 217,418 - - - 217,418 217,418
Other payables and accruals ~ HAtEAFUEREER 54,097 - - - 54,007 54,007
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HESE (9) 14,667 7,383 13,969 8,434 44,453 39,151
Total @t 286,182 7,383 13,969 8,434 315,968 310,666
As at 31 December 2018 12018512 A31H
Trade payables (Note 22) g5 EHEE (i) 188,659 - - - 188,659 188,659
Other payables and accruals ~ HAtEEFFEREER 37,423 - - - 37,423 37,423
Total mit 226,082 - - - 226,082 226,082
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

3.2 Capital management

(@) Risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that they can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, and

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, or return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

As the Group has no external borrowing in 2019 and
2018, the directors consider that the capital risk is low.

3.3 Fair value estimation

(a) Financial assets and liabilities

(i)

EEEKRZERERA S

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values of
the financial instruments that are recognised and
measured at fair value in the financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of
the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Group has classified its financial instruments into
the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standards. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.

3.

M EREE (&)
32 EBEXEHE
@ EEREE
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3.3
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. HHEKRER (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEME (E)
(@)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@ =THEEREE (E)
()  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) iy -ATEERE)

Recurring fair value

measurements BERNTEHE Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2019 720194128310 i $—E $_JE HEE ast

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR

Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRE
through profit or loss (FVPL) (RAFEF AER)
MemEE 17
- Listed equity securities (a) - LmRAES () - - 11,880 11,880
- Unlisted equity securities - ¥ ERAES - - 41,741 41,74
- Debt investment - EBRE - - 31,212 31,212
- Wealth management products ~ — 28I E R - - 89,596 89,596
Total financial assets EREEQE - - 174489 174,489
Recurring fair value
measurements BEMATEFE Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2018 742018%12A31A et - F_E #ZE st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETR AR®TR ARETR

Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRE
through profit or loss (FVPL) (RATEF AER)
NEmEE 17
- Listed equity securities - FHRAESE - = 12,000 12,000
Total financial assets SHERME = = 12,000 12,000
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i)

EEEKRZERERA S

Fair value hierarchy (Continueq)

(@ The financial instruments are traded in an
inactive market and the fair value of which
has been determined by reference to recent
transaction prices in that inactive market.

There were no transfers among different
categories during the year ended 31 December
2018 and 2019.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as
publicly traded derivatives, and equity
securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.
The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

3.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. HHEKRER (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 ANFEMHE(E)
(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@ =THEEREE(E)
()  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) iy DFEEBRGE)

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments BIE: HRKRE
that are not traded in an active EER™
market (for example, over-the-counter 5 LR
derivatives) is determined using valuation HEmT
techniques which maximise the use of 8 (w5
observable market data and rely as little ITET
as possible on entity-specific estimates. B) » H
If all significant inputs required to fair NEETS
value an instrument are observable, the FRME
instrument is included in level 2. FrmE

E o %%
fEERE T
E2FH
ATERE
BEEI
ERgED
REEET ¥
=% 4:0kR
o T
EA¥E
Ziec=3i0)zis
BEAKRE@
AEET
#H= Al
Z I Est
A E =
=

#
[1]
i |

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is D —IET
not based on observable market data, ZIEE K
the instrument is included in level 3. This oA S
is the case for unlisted equity securities. WIEER

ATEED
5 H 5

AlEZT A
FAE=
=R
™R A E
7 BB Itk
BIEm o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i)

EEEKRZERERA S

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

o The use of quoted market prices, recent
market transaction prices or dealer quotes
for similar instruments;

° The fair value of the remaining financial
instruments is determined using discounted
cash flow analysis, price of recent
investment method and Net Assets Valuation
(“NAV”) report method.

3.
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)

e MBRRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. HHEKRER (&)
3.3 AFEME (E)

(@)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@ =THEEREE (E)
Fair value measurements using significant @iy AFEFEFERE
unobservable inputs (Level 3) KA E =g A B

(B=4)
The following table presents the changes in level THREFEE2019
3 items for the periods ended 31 December 2019 F12A31B K
and 31 December 2018: 2018%12H31H
IEHRE=H/TA
M E
Wealth
Equity Debt management
securities  investment products Total
BA#S g BHER b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR
Opening balance as at R2018E1R1EH
1 January 2018 Ege 32,671 - - 32,671
Acquisitions BE 12,000 - - 12,000
Disposals L& (34,396) - - (34,396)
Gains recognised in other AR AR Wm TR
income and gains - net * (s — 258 1,725 = = 1,725
Closing balance as at M2018%F12A31 B
31 December 2018 EXRER 12,000 - - 12,000
Acquisitions BE 41,532 30,000 87,169 158,701
Gains recognised in other REMRAR hEERH
income and gains - net * W - FaE 89 1,272 2,427 3,788
Closing balance as at 20191231 A/
31 December 2019 EXRGR 53,621 31,272 89,596 174,489
* Includes unrealised gains * EERERRAEEGT
recognised in profit PEEEINREE
or loss attributable to g
balances held at
the end of the
reporting period
2019 20195 89 1,272 2,427 3,788
2018 2018 1,725 - - 1,725
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(iv)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The fair value assessment methods and related
key assumptions and judgements adopted by the
Group’s management (“Management”) is income
approach (specifically, discounted cash flow
method): Uses valuation techniques to convert
future amounts (for examples, cash flows or
earnings) to a single present amount (discounted).

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

BESEFZERARD R

3.

M EREE (F)
3.3 DFEME (&)
@ =THEEREE(E)

(iv) fHESABERE
DR ENEEF

rEEEEE (8
HE | RN QT
BEFE R U KR AEE
ERBRRAGR
Wk (4552 Bh
BREREE) :
£ A A BRI R
RN (MBS
RRERN) BRE
—HERE (AFR)
TH e

EX e R A

REVBHRFBREASEE
BEEE  ZEMAELIHSER
HFR BEETAEERAEES
STBUCR A H T

st RAME T oS ET 0 AR
RES SRR EMEE - SFLHA
REH WA - MZSBE TS
ERERUB Y BB EERLE
RTEEE -



4. CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

@

®)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. Management
reassesses these estimates at each balance sheet
date.

Current and deferred income taxes

There are certain transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will be reflected in
the income tax expense and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made. In
addition, the realisation of future income tax assets is
dependent on the Group’s ability to generate sufficient
taxable income in future years to utilise income tax
benefits and tax loss carry-forwards. Deviations of
future profitability from estimates or in the income tax
rate would result in adjustments to the value of future
income tax assets and liabilities that could have a
significant effect on the income tax expenses.
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4. CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(c) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and

functions.

Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or

sold.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management determines the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision makers (“CODM”)
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group’s revenue,
expenses, assets, liabilities and capital expenditure are primarily
attributable to the manufacturing and sales of hot pot condiment,
Chinese-style compound condiment, convenient ready-to-eat
food products and others to third party and related party
customers, which are considered by the CODM as one segment.
The Group’s principal market is the PRC and its sales to overseas

e MBRRME
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customers contributed to less than 5% of the total revenues.
Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.

BT FHHERTER

AU HY

5% o Bt - WEZFEER] o

Breakdown of revenue by product category is as follows: BERARISE DWW ABANT :
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EFT ARBT R
Revenue (YN
Hot pot condiment N §E R R R
— Related parties = Eﬁﬂﬁiﬁ 1,592,331 1,143,243
— Third parties =5 1,221,033 812,277
Subtotal NET 2,813,364 1,955,520
Chinese-style compound condiment PXES TR
- Related parties — @A 49,468 26,784
— Third parties = 345,477 228,731
Subtotal Nt 394,945 255,515
Convenient ready-to-eat food products FEERBRRR
- Related parties — @A 20,492 4,704
— Third parties —%=5 978,475 444,569
Subtotal R 998,967 449,273
Others HAt
— Related parties = Eﬁﬁ?‘ﬁ 880 1,364
— Third parties B=h 74,332 19,701
Subtotal NEE 75,212 21,065
Total et 4,282,488 2,681,373

Revenue from sales attributable to related parties accounted for
38.8% and 43.9% of the total revenue for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 respectively.

B RS SHE WAL EZE20195F
K2018F12A31 HIEFELKRA
7 5 %#38.8% K% 43.9% °
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6. LAND USE RIGHTS 6. LTih{ERE
Land use rights
Tt iE FA#E
RMB’ 000
AREF T
At 1 January 2018 #n2018%F181H
Cost AN 37,429
Accumulated amortisation L £ (2,277)
Net book amount REFE 35,152
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z20185E12HA31HILEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 35,152
Additions NE 41,017
Amortisation charge BIHER (1,135)
Closing net book amount FREREZE 75,034
At 31 December 2018 #20184£12A31H
Cost A 78,446
Accumulated amortisation -3 E (3,412)
Net book amount REFE 75,034
Year ended 31 December 2019 B Z201912A31HILEE
Opening net book amount, as originally presented & #18REFE (FNHBE25!) 75,034
Changes in accounting policies (Note 2.2) SETBERMNEE) (MiEE2.2) (75,034)

Opening net book amount, as restated and 1 (BER) &
closing net book amount FREREFEE

Land use rights represent the net book amount of prepaid
operating lease payment. All the land use rights of the Group are
located in the PRC and are held on leases from 46-50 years.

From 1 January 2019, land use rights are presented as
right-of-use assets in the balance sheet (Note 9). Refer to Note 2.2
for details about the changes in accounting policy.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7. BEEE
Trademark Software Total
ERE B et
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ETT AR¥EFT AR¥ETT
At 1 January 2018 #2018F181H
Cost BN - 6,467 6,467
Accumulated amortisation F5tEs - (1,285) (1,285)
Net book amount BREFEE - 5,182 5,182
Year ended 31 December 2018 B =2018%12H31H
IEFEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE - 5,182 5,182
Additions NE 160 1,144 1,304
Amortisation charge #iEEH (11) (1,166) (1,177)
Closing net book amount FREREFEE 149 5,160 5,309
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12A31H
Cost BRAR 160 7,611 7,771
Accumulated amortisation H5t#ieH (11) (2,451) (2,462)
Net book amount BREEE 149 5,160 5,309
Year ended 31 December 2019 B =2019%12H31H
IEEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 149 5,160 5,309
Additions NE - 15,069 15,069
Amortisation charge #iEEH (16) (2,713) (2,729)
Closing net book amount FEXRREFE 133 17,516 17,649
At 31 December 2019 M2019F12A31H
Cost BN 160 22,680 22,840
Accumulated amortisation HETEE (27) (5,164) (5,191)
Net book amount BREFE 133 17,516 17,649
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 7. BEEEE)
Amortisation expenses has been charged to the consolidated B BRCNMEeBaRkEMEE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as iR - FIRAT ¢
follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT
Cost of sales SHER A 459 123
Administrative and distribution THR&HERX
expenses 2,270 1,054
Total @t 2,729 1,177
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 8. WX KHERR
Equipment Vehicles  Construction
Buildings Machinery ~ andothers and furniture  in progress Total
B¥ K&  REREN  EHRRER HRIRE 4z

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREFTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR

As at 1 January 2018 201851 A1H
Cost KA 75,834 92,346 32,940 3,368 50,579 255,067
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (21,417) (34,085) (17,831) (1,666) = (74,979)
Net book amount REFE 54,417 58,281 15,109 1,702 50,579 180,088
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ2018512A31H

LEE
Opening net book amount ERERE 54,417 58,281 15,109 1,702 50,579 180,088
Additions RE 2,685 50,587 14,351 2,282 83,869 153,774
Disposals e - (3,078) (329) (664) 0) (4,080)
Depreciation charge mEER (3,654) (11,337) (5,481) (694) - (21,166)
Closing net book amount ERETFE 53,448 94,453 23,650 2,626 134,439 308,616
As at 31 December 2018 20185125318
Cost A 78,519 138,289 46,672 4,824 134,439 402,743
Accumulated depreciation B (25,071) (43,836) (23,022) (2,198) - (94,127)
Net book amount EHEFE 53,448 94,453 23,650 2,626 134,439 308,616
Year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512R31H

LEE
Opening net book amount ERAFE 53,448 94,453 23,650 2,626 134,439 308,616
Additions NE 4,058 116,925 36,661 4,149 57,334 219,127
Disposals e (13 (3,755) (1,150) 2 - (4,940)
Transfers #% 150,541 1,748 9,967 - (162250) -
Depreciation charge REER (8,375) (19,229) (10,960) (853) - (39,410)
Closing net book amount EREMFE 199,659 190,149 58,168 5,900 29,517 483,393
As at 31 December 2019 R*2019512A31H
Cost A 233,103 251,453 90,722 8,942 20517 613,737
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (33,444) (61,304) (32,554) (3,042) - (130,344)
Net book amount REFE 199,659 190,149 58,168 5,900 29,517 483,393
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 8. W% WERHREE)
Depreciation expenses has been charged to the consolidated FERYOREABEREMNSE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as BB 5IRNT
follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETT

Cost of sales SHERA 33,211 18,938

Administrative and distribution expenses TR &EEER 6,199 2,228

Total et 39,410 21,166

9. LEASES 9. WHE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a ZMEEH I BARNEBEREEA
lessee. Frel LA ER -

() Amounts recognised in the balance sheet i) REEEBRABRNNIE
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following meEEaBERMEYHEEE
amounts relating to leases: ERENFIENT ¢

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
20194 20194
12A81H 1A1H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TT ARETT

Right-of-use assets FREEE
Land use rights (a) T A (a) 110,788 75,034
Properties and warehouses TEHEREE 40,647 16,917
151,435 91,951
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
20194 20194
12A81H 181H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREET T ARET T

Lease liabilities HEafk

Current i 12,790 5,958
Non-current FERE 26,361 10,408
39,151 16,366
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9.

LEASES (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (Continued)

(@ The Group’s land use rights in mainland China
as previously presented as a separate item in the
consolidated balance sheet has also been classified
as part of the right-of-use assets with effect from 1

January 2019.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
additions to land use rights and leased properties
and warehouse amounted to RMB37,940,000 and

RMB33,977,000 respectively.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating

9. #HEE#)

(i)

(ii)
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33,977,0007T °
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MRS AR
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to leases:
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’ 000
izt ARMT T ARBT T
Depreciation charge of FHESENITEER
right-of-use assets
Land use rights T ihfE FARE 25 2,184 -
Properties and warehouses TrEERRE 10,247 -
12,431 -
Interest expense (included in FMEXZH GFARE
finance cost) A7) 1,560 =
Expense relating to short-term EEHEE RS
leases (included in cost of sales (GTABHER A
and administrative expenses) RITEBR) 9,190 -
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9.

LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was
RMB58,322,000

(iv) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for
The Group leases various offices, warehouses and has
land use rights under long-term lease agreements. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(v) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in some
property leases across the Group. These terms are used
to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of extension and termination options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

BESEFZERARD R

9.

HE (&)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

2019 F HEMBAR SR LAHE
# AR ¥58,322,000 T

FEENHEFBRASTE
H

FEEHETZERAE &
ERER R L ERE -
BHERNEERTIIERD
X LEBERSTEIRR
KAkt - HEHE T EEREH
R EHEEETFRERS
SRR

BHERARIRER

BHEHRRILRERESHEARE
EETWEREESD - ZERK
ARRESEESNNEFEE
e AN AR ERARL
IFRERE R AR EITE
HER TR & HBAITEE o



10. SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

10. FIBAF

e MBRRME

The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are set (@) AKEMR2019F12A31HH
out below: MEAREHSIWT :
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Ownership interest held
establishment and kind  Principal activities and issued share ~ Ownership interest by non-controlling
Name of company of legal entity place of operation capital held by the Group interests
SRR/ L TERBR GELe KEEHEH FEHRAREN
pRER Gy Y fdd ey B3 it 4 5 ity 4 5
2019 2018 2019 2018
019% 2185 0195 18F
% % % %
Directly held:
EfgE.
Yihai Ltd. British Virgin Islands Investment holding and USSt 100% 100% > =
Limited liability company  consulting in British
Virgin Islands
Yihai Ltd. ABRLHEEREMLT HABRLHENZRE 1%7 100% 100% - -
RE
Indlrectly held:
BERE
Yihai (China) Food Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Investment holding, HK$10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Limited liability company  consulting, and sales
of hot pot condiment in
Hong Kong
B (hE) RRERAR BARREMNA EERULZREER & 1000000087 100% 100% - -
ARBENBBGRR
Yihai (Singapore) Food Pte. Ltd. Singapore Sales of hot pot condiment  SGD5,000,000 100% - - -
Limited liability company ~ in Singapore
FMEERELAR AR E K BRt 5,000,000 100% - - -
g
Yihai (US) Food Inc. USA Sales of hot pot condiment US$100,000 100% - - -
Incorporated company in the United States
R A EXEREX BTN 100,000%7 100% - - -

FERSE
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SEMKmRMETE
10. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 10. MBAR (#)

AEBEMN2019F12H318H
MEAREHIMT (&) :

(a) The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are set (a)
out below: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Ownership interest held
establishment and kind  Principal activities and issued share ~ Ownership interest by non-controlling
Name of company of legal entity place of operation capital held by the Group interests
SRR/ L TERBR GELe KEEHEH FEHRAREN
NAER Gy Y fdd ey B3 it 4 5 ity 4 5
2019 2018 2019 2018
019% 2185 0195 18F
% % % %
Indirectly held:
FEfFE -
Taiwan Yihai Food Co.,Ltd. Taiwan Sales of hot pot condiment ~ TWD8,500,000 100% - - =
Limited liability company ~ in Taiwan
REERELAE ERSREABIRE 650000050 % 100% - - -
Yihai Food (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Thailand Yet to commence - 100% - - -
Limited liability company  operation in Thailand
SEARELLT AL REE! - 100% - - -
Yihai (Korea) Food Co., Ltd. South Korea Sales of hot pot condiment - KRW 300,000,000 100% - - -
Limited liability company ~in South Korea
REEREALNT ERABENEERE  3000000008T  100% - - -
Yihai Natural Food Manufacturing ~ Malaysia Manufacture and sales o~ MYR3,000,000 60% = 40% =
Sdn. Bhd. Private limited company ot pot condiment in
Malaysia
SREDAABRERLE ARREDLERHE 3,000,000 60% - 40% -
PRl FRAGLE
Yihai (UK) Food Ltd. The United Kingdom Sales of hot pot condiment ~ GBP1,000,000 100% - - =
Limited liability company  in the United Kingdom
ZEEREELT EREREXBATH 1,000,000 100% - - -
Yihai (Birmingham) Food Ltd The United Kingdom Manufacture and sales of (GBP500,000 100% - - -
Limited liability company ~ hot pot condiment in
the United Kingdom
RERRELLT TREEERSE 500,000 8 100% - - -
R
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10. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

e MBRRME

10. MIBAF (&)

The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are set

out below: (Continued)

AEBEMN2019F12H8318H
MEAREHIMT (&) :

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Ownership interest held
establishmentand kind  Principal activities and issued share Ownership interest by non-controlling
Name of company of legal entity place of operation capital held by the Group interests
SMAL/ A TERHR B&TRA AEERAN FEHREHEH
NAER RiteREEY ein B3 iRt 3 4 MERESR
2019 2018 2019 2018
2195  2018F 20198 2018F
% % % %
Indlrectly held:
FERE
Yihai (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd. ) The PRC Sales of hot pot condiment ~ US$50,000,000 100% 100% - -
Limited liability company ~ in China
B8 (LF) RRERAA() HEERERLE TEREHE K BARR 50,000,000% 7 100% 100% - -
Zhengzhou Shuhai Enterprise The PRC Manufacture and sales of RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co,, Ltd. Limited liability company ~ hot pot condiment in
China
BNBEEXERAT TEERELD PR ERHE AR 100% 100% - -
VBl 1,000,007
Chengdu Yueyihai Co., Ltd. The PRC Manufacture and sales of RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - -
Limited liability company ~ hot pot condiment in
China
REHESEERRAA TEERERAR EHELEREE AR# 100% 100% - -
P8l 1,000,007
Yihai Beijing Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC Sales of hot pot condiment ~ RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - -
Limited liability company in China
B8 (k) BEERERAH TEERERLAR EREEEX BRRR ARH 100% 100% - -
1,000,007t
Yihai (Bazhou) Food Co., Ltd. The PRC Manufacture and sales of ~ RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Limited liability company  hot pot condiment in
China
RS (BN RRERAR HERRELL EHELERHEE ARH 100% 100% - -
Pl 10,000,007
Yihai (Maanshan) Food Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Manufacture and salesof ~ RMB30,000,000 100% 100% - =
Limited liability company  hot pot condiment in
China
B8 (5%Il) RRERAT hERRERA ETELERHEE ARH 100% 100% - -
VBl 30,000,000

FERSE

225



e M RR M

10. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

10. MIBAF (&)

The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are set

out below: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of

(a)

AEBEMN2019F12H318H
MEAREHIMT (&) :

Ownership interest held

establishment and kind  Principal activities and issued share ~ Ownership interest by non-controlling
Name of company of legal entity place of operation capital held by the Group interests
SRR/ L TERBR GELe KEEHEH FEHRAREN
NAER Gy Y fdd ey B3 it 4 5 ity 4 5
2019 2018 2019 2018
019% 2185 0195 18F
% % % %
Indirectly held:
FEfFE -
Fuhai (Maanshan) Food Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Manufacture and salesof ~ RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Limited liability company ~hot pot condiment in
China
5 (58L) RRBRAT TEERELD EPELERHE N 100% 100% - -
REH 10,000,0007¢
Fuhai (Shanghai) Food Technology ~ The PRC Manufacture and salesof ~ RMB10,000,000 60% 60% 40% 40%
Co., Ltd. (i) Limited liability company ~hot pot condiment in
China
B5(L8) ARNEERAAN  PERRERL EHELEREE N 60% 60% 40% 40%
KA 10,000,007
Fuhai Bazhou Food Co., Ltd. The PRC Yet to commence = 100% = - =
Limited liability company  operation in China
BEBNERERAT HERREEAT HAETEEE - 100% - - -
Yihai (Chengdu) Food Co., Ltd. The PRC Manufacture and sales of - 100% 100% - -
Limited liability company ~ hot pot condiment in
China
B5 (R#) RRERAR TEERELA L EREE - 100% 100% - -
KR
Yihai (Luohe) Food Co., Ltd. The PRC Manufacture and sales of ~ RMB10,000,000 100% - - -
Limited liability company  hot pot condiment in
China
&5 (27) RmERAR TEERELA L EREE AEH® 100% - - -
KRR 10,000,007
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10. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are set
out below: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) This subsidiary is wholly foreign owned enterprises with
limited liability established in the PRC.

(i)  This subsidiary is a foreign invested enterprise with limited
liability established in the PRC.

(iii)  Other subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly domestic
owned companies.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

Set out below is summarised financial information for a
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material
to the Group.

The amounts disclosed for the subsidiary are before

inter-company eliminations.

Summarised balance sheet

e MBRRME

10. MIBAF (&)

(@) AEMER2019F12A31BH

MEBATRIIMT (&)

FfE -

() ZMBLTRRPEMLA
HNEBECEFREMER
EI o

(i) EMIBDTRRPEMILA
HNERECEAREMED
7 o

(i) E AR B A B D R
RBERBELRT -

(b) SEEdIRER ([ FFEHHER D)
UTH#EA-—RMELQE (F
BHASEMSBEANIEE
FIfEDS) W BRERRE -

FEME A R BN REE AR
T NEIE L -

Fuhai (Shanghai)
Food Technology Co.,Ltd.

i85 (Li8) gamilg

EEEBRRUE BIRARE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMT T AR¥TF T
Current assets REEE 307,885 177,138
Current liabilities piE =R 81,456 102,431
Current net assets MENEERE 226,429 74,707
Non-current assets FERENEE 54,883 11,621
Non-current liabilities FREERB 3,858 =
Non-current net assets ERBEEFE 51,025 11,621
Net assets BEFE 277,454 86,328
Accumulated NCI Bt IEEHIER 110,981 34,531
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SEMKmRMETE
10. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 10. MBAR (#)

FEIEFIRERE ([ FRIEFIREL )

(%) -

(b) Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) (Continued) (b)

Summarised statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income

Fuhai (Shanghai)
Food Technology Co.,Ltd.

88 (L8 amilx
EEREMEAKERTE BRAR
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥T T
Revenue A 968,554 425,340
Profit for the year FENiEF 191,125 75,276
Other comprehensive income HtZmEmUWA - -
Total comprehensive income EHENEEE 191,125 75,276
Profit allocated to NCI DA E IR
T 76,451 30,111
Summarised cash flows 2019 2018
RemEME 20194 20185
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Cash flows generated from operating KEEBFTB
activities HERE 66,531 50,594
Cash flows used in investing activites  REZBFTABRESRE (38,564) (10,341)
Cash flows used in financing activities ~ BEZBFTABRSHRE (1,884) =
Net increase in cash and cash RERBREEEY
equivalents 1 n;F58 26,083 40,253

EEEKRZERERA S



11. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(i) Deferred income tax assets

e MBRRME

11. IBERREBH

() EEFRSHEE

As at 31 December

n12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTFT ARET T
The balance comprises HEREFBEE
temporary differences RTH&EED
attributable to: TREER
Unrealised profit on SERIHE
intragroup sales REIFEF 7,978 12,559
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,527 -
Tax losses BiIEE 1B 9,610 4,385
Sales rebates SHERA 5,864 5,432
Provision for trade and B hHEHMEE
other receivables R IE 650 160
Payroll and welfare payables  Eft#H & REF 638 638
Depreciation differences EER 561 715
Total deferred income EEFEHEERE
tax assets 34,828 23,889
Set-off of deferred income tax RIEFERAEEE
liabilities pursuant to K HIELEFRSH
set-off right-of-use assets =L (9,383) =
Net deferred income tax assets EILEFFEHREEFE 25,445 23,889
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11. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 1. BEFEE (&)
() Deferred income tax assets (Continued) (i) EZEFBHREE (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets during the ETRZRHERBKEAEEER
year ended 2019, without taking into consideration of the AEIHERREMIBER T - RBZE
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as 2019F It FEWIEL B
follows: EEESHUOT :
Unrealised Provision
profiton  Payrolland  for trade
Sales Depreciation  intragroup welfare  and other Lease
rebates  differences sales  payables receivables Taxlosses liabilities Total
ERm g5%
HEXE  EfiES it
Movements £9 HEEH  fEZE Rl RER  bGHEEE  HEEE  AEAR Eh)

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARWTR ARETR ARETR

Asat 1 January 2018 R201851A18 4,046 867 2,682 807 87 2,065 - 10,554
Credited/(charged) to proftor 5T /(1) B

oss 1,386 (5 987 (169 B S 133
Asat31 December 2018 $R2018%12A31A 5432 5 12,599 638 160 4,385 - 23,889

Credted/(charged) to profitor  3TA /(H1B) %
loss 432 (154) (4,581) - 490 5,142 9,610 10,939

Asat31December 2019 #2019%12A31H 5,864 561 1978 638 650 9,521 9,610 34,828
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11.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax liabilities

e MBRRME

11. EEFRSH (&)

(i) EZEFREHER

As at 31 December

n12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T AR¥T T
The balance comprises HEHROIERB
temporary differences RTHEENERER :
attributable to:
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 9,383 -
Fair value changes of TRIEERE
investments in financial NEEEE
assets 381 -
Total deferred income tax EIEFTISHi B EHEE
liabilities 9,764 -
Set-off of deferred income tax  1RIEFAEEEIKLY
liabilities pursuant to set-off ~ EIEFTERIAE
right-of-use assets (9,383) -
Net deferred income tax EEFBHEEFE
liabilities 381 -
Fair value
changes of
investments Right-
in financial of-use
Movements assets assets Total
EHEERE R
LE) NEEES BE st
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®EFT  ARETT ARETR
As at 1 January 2018 and ®20185F1A1HR
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H = = =
Charged to profit or loss REERING 381 9,383 9,764
As at 31 December 2019 n20194£12A31H 381 9,383 9,764
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12. INVENTORIES

12. &

As at 31 December

13.

n12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMT T AR¥F T
Raw materials RATE 111,721 65,142
Finished goods Elm 185,613 210,673
Total inventories FE#%E 297,334 275,815

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to RMB2,609,387,000 (2018:
RMB1,622,350,000), which included inventory write-down of
RMB1,521,000 (2018: RMB165,000).

OTHER ASSETS

13.

BRRBALFTATHERLAR N
FERARARY2,609,387,000
7t (20184 : AR¥1,622,350,000
) HEEFEMBRARY
1,621,000t (20185 : ARY

165,0007T) °

Hin&E

As at 31 December

Mn12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARET T
Prepayments for property, M - BERRE
plant and equipment FEFRIE 194,949 156,027
Prepayments for purchase of BERERME
raw materials B FRIE 90,357 153,989
Value — added tax recoverable ] Ui [E] $ (B 49,089 33,866
Prepayments for technology B & H A AR
and other services expenses BRABENRIE 15,632 17,530
Prepayments for short-term EEREIRER
leases of warehouses EHEAREATEARIE
and staff quarters 10,265 6,666
Others Hith 3,536 1,127
363,828 369,205
Less: non — current items B FEENHATE R (194,949) (156,027)
Other current assets HitRBEE 168,879 213,178
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLES

e MBRRME

14. B S EWRIA

As at 31 December

MR12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T ARBT T
Third parties E= 57,480 42,122
Related parties (Note 34(d)) BAHE 7 (FIEE34(d)) 214,272 164,801
271,752 206,923
Less: provision for impairment ORI ERE (2,577) (30)
Trade receivables — net B S EWFE — FEE 269,175 206,893

(i)

(i)

The majority of the Group’s third party sales are conducted
through receiving advances from customers before delivering
the goods to customers, with only a few customers who are
granted with credit periods ranged from 30 to 90 days. The
related party customers of the Group are granted with 30
days credit period. Ageing analysis based on recognition
date of the trade receivables at the respective balance sheet
dates is as follows:

() AEENE=SHERBI U
[&F RN EY RIS F 2
HHNANET > EPERLH
EFERENFI0E90KH
SEH - AEENBEBLEF
ERHIOXNEES - RE
B2 BUGRENER B BRNE
FEANREBOMAOT :

As at 31 December

nN12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20185
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETF T AR¥T T
Within 3 months 3EAR 266,581 202,929
3 to 6 months 3Z6fEH 2,594 3,964
269,175 206,893

The carrying amount of trade receivables above approximate
their fair value.

(i) EIEZEWRIRRRE(ESR
HAFEMESE -
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(iii)  Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note 3.1(b)
provides for details about the calculation of the allowance.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and foreign currency risk
can be found in Note 3.1.

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

14. B SEWEIE (&)

15.

(il

B R R EE

RER BB B PR B S 3R 5 22 A
FONRTERHEEHE 5
FMEEZ BUWFIEREFE
HFtERHERERE - W&
31 REFBEBRENER
EFE e

BREZRUGKERERAE
1= & 2 b B SMNES L P AR Y
BRSNS -

BB AR EhEMEE

As at 31 December

MH12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARET T
Deposit for utilities N 5,100 4,063
Advance to employees RUETFEENBR 1,358 1,109
Others Hih 1,328 804
Subtotal Nt 7,786 5,976
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (24) (608)
Total S 7,762 5,368

()  The carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortised
cost above approximate their fair values.
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15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(i

Impairment and risk exposure

Note 3.1 sets out information about the impairment of
financial assets and the Group’s exposure to credit risk.

All of the financial assets at amortised cost are denominated
in RMB currency units. As a result, there is no exposure to
foreign currency risk. There is also no exposure to price risk
as the investments will be held to maturity.

16. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

e MBRRME

15, REBHAATRMEMEHEE
(&

JnE

(i) ORER AR

M 1 HIBEEREEM
EBERAEEEERBAENE

BRI A SR ERE
EUAREERHE - Bt - 7
FESNERR - ARMRERST
BEIY  AUTFAFEER
B o

16. RERRVITHEHR

As at 31 December

®12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARKET T ARBT T
Cash and cash equivalents (a) HERREEEY () 1,036,396 1,179,910
Term deposits with initial term DR EAREE =1 A
over three months and within R—FLANEHRFR(b)
one year (b) 484,845 -
1,521,241 1,179,910

Cash and cash equivalents include current deposits and
term deposits with initial term within three months.

The interest rates on term deposits with initial term over
three months and within one year as at 31 December 2019
range from 2.10% to 3.36% per annum. The deposits earn
interests at fixed rates based on prevailing market rates.

@ BERESZENSIHIHE
FRABBRBZEEANE
B8k -

(b) H2019F12H31H ' A
RA=ZEAUELER —FURK
HNERERNEFNEBENTF
2.10% £3.36% ° FRIRER
TS EERZHREF S -
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16. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 16. RERMITHER (E)
(c) As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, cash and bank balances (c) M2019F K2018%F 12 A31
were denominated in the following currencies: B RERBITEKRUTIE
MeatE -
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARBT T
RMB ARH 727,301 443,585
us$ E 615,165 440,861
HK$ BT 153,122 295,464
Others Hib 25,653 =
Total Ha 1,521,241 1,179,910
As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents of MA2019F12A31H » 1§
RMB10,170,000 (2018: RMB20,448,000) represented ERREEEBVARY
deposits held in certain on line payment platforms. 10,170,0007T (20184 : AR

#20,448,000T) KA TH
BEARFEFENER -

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign BUAREIENGRIRES
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies INER 2L INETHEVIRTT
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are RBRREEHTE  ABSF
subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange FEIBFEANEREIMEE
control promulgated by the PRC government. RAIRER ©

236 mEEERERERA



e MBRRME

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 17. BRATEFNEZHNEHEE
OR LOSS

() Classification of financial assets at fair value through (i) RBRATEFABZNESEMEE
profit or loss W
The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair rEERTIEREEDER
value through profit or loss (FVPL): RAFESAERE (RATYE
FFABR) ¢
e debt investments that do not qualify for measurement e TEERREHERADY
at either amortised cost or FVOCI BRAFEGTTAHMEE
W ENERIRE ;
e equity investments that are held for trading, and s BERZHNBRARE
&
e equity investments for which the entity has not elected s ERVEBREFZBHM
to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI. 2HEBRERAFEK
mREBENRAERE -
Financial assets measured at FVPL include the following: BRAFEFABRTENESH
EEBEUATSE
As at 31 December
®12831H
2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT
Non-current assets ERBEE
— Listed equity securities — P IRAES 11,880 12,000
— Unlisted equity securities (a) — FELETIRAE % (a) 41,741 -
— Debt investment (b) — BERERE (b) 31,272 -
84,893 12,000
Current assets MENEE
- Wealth management - B ER
products 89,596 -
89,596 -
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17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 17.
OR LOSS (Continued)

(i) Classification of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

(@ In June 2019 and September 2019, the Group
has invested RMB10,000,000 respectively in two
investment funds which primarily invest in the shares of
listed companies in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

In December 2019, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement and limited partnership
agreement with a fund, which invests in high-tech
industry entities, with a total capital consideration of
US$3,000,000 (approximately RMB21,368,000).

(b) In May 2019, the Group has advanced a loan of
RMB30,000,000 to a third party with a maturity period
of 21 months. The loan bears interest at a fixed rate
of 8% per annum plus a variable rate, based on the
investment return made by the third party.

(ii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

BERAFEFAANRGEHNEREE

(&
() BROAFEFABENERMEE
028 (&)

(@)

R2019%6 A %2019
FOR AEEHMX
ITBERETFEAMKEE
BET QAR IR
BEEHHREARY
10,000,000 °

M2019F 128 » A&
HE-TRESREE
X¥EENESITVAE
HEREREEHE
#HEFH3,000,000
ExT o (W ARE
21,368,0007%) ©

MA2019F58  X&EH
EBR—BE=ZFAERA
R #30,000,0007C » HA
PRAE21EA - ZERA
BERES% MEEFERI=E
MEERE=ZFFER
EERAFEFIETR ©

(i) REZABINEHE

During the year, the following gains were recognised in profit FR - THHEABRARE
or loss: EE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Fair value gains on investments AEMU AR Kz — FEEER
at FVPL and investments iR AT EFTABREN
income thereof were AT EREWR
recognised in other income REBIREWA (MEE27)
and gains — net (Note 27) 10,183 10,478

(iii) Risk exposure and fair value measurements

For information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value please refer to Note 3.3.

BESEFZERARD R

(i) AMREAERAFETE

BRETE X FERTANG A

K AR
3.3°

RHOER - F2RHME
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18. SHARE CAPITAL 18. B A&
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184 20195 20184
Shares Shares US$’000 Us$’000
B in IR FEx Ey
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of £0%0.00001 ETH
US$0.00001 each ZER
On 1 January 2018, —2018%F181H -
31 December 2018 2018F K
and 2019 201912 A31H 5,000,000,000  5,000,000,000 50 50
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: BETREEL AR
Nominal Equivalent
Number of value of nominal value
ordinary ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares
LiEREE LTERmE TERSEEE
USs$ RMB’ 000
£t AR®FT
On 1 January 2018, #2018F1 818 -
31 December 2018 and 2019 2018F ) 20194
12H31H 1,046,900,000 10,469 68
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19. SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME 19. #iESRMFEFHRRG
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184 20194 20184
Shares Shares RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Bz 44 BB ARETFT AR®TR
Shares held for employee Fh{EERMDETEIFE
share scheme of #8%0.00001% 7T
US$0.00001 each 7% 17 66,568,000 74,006,000 4 5
These shares are held by the Group’s RSU Trustee for the ZERDAEAEEZREIBRMDEN
purpose of issuing shares under the Group’s RSU Scheme. Under SEAMBFENAKZEERS - AR
the RSU Scheme, the Company repurchased 53,680,000 ordinary AEEZREIRMENLFTEZITR
shares from JLJH YIHAI Ltd., one of the shareholders of the M AZE - REZREBRMDEN
Company, at a total consideration of US$638,108 (equivalent to & - R20165F  AQAFHAR
RMB4,166,000) in 2016. The shares under the RSU Scheme have AIEFP—FRRERILIH YIHAI Ltd.
been changed to 77,220,000 after the capitalisation issue on 13 #8 153,680,000 R E B » 2K
July 2016 (see Note 21 for further information). £4638,108% T (HERARY
4,166,0007T) ° R201657H13H
EREITE  ZRHERMOEMNG
PR ERE /77,220,000
(FFHERFEZ REE21) ©
Number of
Details shares RMB’000
5 e AR®TT
Balance at 1 January 2018 R20184F1 51 H &SR 77,220,000 5
Shares vested under RSU scheme  ZRHIRMDEFTEIFHNE FBR M5 (3,214,000) -
Balance at 31 December 2018 1201812 A31 HM&ER 74,006,000 5
Shares vested under RSU scheme S RHEIRMDENFTEIFHE FBR MK (7,438,000) (1)
Balance at 31 December 2019 M2019F12 A31 HMAER 66,568,000 4
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20. RESERVES

The following table shows a breakdown of the balance sheet line
item ‘reserves’ and the movements in these reserves during the
year. A description of the nature and purpose of each reserve is

provided below the table.

e MBRRME

20.

TRIIREEREBREBRBIW
PARZERBRENNEL -F
BAEEAALER B NNHARRN
®iK o

Merger  Statutory Share-based Foreign
Share reserve reserve payment currency Retained
premium (Note a) (Note b) reserve  translation eamings Total
ARG EERE UEDARER
RiviaE (Wzta) (Hfth) kG MEHE  RERA '
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETr AREFn AR®Tn ARETR ARETR  ARETR
As at 1 January 2018 R201851A1H 922,594 (445) 52,498 8,612 - 518,067 1,501,326
Profit for the year ERER - - - = = 517793 517,793
Appropriation to statutory reserves  BfEEE - - 20919 - - (20,919) -
Share-based payment expense  WWRGBEHHATER
(Note 21) (Hyzz21) - - - 34,202 - - 34,202
Shares vested under employee  EERMHEET BEMNRH
share scheme (Note 21) (fzE21) 28,284 - - (28,187) - - o7
Dividends peid (Note 31) EARS (1) (48.291) - - - - S )
As at 31 December 2018 H018%12R31 902,567 Wy AT 14 S0 2005127
As at1 January 2019 1#2019%1 51 902,567 5 73417 14,627 - 101494 2005127
Profit for the year Eniail - - - - - 718,634 718,634
Foreign currency translation reserve M 8 k15 - - - - 835 - 835
Appropriation to statutory reserves  BfEEE - - 69,547 - - (69,547) -
Share-based payment expense  HRGBEBNARER
(Note 21) (zko1) - - - 31487 - - 37,487
Shares vested under employee  EERMHEETHENRH
share scheme (Note 21) (HzF21) 52,459 - - (52,114) - - 345
Dividends paid (Note 31) EHRE (1) (148,643) - - - - - (148649)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019£12A31H 806,403 (445) 142,964 - 835 1,664,028 2,613,785

(@ The merger reserve represented the aggregate difference
between the considerations paid and the carrying amounts
of the acquired the assets for the Listing pursuant to the

completion of the reorganisation of the Group.

(@) AEHREBIEEANERREAR
SEEATARELTERE
HYBREIE 2 AR E2E -
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20. RESERVES (Continued) 20. & ()

(b) The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are (b) A<D B B AR 3L R BT S
required to make appropriations to statutory reserves from ARIBABFRREFF - LIKEH
their profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses REBEPEHESTHRAEENBE
carried forward from prior years as determined under the FEABRTBBERURNAD
PRC accounting regulations and before distribution to REFBADIREFRA - 125
equity holders. The percentages to be appropriated to such EERE o MIEAERBERIRN
statutory reserve are determined according to the relevant B2 DR BHEAERE R G
regulations in the PRC, and further appropriation is optional E o MRt ESENB LA
when the accumulated fund is 50% or more of the registered FMEARMNS50%E L - Al
capital of the subsidiaries. ARERDIEE—DRRE -
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21.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
Restricted Share Unit Scheme

The Company adopted the RSU Scheme on 24 February 2016
with a duration of 10 years commencing from the adoption date.
The objective of the RSU Scheme is to encourage and retain
selected participants which include directors, employees, officers,
and distributors of the Group, to work with the Group and to
provide additional incentive for them to achieve performance
goals.

Save as disclosed in Note 19, the RSU shares have been held
by Vistra Fiduciary (HK) Limited (‘RSU Trustee”) in trust for the
benefit of the participants to the scheme and will be released to
participants upon vesting of each RSU.

The maximum number of ordinary shares that may be awarded by
the Board of Directors pursuant to the Share Award Scheme must
not, on an aggregate basis, exceed 7.37% of the issued ordinary
shares in the share capital of the Company as at 24 February
2016 (being 77,220,000 shares).

The fair value of Restricted Shares based on the market value of
the Company’s shares on the grant date is charged to profit or
loss as employee benefit expenses of the Group.

On 28 December 2016, the Group granted an aggregate of
9,140,000 shares under the Share Award Scheme, according
to the vesting conditions approved by the Board of Directors,
selected participants complete a period of service in the Group
of 24 to 36 months from the date of grant. During the year end
2019, there was 6,688,000 and 128,000 RSU shares vested and
forfeited respectively (2018: there was 1,704,000 and 620,000
RSU shares vested and forfeited respectively). The vested shares
are transferred to selected participants at the consideration of
HK$0.064, the forfeited shares will be reallocated in subsequent
grants.

On 27 December 2019, the Group granted an aggregate of
750,000 shares under the Share Award Scheme, amongst which
all awarded shares vested during the year. The vested shares are
transferred to selected participants at Nil consideration without
vesting conditions. Dividends declared for unvested awarded
shares shall become part of the trust fund for future grantees.

21.

e MBRRME

AR B B R FB 8
32 BRI R A0 AL 5T &)

RATN20165F2 B24 BERMZ R
HIRMEMEE - BERA B MRS
RE0F - XRBIRHEMTEW
BENAZBRETREEZEE (2
BAEEES - EE  SABER
REE) NAEBIHE LAKRSE
REFINRBUBREEBR -

MRETFE19OFTIREE 7N ZIRFIR
D ENRMUEFTE I X HVistra
Fiduciary (HK) Limited ([ 3 PR %%
HENZFEALD BEZEENR
@A UERESEZIRHRME
VEBRERTSEE -

EXERBRORBITETEES
MEBREE EREATEBBEAR
DRARAN20165F2H24HE #
TEERMT.37% (BN 77,220,000
B o

BAQTRRDARE BB SE
B EHZRFIRMD 2 FERAE
SEWREAEREESENFER -

MN2016512 8281 » XEERE
RMDEBTETIRBESSHEN
FERY  OBREBHETR
AEBRBE M4 E 3618 5 B E
BR2HEERHE$9,140,000 8%
3o R2019FF K 2 RICEHEE
6,688,000 % &% 128,000 A% 2
PR 5B 13 BB B 10 (201845 & 7 5
E5%/E 1,704,000 & 38 620,000
BREREBRMDEMRD) - EFB
BhEEETFERSEHE  REA
0.06487T ' ERWBRMDENRER
RHEESFLUEHOE -

A2019F12 8270 » XEBERE
% 17 € Bh 5t 213% H 2£ 750,000 B% iR
7 ERBROHERFERERS -
ERBROCEEREBERGEERT
EETEEZSHEE REAZ -5
AEBEBRAERNRELZKS
ARZIFTANRDETES ©
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21. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)
Restricted Share Unit Scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of Restricted Shares granted and

21. LR ASEROWEE)
ZRER O EATE (F)

ERHZRERDEE RFHBAH

related fair value at grant date are as follows: HEEATFENEHNT :
2019 2018
20194 20184
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average fair Restricted average fair Restricted
value Shares value Shares
(per share) granted (per share) granted
Ty 2% b [SFid
~EE 5 BR NEE PR
(8h) RHEA (BR) RHEE
HK$ (Thousands) HK$ (Thousands)
i B (F82) BIT (FR&)
As at 1 January M1A1RH 3.18 6,816 3.18 9,140
Granted 2&d 46.10 750 19.94 1,510
Vested 81 7.51 (7,438) 11.12 (8,214)
Forfeited 22 3.18 (128) 3.18 (620)
As at 31 December M12H831H 3.18 - 3.18 6,816

No options expired during the periods covered by the above

tables.

The fair value of Restricted Shares charged to profit or loss was
RMB37,487,000 during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:

RMB34,202,000).

BESEFZERARD R

ERFTREN RN R R

HZE2019F 1231 HIEEE » 5t
AEZNEZRFIBODAFEBAR
%%37,487,0007C (20185 : AR
34,202,0007%) ©



22.

23.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables mainly arose from the purchase of materials. The
credit terms of trade payables granted by the vendors are usually
30 to 90 days.

At 31 December, the ageing analysis of the trade payables based
on invoice date is as follows:

e MBRRME

22, BEEMKIEAE
ESRNRETERERBERM
B BARBNEZENREEE
HEE B30E0K

M12H31H  ERBEHHNES
A FIERRE DTN T

As at 31 December

n12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Within 3 months 3EARW 208,272 172,376
3 to 6 months 3@ B =61E A 3,091 9,759
6 months to 1 year 6EAE1HF 6,055 6,524
Total et 217,418 188,659
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HitERREREFNER
As at 31 December
n12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20185
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ETFT ARBT T
Wages, salaries and TE - -FER
other employee benefits HinEERA 72,718 38,477
Other tax payables H eI FiE 46,774 27,716
Sales rebates SHEIRR 23,821 21,728
Suppliers’ deposits HEmZe 16,587 10,268
Payables for professional and ANEEYN
services fee R%E A 3,814 596
Payables for construction ERIER 2,692 511
Related parties (Note 34(d)) BaEE 7 (MIEE34(d)) 704 599
Others Hth 6,479 3,721
Total et 173,589 103,616
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24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

24. EHAE

As at 31 December

n12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#&ET T AR¥T T
Advances from customers EWEFRIE 46,224 45,350

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

) HMENEEEIHWRE :
TRIVRAA IR E BRI E
RESNEERBENRES
B o

As at 31 December

M®12H31H

2019 2018

20194 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTT ARET

Revenue recognised that was FAREHANEN

included in the contract liability BEEHRN
balance at the beginning of the 2R

45,025 30,500

reporting period

The fluctuation of the contract liabilities in 2019 is due to
the increase in the number of distributors resulted from
continuous business development activities.

BESEFZERARD R

20194 & # B ERE R K
SERBRREDSEWEY
B -
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25. EXPENSES BY NATURE 25, RMBEISTRIRAX

FTASHERA  KHAX - 1THE
XHFEA D MAT

Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution expenses and
administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARKT T ARBT T
Changes in inventories of finished goods S @17 E & & 25,060 (111,464)
Raw materials and consumables used B {F AR R & FEHT 2,349,507 1,572,846
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26)  EEEFIFIX (KizE26) 453,612 308,169
Transportation and related charges E R EES 116,760 70,196
Advertising and other marketing EERHE A
expenses (53 74,997 42,098
Depreciation of property, M BER
plant and equipment RIEBINE 39,410 21,166
Warehouse expenses BEER 38,674 21,954
Utilities NGEEES 33,920 24,554
Taxes and surcharges I8 K Ff N 33,351 23,831
Travel and entertainment expenses ERRIBE 26,660 14,627
Technical supporting fees, professional RilTXEER EXEBEAR
fees and other services fees H bR E A 24,606 14,143
Repair and maintenance costs MISHESE 13,376 8,288
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREERE 12,431 -
Rental expenses HERX 9,190 16,198
Auditor’s remuneration 2 S GIEAT)
- Audit services — X EBRTE 2,100 2,100
- Non-audit services — R ERTS 464 329
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE
(Note 7) (FF&E7) 2,729 1,177
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) i {& FARE#E$Y (Hi3E6) - 1,135
Net impairment losses on TRIEERE
financial assets B8 FE 1,963 290
Write-down of inventories (Note 12) FEMR (MEE12) 1,521 165
Other expenses Hbpx 29,691 15,344
Total Bet 3,290,022 2,047,146
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

26. EEEMNEHR

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTF T ARETT

Wages, salaries and bonuses IE - HERIEA 416,125 273,967

Restricted share granted to directors RFEEREEN

and employees PRI fD 37,487 34,202

Total et 453,612 308,169
Five highest paid individuals TEBREFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 include 5 (2018: 3)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown
in Note 36. The emoluments paid and payable to the remaining nil
(2018: 2) individuals during the year are as follows:

AEBEHZE2019F12 831 BLEF
ENEERSHFMALTERESRE
= (2018%F : 3R) » EMS AT
36T DT RER - FRETRE
B TEEZBAL(2018F :28) W
MEMT -

2019 2018

2019% 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Wages, salaries and bonuses IE. - Hekial - 4,517
Restricted share granted to directors ~ EFEERESMN

and employees 3T ) - 5,143

Total et - 9,660
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

e MBRRME

26. BERMEHRE)
AEAREEHMAL (&)
e N RUTER :

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Emolument bands (in HK$) eFE (Ex)
Nil - HK$3,500,000 £2%3,500,00058 7T = -
HK$3,500,000 — HK$7,000,000 3,500,0008 7t &
7,000,00078 7T - 2

None of the above employees were paid by the Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office. No retirement benefits were paid

to or receivable by any of the above employees.

27. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS - NET

REE I G RS AARR
FEREEMAREBERFHMARE
ERVERNEDRBME - L3
R S B W BN S R L BR (4R
A o

27. HEUANRIWEFE

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEF T ARETT
Government grants BT B 51,919 40,951
Investment income from financial assets & AF{Est AIBHEH
at fair value through profit or loss EREENIREWA 6,395 8,753
Sales of scrap materials EERISHE 6,347 3,524
Net foreign exchange gains PE 5 U A F 58 6,430 29,728
Change in fair value of financial assets &2 F{EFT AIBZHY
at fair value through profit or loss TRIEENATES 3,788 1,725
Loss on disposal of property, BEEY*  KE
plant and equipment REENER (1,620) (612)
Others Hit 5,776 2,134
Total other income and gains — net HR AR R = FEa 458 79,035 86,203
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28. FINANCE INCOME - NET

28. BAEWNFHE

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31HLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ETT ARET T
Finance Income AEWA
— Interest income - MEKWA 23,679 10,071
Finance Costs L =y7 %
— Interest of lease liabilities - HEEaEMNE (1,560) -
Finance income -net BE WA FEE 22,119 10,071
29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 29. FREHHX
Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31HILEEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Current income tax BEAFTS R 299,790 195,932
Deferred income tax credit (Note 11) EEFTSBIRR (EE11)
— Origination and reversal of temporary — ERFZFAVE £ R EE
differences (1,175) (13,335)
Income tax expense 8 298,615 182,597
(a) Cayman Islands income tax (a) BIEHEFEH

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of local income tax.

(b) Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the Group’s estimated assessable profit for the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong during the year ended 31 December 2018.

EEEKRZERERA S

(b)

AATREBEHEATDER
HERBEMRY BN
RAT - B RN T
8%t -

HENEH

HZE20195 12831 ALLE
B AEBE b EREE
F3216.5% W ZEBETER
B - B E20185E12H318
LEFEE  REBWKREETBE
4 of B BN AE A i 5T FE RR B0
F o



29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Overseas income tax

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated overseas are
subject to overseas profits tax at 10% to 21% on estimated
assessable profit for this year.

PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in the PRC has been calculated at the tax rate
of 25% on the estimated assessable profits for the years
end 31 December 2019 and 2018, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC withholding tax (“WHT”)

According the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profit derived after 1 January 2008
are generally subject to WHT at the rate of 10%. If a foreign
investor incorporated in Hong Kong meets the conditions
and requirements under the double taxation treaty
arrangement entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong,
the relevant withholding tax rate will be 5%.

As of 31 December 2019, the aggregate undistributed
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC are RMB1,658,732,000. In the opinion of the directors,
except for the distribution of its retained earnings by a
PRC subsidiary to its sole overseas shareholder, also a
subsidiary of the Company, in 2019, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future, and that the Company has the ability to
control the timing of the distribution from these subsidiaries.
Accordingly, despite an assessable temporary difference
on such retained earnings exists, no deferred income tax
liability has been recognised in these financial statements.

e MBRRME

29. FREHiREXZ (#&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

NS B

AN BE A S A AL B B
NRARF AL ERTUER
R10% ZE21% B R HME
HNRIERL

TEREXRER ([RXRE
B )

AEBERBERITEA - 32
BREBEENREZ2019F
%2018F12A31 HILFER
b 5T FEER B8 R #8225 % BB
R EH BB SR
(i

REIRNS ([R5 )

RIBERNPEREER B
AR BRI A 2 B9 A Bl 2008 1 B
1 B 2% BREE R 65 5N
EEDRKKRE—RAEAZ10%
HIR R B MTBINF o BRI
REENEBEMAL - LFF
AHEEE B NSRBI
ZHETHRERRE - B4
BFEIIBB R HB5% -

HZE2019%5 128318 K&
B8] 774 R R AR AL RO B B
AR RENBEEAS AR
#51,658,732,0007T ° EER
5B BR2019FE—RAFEKHE
AT EEE—EIRR(TH
AATWHBLT) DIRER
BEFIN  ZEHBARTK
AR RARS IKEBE
o BARDBEEEDEFZSE
MBS A Bl D RESFRS o Rt -
BEFEEBRBRFWAFT
RERMELRE  BYERZE
B R R PR T IEL TS
Hams-
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29.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

29.

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate as

FS R (4)

$ 2 52 B BRBL AT A A AT 8B R R 4R
EEREREENERBANEZRN

follows: 5 &
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EFT ARBT
Profit before income tax BRETISBLADRF] 1,093,620 730,501
Tax calculated at domestic tax REBEZRERRNERN
rates applicable to profits Bl AR =T E AR
in the respective countries 303,530 173,851
Expenses not deductible for RAINBFE
tax purposes 9,180 8,950
Income not subject to tax BERBUIA (34,095) -
Withholding taxation on the FA—RFEMRELT
distribution of profits of a PRC [ — S8 IHIE A R
subsidiary to an overseas Doz A TR E
subsidiary during the year 20,000 -
Tax losses for which no deferred WRBERIELFSHEEN
income tax asset was recognised HIEES 8 - 1,103
Recognition of previously BRBEIFERER
unrecognised tax losses HIEEE - (1,307)
Taxation charge BB H 298,615 182,597

EEEKRZERERA S



30. EARNINGS PER SHARE

e MBRRME

30. ERREF

a. Basic earnings per share a. BREREF
Basic earnings per share for each of the years ended BZ2019F K 2018%F 12 A31
31 December 2019 and 2018 are calculated by dividing H SREFRZFIZAQGE
the profit of the Group attributable to the owners of the BAELREBRFIRUD %
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary TE BRI IR 2 R
shares in issue less shares held for RSU Scheme during the iR 0 B st B AT IR 9 5T
year. o

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Profit attributable to owners of AATHER AEMLEF
the Company (RMB’ 000) (ANR®TT) 718,634 517,793
Weighted average number of ERITEBERNINEFY
ordinary shares in issue less BUR AT Z PR FIAR D E N
shares held for RSU Scheme SERENRS (TR)
(thousands) 969,884 969,801
Basic earnings per share BRERBR (AR%ES)
(RMB cents) 74.1 53.4
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30. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 30.

b. Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no diluted
earnings per share have been presented since there was no
potential dilutive ordinary share in issue for the year ended
31 December 2019.

BRAERN (&)

b.

sREERT

EREERFRERBRSEME
BrE#sLBEROCE R  #
MARCSBRTEBERMEF
HEETESE - BHE2019F
12A31HILFE  HREZE
2019F12A31 B EEILE
ERTEEREETEHEY
2 R EZIIEREER
F o

Year ended 31 December

B ZE12A31ALEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Profit attributable to owners of the A< B #EHE A FE(LEF
Company (RMB’000) (AR®F ) 718,634 517,793
Weighted average number of AR EERERBRIN
ordinary shares in issue for basic ~ B3{TZERMEFIIE
earnings per share (thousands) (FR) 969,884 969,801
Adjustments for: MUTEBELRE
- Restricted Shares granted and — EEHREREEBN
assumed vested (thousands) ZIRHEIR M (FR) - 6,293
Weighted average number of RARETESREERFIN
ordinary shares and potential EERRBEEER
ordinary shares for calculating IEEFHE (FR)
diluted earnings per share
(thousands) 969,884 976,094
Diluted earnings per share BREBEERN (ARED)
(RMB cents) 74.1 53.1
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31.

DIVIDENDS

(i)

(ii)

Ordinary shares

The total dividends paid in 2019 amounted to RMB148,643,000
or RMB15.2952 cents per share (2018: RMB48,291,000 or
RMB4.9822 cents per share) (which are net of the dividend
of RMB11,297,000 (2018: RMBS3,867,000) attributable to the
shares held for the RSU Scheme).

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting
period

Pursuant to resolution passed on 25 March 2020, the board
of directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of
RMB20.593 cents per ordinary share of the Company,
amounting to RMB215,588,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 from the Company’s share premium.
The final dividend is to be proposed for approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
to be held on 22 May 2020. This proposed dividend is
not reflected as a dividend payable in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation
from the share premium account for the year ending 31
December 2020.

31.

2

(ii)

e MBRRME

ERER

R2019FEFRELEAA
R#148,643,000 T TR
AER#15.295245) (20184 :
AR%48,291,000 tHER
AR#4.9822%)  ©HIK
B ZRGIRMDENFEF
EHNRORKETHIBREARY
11,297,0007T (2018%F : AR
#£3,867,0007T) °

RBERRREZHRE

RIEMN2020F3 525 HEBH
REBER AR RESEEZL
DT R D BERBRIRAS R HA
BRESRALATEBERARK
20.593% » HEZE2019F 12
BA31BHLEEFEENSHEAAR
#5215,588,0007T ° FRHARE
#2020 5 522 HEITHIRR
RBAFAGLREAATARRE
o o FEEAR TR E T =R
RERPEEUBERRY > B
EERIBEEHZE2020%F12 A 31
HIEFENRMRERF ©
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32. THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 32.
INFORMATION

HERERERER

Cash generated from operations:

(a) EEFERS :

Year ended 31 December
B Z12A31HILLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥FT AR¥T T
Profit before income tax BRERSBLAD G T 1,093,620 730,501
Adjustments for: MUTBIBELFE
Change in fair value of BRAFEFABEN
financial assets at fair value TREEATEE
through profit or loss (Note 27) (MyEE27) (3,788) (1,725)
Share-based payment expense URRAD BER AR
(Note 21) (HM¥EE21) 37,487 34,202
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - BERREITE
equipment (Note 8) (P¥zE8) 39,410 21,166
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FAREETE (Mi:E9)
(Note 9) 12,431 -
Amortisation of land use rights it fE R 8
(Note 6) (KzEe) - 1,135
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEE (M7
(Note 7) 2,729 1,177
Losses on disposal of property, BEY* - BEREEN
plant and equipment (Note 27) &1 (pE27) 1,620 612
Net impairment losses on eREEREFE
financial assets (Note 25) (M¥EE25) 1,963 290
Write-down of inventories (Note 12)  Hi$§F & (FfzE12) 1,521 165
Finance income — net (Note 28) AEWA — FE
(MyEE28) (22,119) (10,071)
Net foreign exchange gains (Note 27) & % Ut A JB48
(MyEE27) (6,430) (29,835)
Investment income from BRATEFTABEN
financial assets at fair value EREENRERA
through profit or loss (Note 27) (MizE27) (6,395) (8,753)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
Inventories w& (23,040) (128,363)
Trade receivables, other B 5 RWFIA - REEHA
financial assets at amortised cost FTENHMEREER
and other current assets HibRBEE (24,449) (217,602)
Trade payables, other payables and & 5 FETFUE « HAfE(R
accruals, and contract liabilities RERETER
UREHNEE 100,795 86,107
Cash generated from operations KERBIRE 1,205,355 479,006

BESEFZERARD R



32. THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
comprise:

32.

e MBRRME

SEREREREN A

(b) HEWE  BERREHR

HEE

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

/8 £hH
1=K

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARMT T ARETT
Net book amount — property, IREFE - BER
plant and equipment Bai] 4,940 4,080
Loss on disposal of property, BEEYE  BERZEN
plant and equipment (Note 27) EE (MiEE27) (1,620) (612)
Proceeds from disposal of property, EE¥% « MER
plant and equipment RIEFTB R 3,320 3,468

(c) Non-cash investing and financing activities:

(c) FRERERMETED :

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTF T ARETTT

Acquisition of right-of-use assets  BEFHAEEE 31,612 -

off
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32. THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 32. FEBREREREN (&)

INFORMATION (Continued)
(d) Net debt reconciliation (d) FBEKLHER
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the EWAHRT 2SR HRF
movements in net debt for each of the periods presented. BRI RFEEEEH -
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not have HZE2019F K 20185F 12 531
a net debt position. H REBEFEK -
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 1,036,396 1,179,910
Lease liabilities HESE (39,151) -
997,245 1,179,910
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 1,036,396 1,179,910
Gross debt — fixed interest rates & — EERE (39,151) -
997,245 1,179,910
Liabilities
from
Cash and financing
cash activities-
equivalents Leases Total
RERk A&
ReZLEM HEEE a5t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARTT AR®TrT AR%Tx
As at 1 January 2018 B Z2018%1A81H 1,130,205 - 1,130,205
Cash flows BER 19,870 - 19,870
Foreign exchange adjustments IVEFEE 29,835 - 29,835
As at 31 December 2018 B =2018%F12H31H 1,179,910 - 1,179,910
Recognised on adoption of AR B 3R S 2E R
IFRS 16 (see Note 2.2) 165% (RFiEE2.2) - (16,366) (16,366)
1,179,910 (16,366) 1,163,544
Cash flows HeR (149,044) 8,827 (141,117)
Addition - leases liabilities FiE—HEEE - (31,612) (31,612)
Foreign exchange adjustments IVEFEE 6,430 - 6,430
As at 31 December 2019 B Z2019%12A31H 1,036,396 (39,151) 997,245
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33. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as
follow:

33.

e MBRRME

S

(a)

BRI

BEPRES OB RERS
BENERERRXZAT :

Year ended 31 December

HZEZ12A31ALEE

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 49,073 21,380
Non-cancellable operating leases (b) FAHELEHE

The Group leases various offices and warehouses under
non-cancellable operating leases agreements. The future
minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating
leases contracted for at the balance sheet dates but not
recognised as liabilities, are as follows:

AEEREATHHESEHEE
HREEZERIEREAE
TARECEHERTRER
AEATNERERAREBENR
REEEEEFFTRNT :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB?’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTFT ARET T

Within 1 year —FR 1,327 10,972
Between 1 to 5 years —ZHF[H - 12,862
Total st 1,327 23,834

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for non-cancellable operating
leases, except for short-term leases (see Note 2.2 for
further information). The operating leases commitments as
of 31 December 2019 as disclosed above are all related to
short-term leases which are exempted from recognising the
related right-of-use assets and lease liabilities under IFRS
16.

H2019F1A1BE » XAF
SR EREEER T A #E
REEE CEREERRN) GE
—SERFESHMF2.2) - L
MR ER 201912 A31H
RS HE AR RER BRI
BB EERE 16K RTE
AEBEAEEEREERE
MR ERRE -

FERSE
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operation decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control. Members of key
management and their close family member of the Group are also
considered as related parties.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this consolidated financial
information, the Group has the following related transactions,
and they were carried out in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business and were determined based on mutually agreed terms.

Name and relationship with related parties:

BB R 5

M—FARRIEESBEEHS -
FHE R REERRT
EEATEN  AZSHTRERER
Bt o i EZHEES - BHTH
BRERY AEEETEEEEK
SREMBTIREDEBT

BRAGREMBEENHE M FTRE
B AEEBUATEBRS @ %
ERXGRAEERABERBERE
TEERBEBENIRRETE -

AR o £ N B T VBRIR ¢

Names of the related parties Nature of relationship

AT B HENE

Haidilao International Holding Ltd. and its subsidiaries Companies beneficially owned by the
(“Haidilao Group”) ultimate shareholders

BEBEBEZERERARARAERB AR (TEEHEE D HBERRREZEBN AR

Shuhai (Beijing) Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. Companies beneficially owned by the
and its subsidiaries (“Shuhai Group”) ultimate shareholders

i (R) HEREEEAREALARANBLR (HEKE])  HEKRRESHEEHNLF

All the transactions with related parties were conducted in
accordance with the terms of contracts entered into between the
Group and the related parties.

(@) Transactions

HEBSNMERBIRIERER
R EBEE TS 2 T SIS HMIEFGETT o
(@ X3

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Sales of goods to related parties O REEE H HEE M 1,663,171 1,176,095
Purchase of goods from related o) B B 5 PR EE S

parties 22,266 -

EEEKRZERERA S
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. BMFA RS ()
(b) Warehouse and rental expenses (b) EERESEMRX

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2019 2018
20194 20185
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTF T ARET T
Warehouse expenses BERX 9,753 5,553
Rental expenses HEMX 2,932 2,869
Total s 12,685 8,422
(c) Key management compensation (c) EEEBAEHM

Year ended 31 December
BHZE12A31HILEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Salaries, allowance and e SRR HEHMER
other benefits 80,289 31,927

EE#RE 261



262

e M RR M

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Year-end balances with related parties were as follows:

34. MABAR 5 (&)

(d)

BRI N ERGEHROT ¢

As at 31 December

#12A831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB?’000 RMB’ 000
AR#ETT AR¥T T
Assets BiE
Trade receivables g S EWFIE 214,272 164,801
As at 31 December
H12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR¥ETF T
Liabilities aE
Trade payables B S EARIE 6,443 218
Other payables and accrual HittEAFERETER 704 599
Contract liabilities EHEaE 321 28
7,468 845

All the balances with related parties are unsecured, bear no
interest and short-term in nature.

Free trademark license agreement

On 1 December 2015, the Group entered into two trademark
license agreements with Sichuan Haidilao in respect of
certain trademarks which had been registered by the name
of Sichuan Haidilao in the PRC and certain trademarks which
are in the process of registration by Sichuan Haidilao in the
PRC (collectively, the “Trademark License Agreements”),
pursuant to which Sichuan Haidilao agreed to license such
trademarks for the Group to use in connection with the
Group’s operations on an exclusive and royalty-free basis
for a perpetual term commencing from 1 January 2007 to
the extent permissible under the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”), relevant laws
and regulations.
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35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

e MBRRME

35. ARREEABRRMHFEED

AAFEERER

As at 31 December

n12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR¥TF T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARNRE 1,198,319 1,167,448
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTTAERN
profit or loss EHMEE 69,762 =
Other financial assets at amortised cost IR KAz 2 /)
HittemEE 173,002 143,765
Cash and cash equivalents BHEREEEEY 480,460 714,158
Total current assets REEELE 723,224 857,923
Total assets BEEHE 1,921,543 2,025,371
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners of AARHEAE AEILHEDZS
the Company
Share capital [ &N 68 68
Share held for employee share scheme {EERHHEIFEHRH
(Note 19) (H¥zE19) (4) (5)
Reserves (a) () 1,916,858 2,024,896
Total equity HEmAEER 1,916,922 2,024,959
Liabilities afs
Current liabilities REAaR
Other payables H A 7RIE 4,621 412
Total liabilities Hith ETFRIE 4,621 412
Total equity and liabilities EERaEEE 1,921,543 2,025,371

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 25 March 2020 and was signed on its behalf

SHI YONGHONG
T 5k 7=
Director

EE

AATREERBERCN2020F3 A
SEEEEEME  WERHE

%o

SUN SHENGFENG

B IE
Director

EFE

FEHE 263
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35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 35.
COMPANY (Continued)

FrRBERBRRRFEHEES
(#)

Reserve movement of the Company

(@) AL2FREEE

Share-based
Share payment Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
NERhAER

BiEE HAFRE EXRiE 2HEHR o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®Ffn AR®Fr ARETR AR%ETR
As at 1 January 2018 720185110 923,110 8,612 1,130,000 (56,614) 2,005,108
Profit for the year EREF - - - 37,820 37,820

Share-based payment expense R BERNAFER
(Note 21) (MizE21) - 34,202 - - 34,202

Shares vested under employee ~ RIEEERH

scheme STEIRB RN 28,111 (28,187) = = (76)
Dividends paid EfRE (52,158) - - - (52,158)
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%12H31H 899,063 14,627 1,130,000 (18,794) 2,024,896
As at 1 January 2019 72019%1A1H 899,063 14,627 1,130,000 (18,794) 2,024,896
Profit for the year EREF - - - 14,471 14471

Share-based payment expense MR BEBHATHEX
(Note 21) (MfEE21) - 37,487 - - 37,487

Shares vested under employee ~ HIEEERH

scheme FTEBBNRG 52,058 (52,114) - - (56)
Dividends paid ENRE (159,940) - - - (159,940)
As at 31 December 2019 20195128311 791,181 - 1,130,000 (4,323) 1,916,858
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36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments

36.

e MBRRME

EETHRER

(a) EFERIETHAEME

The remuneration of each director and chief executives for ZREERTETHAERZE
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below: 201912 A31 A IE FE K BN
WM :
Estimated
money value
of benefits
(Note (i)
R
Fees Salary fhFE&HER Total
Name 24 g EI (BEG) st
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥FTR ARETR  AR¥TR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman) — WXERE (F/E) - 16,562 10,753 27,315
Mr. Guo Qiang (i) A% (i) - 8,053 5,086 13,139
Ms. Dang Chunxiang ERERL - 6,376 3,725 10,101
Mr. Sun Shengfeng BEELE = 4,721 2,892 7,613
Ms. Shu Ping FHut - 5,032 - 5,032
Non-executive directors ERTES -
Mr. Zhang Yong RELLE - - 6,617 6,617
Independent non-executive BIAFHTES
directors -
Mr. Yau Ka Chi REG £ 354 - - 354
Mr. Qian Mingxing RPERE 354 - - 354
Ms. Ye Shujun EgFut 354 - - 354
Chief executives TETBAE =
Mr. Zhao Xiaokai izttt - 6,101 3,309 9,410
Total st 1,062 46,845 32,382 80,289

FERSE
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36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (Continued)

36. EFEFHRER(E)

(a) EFRFETBRAEME (&)

The remuneration of each director and chief executives for BREERTETHRAEEZE
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below: 2018 12 A31 H IL FE K BN
SWT :
Estimated
money value
of benefits
(Note (i)
(R
Fees Salary fHFtE&HEE Total
Name ez e i (P &EG)) @5t
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREFRT AR¥Tn ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman) ~ FEXZ &4 (£FE) - 800 3,505 4,305
Ms. Dang Chunxiang EEBuL - 3,392 3,780 7,172
Mr. Sun Shengfeng B LE = 2,358 2,673 5,031
Ms. Shu Ping Lt - - 1,753 1,753
Non-executive directors ERTES
Mr. Zhang Yong RELLE - - 3,505 3,505
Mr. Pan Di Bl EE - - - -
Independent non-executive BiAEHTES
directors
Mr. Yau Ka Chi BREGxE 167 - - 167
Mr. Qian Mingxing RPELE 167 - - 167
Ms. Ye Shujun EFEuL 167 - - 167
Chief executives TETBAE
Mr. Du Zhuang Mt - 2074 2,869 5,143
Mr. Guo Qiang iy 3 - 2243 2074 4517
Total st 501 11,067 20,359 31,927
()  Estimated money value of benefits include the fair value () TAIANEHFEHEEES
of RSU Scheme at grant date charged to profit of loss FEERARKRLEHETTAR

during the year.

(i)  Mr. Guo Qiang were appointed as executive directors

on 26 March 2019.

(i) No directors of the Company waived any emoluments
and no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for
loss of office as director.
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36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking.

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation for the
early termination of the appointment during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ service

No payment was made to the former employer of directors
for making available the services of them as a director of the
Company.

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2019.
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36. EFEFHRER(E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EENRAREF

BEESHREEEARLAR
HIffB QR EHEENER
5 177 UL R = B W B AT SR K AR
A o

EEWBRERN

BZE2019F12A8318LLE
B RARWEFRIRAL LT
HRESEHTANRIEAR
& o

REERHESHRBEAE=S
X HRE

RRBAEEARESRHESR
[ H AR S F R

=,
o

BZ2019F12831HILF
B SIS  EEEEN
SR ABRREHERS
BHEANEY  EERRE A
25 -

EERNRS - ZHREHTH
EXER

BZE2019F12A31HLFE
RN ZF AEMERE
BEARDRSETLBARF
ESRHPBEREAES (&
W EESEE) HEAEE
EBREBENENEARS &
BERENEE -

267



268

e M RR M

37.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The spread of the novel COVID-19 in Mainland China and other
countries and regions since the beginning of 2020 have a certain
impact on economic activities. We refer to announcements
of Haidilao International Holding Ltd. dated 28 January 2020
and 2 February 2020 regarding the suspension of operation
of restaurants of Haidilao Group in Mainland China due to the
outbreak of COVID-19. According to the announcement of
Haidilao International Holding Ltd. dated 11 March 2020 and as at
the date of the report date, certain restaurants of Haidilao Group
in Mainland China have resumed operation, and the remaining
restaurants will resume operation in batches according to the
development of the relief of the epidemic in the regions where the
relevant restaurant is located. As Haidilao Group is the largest
customer of the Group for closure of their restaurants for an
extended period of time may affect the business, operations and
financial results of the Group. The Group has taken all possible
effective measures to respond to the impact from this epidemic
on its business. Currently, the third party retail business of the
Group is operating normally. The Group will keep continuous
attention on the change of situation and make timely response
and adjustments in the future.
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